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GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on
the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing
in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there
is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than
securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that
there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility
for the contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in
reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Perfect Optronics Limited (the
“Company”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report
is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there
are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report
misleading.
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On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), |
present the annual results of Perfect Optronics Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2023 (the
“Year”) to all of its shareholders.

In 2023, as the COVID-19 pandemic began to ease and
the return of normalcy in Hong Kong, the demand for the
Group’s health-related products dropped significantly. The
Group’s health-related products included COVID-19 rapid
antigen test kits and our flagship “K-clean” brand
personal hygiene and disinfectant products, which was
one of the key revenue drivers of the Group in 2022. With
the drop in demand, sales of the Group’s health-related
products decreased significantly from approximately
HK$87.9 million in 2022 to approximately HK$18.2 million
during the Year.

On the other hand, sales of the Group’s another key
revenue driver, medium-to-large sized display products,
including display panels and modules for computer
notebooks, monitors and televisions, continued to
decrease during the Year in the sluggish display panels
market. The slowdown in market demand after the wave
of purchase of work-from-home end-products, global
inflation and unstable macroeconomic environment
significantly affected the display panels industry.
Furthermore, the Group’s supplier reduced its supply
during the Year which could have been a measure to
stabilise the market. The Group also purchased less
inventories considering the fluctuation in the market
prices. These led to the significant decrease in sales of
the Group’s thin film transistor liquid crystal display
(“TFT-LCD”) panels and modules from approximately
HK$155.9 million in 2022 to approximately HK$84.0
million during the Year.

Primarily attributable to the drop in sales of the
abovementioned two key revenue drivers of the Group,
total revenue of the Group for the Year amounted to
approximately HK$124.3 million, representing a 59%
decrease as compared with 2022. Despite the Group
recording a fair value gain on its investment in Mobvoi
Inc. (“Mobvoi”), which is classified as financial asset at fair
value through profit or loss, in the amount of
approximately HK$10.6 million, such positive effect had
been offset by the significant decrease in revenue of the
Group and led to the financial results of the Group turned
from profit to loss during the Year. Loss attributable to
equity holders of the Company for the Year amounted to
approximately HK$19.1 million, as compared to a profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company of
approximately HK$4.0 million for 2022.

In response to the decrease in demand of the Group’s
major products, the Group continued to diversify its
product portfolio during the Year. Health-related products
such as supplements products were introduced by the
Group during the Year to make good use of the increase
in the public’s health awareness after the pandemic and
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the good reputation built-up by K-clean amongst its
consumers group. For electronic products, in response to
the rapid development of the electric vehicles industry in
China, the Group engaged in the sales of head-up display
components in automotive. The Group will continue to
diversify its products and business through its business
network and explore cross-selling opportunities.

In respect of the Group’s investment in Mobvoi as
mentioned above, the Group has held certain preferred
shares of Mobvoi since early 2015. Mobvoi is principally
engaged in the rendering of artificial intelligence (“Al”)
software solutions and sale of artificial intelligence of
things (“AloT”) smart devices to enterprise and individual
customer. Mainly benefited from capital market’s favour
towards stocks of the Al sector during the Year, fair value
of such investment increased to approximately HK$35.8
million as at 31 December 2023, and a fair value gain of
approximately HK$10.6 million was recognised by the
Group during the Year accordingly. Mobvoi captured the
opportunities presented by the latest global Al trends and
launched a series of artificial intelligence-generated
content products. As a milestone, Mobvoi submitted its
listing application to the Stock Exchange in May 2023 and
as of the date of this report, the vetting of the application
is still in progress.

Looking ahead, as the global economy is being squeezed
by slowing growth, national interest rate policies, high
inflation, and geopolitical conflicts, the Group’s
businesses are expected to face ongoing challenges, but
the Group is prepared to rise to the occasion and closely
monitor market dynamics, and maintain a prudent and
flexible business strategy to navigate risks and
uncertainties. The Group will actively pursue a diversified
business strategy to expand the Group’s business. By
capitalizing on market opportunities, the Company is
committed to creating greater value for itself and its
shareholders.

[, on behalf of the Board, would like to present my
sincere gratitude to our shareholders, business partners
and customers for their support and trust over the years.
| also highly appreciate the contribution and dedication of
our management and staff.

Kan Man Wai
Acting Chairman
Perfect Optronics Limited

Hong Kong
26 March 2024
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The Group is principally engaged in the trading,
development and sales of display and optics products
and other related electronic components, as well as
trading of health-related products and other products. The
Group also processes some of the products that it sells.

As the COVID-19 pandemic dissipates, the demand for
work-from-home decreases, the wave of purchases of
work-from-home end products like computer notebooks
and monitors comes to an end, and the effect of the
stay-at-home economy subsided during the Year. Coupled
with global high inflation and unstable macroeconomic
environment, the demand for display panels continued to
shrink and the display panel industry faced a challenging
year in 2023. In addition, the demand for the Group’s
health-related products declined significantly following the
subsidence of the COVID-19 pandemic in Hong Kong.
These unfavourable factors adversely affected the Group’s
business during the Year. Revenue of the Group during
the Year amounted to approximately HK$124,255,000,
representing a significant decrease of approximately 59%
as compared with approximately HK$301,318,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2022. Mainly due to such
significant decrease in revenue, the financial results of the
Group turned from profit in 2022 to loss during the Year.
Although the Group recognised a fair value gain on its
financial assets at FVTPL of approximately
HK$10,647,000, the Group still recorded a loss
attributable to equity holders of the Company of
approximately HK$19,104,000 during the Year, as
compared to a profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company of approximately HK$4,038,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2022.
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Sales of medium-to-large sized display products, including
display panels and modules for computer notebooks,
monitors and televisions, continued to be the key revenue
driver of the Group during the Year. However, as
mentioned above, the display panel industry encountered
a challenging business cycle with shrinking consumer
demand, the Group’s supplier reduced its supply which
could have served as a market stabilisation measure.
Also, the Group purchased less inventories of TFT-LCD
panels and modules considering the fluctuation in the
market prices. As a result, the Group recorded a
significant decrease in sales of TFT-LCD panels and
modules during the Year. Sales of the Group’s TFT-LCD
panels and modules amounted to approximately
HK$83,992,000 during the Year, representing a decrease
of approximately 46% as compared with approximately
HK$155,896,000 in 2022. On the other hand, as one of
the display components, the Group’s polarisers are
applied on certain models of mobile phones. Due to the
reduced shipments of such mobile phones during the
Year, the Group also recorded a significant decrease in
sales of polarisers during the Year. Sales of polarisers
amounted to approximately HK$782,000, representing a
decrease of approximately 98% as compared with
approximately HK$36,554,000 in 2022. Sales of integrated
circuits during the Year amounted to approximately
HK$1,786,000 during the Year, representing a decrease of
approximately 5% as compared with approximately
HK$1,883,000 in 2022.

The Group’s sales of electronic signage products, which
include digital information signages, electronic shelf
displays and electronic white boards, etc., recorded a
revenue of approximately HK$14,029,000 during the Year,
representing a decrease of approximately 14% as
compared with approximately HK$16,396,000 in 2022.
The Group continued to develop the electronic signage
market in various areas as electronic signage products
became more and more popular in retail outlets and
shopping malls. Nevertheless, the decrease in sales of
such products was mainly due to the decrease in revenue
generated from Taiwan in 2023 following the completion
of a chained drugstore electronic signage project in
2022.

Notwithstanding the decrease in sales of the
abovementioned major electronic products, there was
significant improvement in the sales of the Group’s optics
products. Sales of the Group’s optics products amounted
to approximately HK$4,994,000 during the Year,
representing an increase of approximately HK$4,404,000
as compared with approximately HK$590,000 in 2022.
Sales of the Group’s optics products during the Year
mainly comprised motor vehicles’ head-up display
components, which benefited from the recent rapid
development in electric vehicles industry in China.

Annual Report 2023
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For the Group’s health-related products, the Group
continued to develop its health-related products business,
“K-clean” brand personal hygiene and disinfection
products were actively promoted. However, mainly due to
the ease of the COVID-19 pandemic and Hong Kong’s
return to normalcy from having various anti-epidemic
measures, the demand for rapid antigen test kits for
COVID-19 and the Group’s personal hygiene and
disinfectant products dropped significantly during the Year
as compared with 2022. Sales of the Group’s health-
related products amounted to approximately
HK$18,209,000 during the Year, representing a significant
decrease of approximately 79% as compared with
approximately HK$87,876,000 in 2022. Nevertheless, with
the public’s health awareness heightened and as an
implementation of the Group’s product diversification and
flexible business strategy, the Group captured such
opportunity to introduce health supplements products to
the market during the Year.

The Group’s financial asset at FVTPL represented the
Group’s holding of certain preferred shares of Mobvoi,
which is principally engaged in the rendering of Al
software solutions and sale of AloT smart devices to
enterprise and individual customer. Fair value of such
investment amounted to approximately HK$35,848,000 as
at 31 December 2023, which increased by approximately
42% as compared to approximately HK$25,201,000 as at
31 December 2022. A fair value gain of approximately
HK$10,647,000 was recognised by the Group during the
Year as compared to the fair value loss of approximately
HK$13,260,000 recognised during the year ended 31
December 2022, which the Company understands mainly
benefited from capital market’s favour towards stocks of
the Al sector during the Year. The Group’s shareholding
proportion in Mobvoi was approximately 1.57% (on a fully
diluted and as converted basis) as at 31 December 2023
(31 December 2022: 1.57%). Mobvoi captured the
opportunities presented by the latest global Al trends to
iterate and upgrade its core technologies. In 2023,
Mobvoi’s large language model, “Sequence Monkey”,
which possesses the capabilities in natural language
processing and generation, was launched making it a
versatile tool for understanding text, generating content,
engaging in dialogue, performing logical operations, and
leveraging its trained knowledge base to provide global
content creators, enterprises and consumers with
information and insights. Mobvoi has also rolled out a
series of artificial intelligence-generated content products
during the Year. Mobvoi submitted its listing application to
the Stock Exchange in May 2023 and the vetting of the
application is still in progress as of the date of this
report.
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Another investment of the Group was classified as
financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive
income, being the Group’s investment in a Taiwan private
company that engages in the separator (a key component
in lithium batteries) business. The fair value of such
investment amounted to approximately HK$1,500,000 as
at 31 December 2023 (31 December 2022:
HK$1,300,000). During the Year, additional shares were
allotted by the company for fundraising purposes. The
Group’s shareholding in such company was diluted to
approximately 0.96% as at 31 December 2023 (31
December 2022: 2%).

Looking forward, despite the uncertainties in the global
economy and market challenges, the Group will closely
analyse the market dynamics, flexibly adjust its business
strategies, and respond to the market challenges with a
diversified business strategy. The Group will not only
actively explore product diversity, but will also commit to
explore business opportunities with new suppliers and
customers from various areas in order to strive for
stability in an uncertain future. Meanwhile, the Group will
continue to maintain a sustainable win-win relationship
with its suppliers and customers, foster mutual growth
and create greater value for the Group’s shareholders.

A slowdown in the global economy, including the
economic climate in the PRC, which has been one of the
major markets for display products, would affect the
results of the Group. A decrease in market demand may
put significant downward pressure on the average selling
prices. Reduced corporate and commercial activities also
have a negative impact on the demand for and prices of
the Group’s products. If the economy continues to grow
at a slow rate, or experiences a prolonged recession, the
Group’s business and results of operations will continue to
be adversely affected.
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The Group places orders with its suppliers based on the
Group’s forecast of future procurement, customers’
intentions and indicated orders, customers’ recent
purchase orders and the Group’s inventory levels. Any
unanticipated drop in sales could cause the Group’s
inventories to accumulate. As technology evolves quickly,
the Group’s inventories may become obsolete and may
adversely affect the Group’s financial position and results
of operations.

Product trends, industry trends and other factors beyond
the Group’s control may cause fluctuations in selling
prices and raw material prices, which could have a drastic
and adverse effect on the Group’s gross profit and net
profit.

The Group’s activities are exposed to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, cash
flow and fair value interest rate risk, price risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. Details of such risks are set out in Note
3 to the consolidated financial statements.

The following discussion should be read in conjunction
with the Group’s consolidated financial statements and its
notes, which are included in this report.

Total revenue of the Group for the Year amounted to
approximately HK$124,255,000, representing an
approximately 59% decrease as compared with
approximately HK$301,318,000 in 2022. As affected by
the ease of COVID-19 pandemic in Hong Kong and the
shrinking display panel market in 2023, the Group’s major
products, including TFT-LCD panels and modules and
health-related products suffered a significant drop in
revenue during the Year as compared with 2022.
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Cost of sales of the Group mainly consisted of purchase
costs, staff costs, provision for obsolete inventories and
other direct costs. Mainly due to the decrease in sales of
health-related products and TFT-LCD panels and
modules, purchase costs decreased and thus cost of
sales decreased during the Year as compared with 2022.
Total cost of sales of the Group for the Year amounted to
approximately HK$108,961,000 which decreased by
approximately 53% as compared to approximately
HK$231,649,000 in 2022.

Gross profit of the Group during the Year amounted to
approximately HK$15,294,000, which decreased by
approximately HK$54,375,000 as compared with
approximately HK$69,669,000 in 2022. The decrease in
gross profit during the Year was mainly due to the
decrease in revenue, in particular, revenue from the
Group’s health-related products which have higher gross
profit margin as compared with the Group’s other major
products.

Net other gains of approximately HK$10,956,000 was
recorded for the Year, while net other losses of
approximately HK$12,862,000 was recorded in 2022. The
balance mainly included the fair value gain of
approximately HK$10,647,000 recognised for the Group’s
financial asset at FVTPL in respect of its investment in
Mobvoi during the Year (2022: fair value loss of
HK$13,260,000).

The Group’s distribution and selling expenses for the Year
amounted to approximately HK$22,087,000, representing
an approximately 10% decrease as compared with
approximately HK$24,657,000 in 2022. The decrease was
mainly attributable to the decrease in sales commissions,
transportation expenses and promotion expenses incurred
for the Group’s health-related products as the sales
decreased. Nevertheless, impairment loss on right-of-use
assets related to the leases of warehouses of
approximately HK$2,382,000 was recognised and included
in the Group’s distribution and selling expenses during the
Year (2022: Nil).
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The Group’s general and administrative expenses for the
Year amounted to approximately HK$23,890,000,
representing an approximately 11% decrease as
compared with approximately HK$26,969,000 in 2022.
The decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease in
staff costs and bank charges. Nevertheless, impairment
loss on right-of-use assets related to the leases of offices
of approximately HK$981,000 was recognised and
included in the Group’s general and administrative
expenses during the Year (2022: Nil).

The Group’s research and development expenses for the
Year amounted to approximately HK$938,000, which
decreased by approximately 6% as compared to
approximately HK$996,000 in 2022. The decrease was
due to the decrease in staff costs.

The Group’s finance costs for the Year mainly
represented interest expenses on bank loan and lease
liabilities of approximately HK$169,000 (2022:
HK$156,000) and HK$152,000 (2022: HK$196,000),
respectively.

Mainly attributable to the significant decrease in revenue
from the Group’s health-related products and TFT-LCD
panels and modules, which offset the positive effect of the
fair value gain of the Group’s investment in Mobvoi, the
Group recorded a loss attributable to equity holders of the
Company for the Year amounted to approximately
HK$19,104,000, as compared to a profit attributable to
equity holders of the Company of approximately
HK$4,038,000 for 2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEEFN®RDAMN

FINANCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE FEPBRREE
INDICATORS

The financial key performance indicators are analysed as EUBRRESEHTOT :
follows:

Year ended 31 December
BEZ+-A=+-HILEE

Percentage change

Note 2023 2022  Increase/(decrease)
BOLED
(2 —EB-=# —T--F #Em,/ R )

HK$’000 HK$'000

TERT FET

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE BERE

Revenue A 124,255 301,318 (59)%
Gross profit EH 15,294 69,669 (78)%

Decreased by 10.8
percentage points

Gross profit margin EME 12.3% 23.1% HA10.8E D B
(Loss)/profit before interest, BRAE - FTEH
income tax, depreciation and WER#ER
amortisation (“EBITDA”) (B8) /7
([EBITDA ) (16,390) 8,473 N/AA i A
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(B#E)/FE (20,720 3,483 N/AT i F
(Loss)/profit attributable to equity 772 Bl B A JE
holders of the Company 5 (E8) /8 (19,104) 4,038 N/AZ i F
EBITDA margin EBITDAR (i) N/ATE A 2.8% N/ATN 38 A
Return on total assets (%) B8 7 [0 3R K (%) (i -17.8% 2.3% N/AT i F
Return on shareholders’ equity % 22 1 28 [3 3% & (%)
(%) (iii) -20.7% 3.6% N/ATNiE A
Basic (loss)/earnings per share ~ FREX(EE)/ HK(1.29) cents  HK0.27 cents
B (1.29)3% fll 0.277 L N/AT 8
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWE DM

As at 31 December

R+=A=t+—-H
Percentage change
Note 2023 2022  Increase/(decrease)
BALEE
(3 —E-= e et #hn,/ Ol )
HK$’000 HK$’000
TER FAETT

KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS = EHKi5E

Cash and cash equivalents e RkReEEY 47,372 85,709 (45)%

Net current assets MEBEEFRE 50,301 78,764 (36)%

Total assets BESE 116,131 153,750 (24)%

Bank borrowings RITEE 4,519 5,206 (13)%

Total liabilities BERE 27,355 44,412 (38)%

Equity attributable to equity ARER=EEEA

holders of the Company E5 R 2 92,295 111,241 (17)%
Total equity BmEE 88,776 109,338 (19)%
Increased

3.2 times 3.0 times by 0.2 times

Current ratio (times) mE & (%) (iv) 321 3.0f% 1# 400,262
Decreased

2.4 times 2.5 times by 0.1 times

Quick ratio (times) HEL K (1F) v) 2.44% 2.5f% A0
Increased by 0.3

percentage point

Gearing ratio (%) BEARBELLE%) (vi) 5.1% 4.8% #100.38 5 2

Increased by 0.5
percentage point

Debt-to-asset ratio (%) BEEELE%) (vii) 3.9% 3.4% #0.58 » 2

Notes: B EE -

i) As the Group recorded loss before interest, income tax, depreciation (i) HRBEE-T _=F+-_A=+—HLEFEREEH
and amortisation during the year ended 31 December 2023, no BHREE AR FEREHNERE BE=-T
EBITDA margin are presented for the year ended 31 December =T A=T—HIEFEHEZIEBTDAX
2023

(ii) Return on total assets = (Loss)/profit for the year/Total assets (ii) MEERRR=FEZ (BB) FIE BELSE

(iif) Return on shareholders’ equity = (Loss)/profit attributable to equity (i) BREREESERR="DAIERSEHE ARN (BIE),/F
holders of the Company/Equity attributable to equity holders of the B/ ARREEREA AEGERS
Company

(iv) Current ratio = Current assets/Current liabilities (iv) RBLLR-RBEE RBHAE

) Quick ratio = (Current assets — Inventories)/Current liabilities ) R ER=-(RBEE — FE)/ RBHEE

(vi) Gearing ratio = Total interest-bearing bank borrowings/Total equity (v BARBEL R ERTEEEE AR

(viij  Debt-to-asset ratio = Total interest-bearing bank borrowings/Total  (vii) BEEELR=HEBRTEERE BERLE
assets

BEXETARLDA 2023 F£H



Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWE DM

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES KB ES€ N UK &R

The Group’s funds are principally used to finance working AEEBME ST ZRERNLEEES  ERA
capital, and the growth and expansion of the Group’s SEZEBENHEERENERENERREEREES -
operations and sales network. The Group’s principal AEBETFTEMNELXRAOALSEELANRLR
sources of funds are cash generated from operations and $RITEE N - ZE =€+ -_F=+—H &
bank borrowings. As at 31 December 2023, the Group’'s SEMIR S RIREEE W A E 447,372,000/8
cash and cash equivalents, represented by bank deposits, JT(Z=Z = =4 : 85,709,000/ 7t) * T3 &R1T1F
bank balances and cash, amounted to approximately X - RITAEHBNIESE

HK$47,372,000 (2022: HK$85,709,000).

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank deposits, bank A& BHRITFER - RBITEHMRESNERE
balances and cash are denominated in the following JiLA %] E ¥ EHE

currencies:
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+-—H
2023 2022
o E e —_=__
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#& T FHET
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) B (BTl 19,404 39,005
United States dollars (“USD”) Zm([ZEx)) 15,818 39,487
Renminbi (“RMB”) ARE(TARE] 11,500 6,510
New Taiwan dollars (“TWD”) Feak(sHharl) 650 707

47,372 85,709

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s total bank R-ZT-_=F+-F=+—H AKAEBETHE
borrowings comprised bank loan of approximately B # % £ 3% 17 B 3 #94,519,0008 ;o (= &
HK$4,519,000 (2022: HK$5,206,000). The scheduled = —4F : 5,206,000/ 7T) ° 1815 B & 17 3% Fr 8 &
repayment date of the Group’s bank borrowings, as set T et REAIZEREZFEROTE  AEER
out in the loan agreement and without considering the fTHEEZHEIEE AR WOT :

effect of any repayment on demand clauses were as

follows:
As at 31 December
R+=—BA=+-—H
2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$’000
FE T FAT
On demand or within a period not BERFINTHBIF
exceeding 1 year HA F 709 690
Within a period of more than 1 year HEEZMFETBIRB2F
but not exceeding 2 years HA ) 735 712
Within a period of more than 2 years £ % P24 {8 N R B54F
but not exceeding 5 years HA F 2,370 2,288
Within a period of more than 5 years #8854 Hi & 705 1,516

4,519 5,206
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As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group’s bank
loan was floating interest rate loan denominated in HKS.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any
unutilised banking facilities restricted for trade finance
purposes (2022: HK$15.6 million).

The capital of the Company only comprises ordinary
shares. There has been no change in the capital structure
of the Group during the Year.

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management
approach towards its treasury policies and thus
maintained a healthy liquidity position throughout the
Year.

The Group strives to reduce exposure to credit risk by
monitoring on an ongoing basis with reference to the
financial position of the debtors, past experience and
other factors. The Group performs regular credit
evaluations of its major customers. To manage liquidity
risk, the management closely monitors the Group’s
liquidity position and maintains sufficient cash and an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities to settle
the payables of the Group.

The Group’s management policies, working environment,
career prospects and employees’ benefits have
contributed to building good employee relations and
employee retention of the Group. The Group offers
competitive remuneration packages commensurate with
industry practice and provides various fringe benefits to
employees including medical benefits, social insurance,
mandatory provident funds, bonuses and a share option
scheme. The management regularly reviews its
employees’ remuneration packages to ensure they are up
to prevailing market standards.

As at 31 December 2023, the employee headcount of the
Group was 67 (2022: 65) and the total staff costs,
including directors’ emoluments, amounted to
approximately HK$24,713,000 during the Year (2022:
HK$26,495,000).
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1 o
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HATA(CTE - —F:65A) AEEBITH
A (B EE S &) £24,713,0008 T (= =
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The Group has established long term business
relationships with its major suppliers for over ten years.
The Group has entered into long term supply framework
agreements with these suppliers. The Group will endeavor
to maintain its established relationship with these existing
suppliers.

The Group has a well-established business relationship
with its customers and has gained recognition in the TFT-
LCD panel industry in China. Some of its customers have
over ten-year business relationships with the Group. The
Group endeavours to secure the business with existing
customers and at the same time devotes to develop new
reliable customers in new markets.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities (2022: Nil).

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had charged its
trade receivables of HK$nil (2022: HK$480,000) in favour
of a bank to secure the banking facilities granted to the
Group.

The Group’s business transactions, assets and liabilities
are principally denominated in USD, HK$, RMB and TWD.
HK$ are reasonably stable against the USD under the
Linked Exchange Rate System. In addition, the
management considers that the impact on exchange
differences for RMB and TWD is not significant as at
31 December 2023. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy. However, the Board will
continuously monitor the related foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any
significant capital commitments (2022: Nil).

The Board does not recommend nor declare any dividend
for the Year (2022: Nil).
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In January 2015, the Group subscribed for 25,213,220
Series A-2 Preferred Shares of Mobvoi at a consideration
of USD3,000,000. Mobvoi is principally engaged in the
rendering of Al software solutions and sale of AloT smart
devices to enterprise and individual customers. The
Company considers that the investment in Mobvoi, which
is intended to be held by the Group for long-term
investment purpose, will provide an opportunity to the
Group to share in and gain from the development
potentials of Mobvoi and its products and technology. The
Group does not have any management or operational role
in Mobvoi. There have been no addition to or disposal of
such investment by the Group since it made the
investment in January 2015. Mobvoi has undertaken
several rounds of fundraising in recent years. The Group’s
shareholding proportion in Mobvoi was approximately
1.57% as at 31 December 2023 (on a fully diluted and as
converted basis) (2022: 1.57%).

The Group’s investment in Mobvoi is classified as financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss. As at
31 December 2023, the fair value of the Group’s
investment in Mobvoi was approximately HK$35,848,000,
representing approximately 30.9% of the Group’s total
assets. No dividend has been received by the Group from
Mobvoi since making its investment. A fair value gain of
approximately HK$10,647,000 was recognised on such
investment during the Year.

Save for the abovementioned, the Group did not hold any
significant investment in equity interest in any other
company as at 31 December 2023.

The Group did not have plans for material investments
and capital assets as at 31 December 2023.

RZT—RF—H ' N&EBERE 725,213,220
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The Group did not have any material acquisitions and
disposals of subsidiaries and affiliated companies during
the Year.

Reference is made to the announcements of the
Company dated 26 September 2019, 4 October 2019,
10 January 2020, 9 April 2020, 10 July 2020 and
25 September 2020. On 25 September 2019, the
Company received a sealed copy of a petition (the
“Petition”) issued by the High Court of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region (the “High Court”) which
was taken out by the Securities and Futures Commission
(the “SFC”) pursuant to section 214 of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance against certain Directors, namely
Mr. Cheng Wai Tak, Mr. Liu Ka Wing, Mr. Tse Ka Wing,
Mr. Wong Yik Chung John, Mr. Wong Chi Chiu and Mr. Li
Shui Yan (collectively “the Director Respondents”), and the
Company. The SFC alleged in the Petition that the
Director Respondents had breached their duties as
directors of the Company in relation to the disposal of a
subsidiary of the Company holding an approximately
50.14% shareholding in W 3 % & ik 7 & R & A
(Shinyoptics Corporation*) (details of such disposal were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
22 December 2016). As the Company is only a nominal
respondent to the Petition and pursuant to the order of
the High Court, the Company is not required to actively
participate in the legal proceedings in respect of the
Petition.

As detailed in the Company’s announcement dated
25 September 2020, with effect from 25 September
2020, pending the outcome of the legal proceedings of
the Petition, the Director Respondents have been
suspended from their duties as Directors. Mr. Cheng Wai
Tak has also been suspended from his duties as the
Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer
("CEQ”) of the Company. Mr. Kan Man Wai, an
independent non-executive Director, has been appointed
as the acting Chairman in place of Mr. Cheng Wai Tak.
The function of the CEO is shared among the
management staff of the Company and other members of
the Board.

The Company understands the Director Respondents
disagree with the allegations of the SFC in the Petition,
and intend to vigorously contest the Petition. As at the
date of this report, the legal proceedings of the Petition
are ongoing.

* for identification purpose only
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The Company is committed to achieving high standards of
corporate governance with a view to safeguarding the
interests of its shareholders. To accomplish this, the
Company has adopted the principles and the code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) contained in Appendix C1 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

Throughout the Year, the Company had complied with all
the code provisions of the CG Code for the time being in
force.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by directors on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of dealings set out in
Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors have
complied with the required standard of dealings and the
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
Directors adopted by the Company during the Year.

Up to the date of this annual report, the Board comprises
four executive Directors and five independent non-
executive Directors. The composition of the Board during
the Year and up to the date of this annual report was as
follows.

Executive Directors:

Mr. Cheng Wai Tak (suspended)
Mr. Liu Ka Wing (suspended)
Mr. Tse Ka Wing (suspended)
Mr. Chang Huan Chia

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Wong Yik Chung John (suspended)
Mr. Wong Chi Chiu (suspended)

Mr. Kan Man Wai (Acting Chairman)
Mr. Cho Chi Kong

Ms. Hsu Wai Man Helen

Biographical details of all Directors and senior
management of the Company are set out on pages 78 to
81 of this annual report. To the best knowledge of the
Company, there is no financial, business, family or other
material or relevant relationships among members of the
Board.
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As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
25 September 2020, pending the outcome of the legal
proceedings of the Petition against certain Directors,
including Mr. Cheng Wai Tak, Mr. Liu Ka Wing, Mr. Tse
Ka Wing, Mr. Wong Yik Chung John and Mr. Wong Chi
Chiu have been suspended from their duties as Directors
with effect from 25 September 2020. Mr. Kan Man Wai
has been appointed as the acting Chairman in place of
Mr. Cheng Wai Tak with effect from 25 September 2020.
For further details, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 25 September 2020.

The Board is responsible for establishing the strategic
direction of the Company and its subsidiaries; setting
objectives and business development plans; monitoring
the performance of the senior management; and assuming
responsibility for corporate governance. The management
is responsible for implementing the strategies and plans
established by the Board and reporting on the Group’s
operations to the Board on a regular basis to ensure
effective performance of the Board’s responsibilities.

The management provided all members of the Board with
monthly updates in accordance with the code provision
D.1.2 of the CG Code.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance
coverage on Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of
any legal actions taken against Directors and senior
management arising out of corporate activities. The
insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

The Directors can attend meetings in person or through
other means of electronic communication in accordance
with the Company’s articles of association. All minutes of
the Board meetings were recorded in sufficient detail of
the matters considered by the Board and the decisions
made.
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Four regular board meetings were held during the Year.
The attendance of individual Directors at these board
meetings were as follows:

Name

i

Executive Directors: HITEE -
Mr. Cheng Wai Tak 281 ?ﬁff‘ﬁi
Mr. Liu Ka Wing Bm&itst

Mr. Tse Ka Wing FRESLE
Mr. Chang Huan Chia RIEER LA
Independent non-executive Directors: X7 FE# 77E & -

Mr. Wong Yik Chung John =EEBELE

Mr. Wong Chi Chiu HEBEE

Mr. Kan Man Wai X125

Mr. Cho Chi Kong EENTE

Ms. Hsu Wai Man Helen mEHLL

Notes:

A: attending training courses, seminars, workshops or in-house
briefings or giving talks

B: reading materials relating to laws and regulations, corporate
governance, and other topics relevant to the Group’s strategy and

business

According to the code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all
directors shall participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant.

The Group, together with its legal advisors, continuously
update the Directors on the latest developments regarding
the GEM Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements, to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices. The
Company has received the Directors’ training records for
the Year, and a summary of training participated by the
Directors during the Year is set out on page 23 of this
annual report.
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Each of the independent non-executive Directors has
entered into an appointment letter with the Company for
a term of three years.

By virtue of article 112 of the articles of association of the
Company, the Board shall have power from time to time
and at any time to appoint any person as a Director
either to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional Director
but the number of Directors so appointed shall not
exceed the maximum number determined from time to
time by the shareholders in general meeting. Any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold
office only until the first general meeting of the Company
after his appointment and be subject to re-election at
such meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board as an
addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until
the next following annual general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election.

In compliance with the code provision in B.2.2 of the CG
Code, all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years. Furthermore, pursuant to
article 108(a) of the articles of association of the
Company, at each annual general meeting, one-third of
the Directors for the time being, or, if their number is not
3 or a multiple of 3, then the number nearest to but not
less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation,
provided that every Director (including those appointed for
a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every 3 years. A retiring Director shall be
eligible for re-election. The Company at the general
meeting at which a Director retires may fill the vacated
office.

By virtue of article 108 of the articles of association of the
Company, Ms. Hsu Wai Man Helen, Mr. Wong Yik Chung
John and Mr. Wong Chi Chiu will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. Ms. Hsu Wai Man
Helen will, being eligible, offer herself for re-election.
Mr. Wong Yik Chung John and Mr. Wong Chi Chiu do not
offer themselves for re-election and shall retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, as they would like to
devote more time to focus on other work engagements
and further pursue other business interests.
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In compliance with Rules 5.05(1), 5.05(2) and 5.05A of the
GEM Listing Rules, the Company has appointed five
independent non-executive Directors, representing more
than one-third of the Board and with at least one of
whom having appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise. The
Company has received annual independence confirmation
from each of the existing independent non-executive
Directors pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The Board considers all independent non-executive
Directors to be independent in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in the GEM Listing Rules
for the Year.

The Board has established, with written terms of

reference, three Board committees, namely audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee, to oversee particular aspects of the

Company’s affairs. The Board committees are provided
with sufficient resources to discharge their duties. The
written terms of reference for each Board committee are
in line with the GEM Listing Rules and are available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company,
respectively.

The Company has established an audit committee on
20 January 2014 with written terms of reference in
compliance with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules and
code provision D.3.3 of the CG Code. As at the date of
this report, the audit committee consists of three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. Hsu
Wai Man Helen, who has the appropriate accounting and
related financial management expertise and serves as the
chairperson of the audit committee, Mr. Kan Man Wai and
Mr. Cho Chi Kong.

The primary duties of the audit committee are (but without
limitation) to assist the Board in providing an independent
view of the effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting process and internal control and to review the
Company’s risk management and internal control systems,
to oversee the audit process and to perform other duties
and responsibilities as assigned by the Board.

>
HeE
il
o
S
ofF

AR AGEM_E T 48 B 55.05(1) ~ 55.05(2) & 5
500A1  RRBEZERABBILIENTES -
LblBBEEEXEN=22— BREE

ELE—ABEESENEXE RN DB
M%%ﬁiﬁoﬁﬁ&miﬁﬁﬁﬁawﬁz
BE ARAEDHEBEESRIBYIENTE
%Zirﬁ%ﬁﬁ;@% EE2RABBIBEGEM L
MHRAFTHIBEILIES  FTEBYIENITES
REFRNHBE -

= ami BEEeLZEg DHASEX
LB ¥FNEZESehiRELEST W EAE
EHEMM NEEAQNGBTE A EMNER -
ARrRAEECZEeRERMERNEBEITE
BE SEESZESNEDREKAFTS
GEM_E T #R Al - 30 A 5 Bl 74 B 2 Pfr&zli A4
UhE B o

A

I‘ﬂ
m]H+|

—A-t+BRIEZRZ
FEGEM E TR Al 8

5T AR X 3B D.3.315 R
ZEECHR =B
/\T%Laa auf&*ﬁﬁamﬁﬁ
b2 §5m1$$$ﬂﬁj:t|j{£%¢?;/\a

CEMRKEARBNEEEREES L -

>

m Bt
B S

el
it (1

xR -

=N

&,\1

\
/

(&)}
N
° o I

m mR

Bim
;ﬁ
s

Hmﬂ:%
Dff HE

E}mm\
tﬂﬂ <}
@3

“ﬁéﬁﬁ}.
- mR O
i
§<”r

ENIZRARBETRR)BHES
EﬁlﬁﬂjﬁﬁﬁEﬁi&ﬂk&W*ﬁ?T LA R
WA ARNA ) EREERABES RGN A N
BERERHBYER UEEEZBRENAR
ETEFEZRZEMBEREME -

2023 F 3R

25



26

>
e
il
o
Ly
ofF

The audit committee held four meetings during the Year. BEBRZZEERAFEANRTHASZH - HKE
lts composition and attendance of individual members at KRfEARKERZEEZLZES R 2LFEERN
these audit committee meetings are as follows: I
Number of audit
committee
meetings
Members of the audit committee attended/held
HEBTH
EREES
EREBEERE EE S
Ms. Hsu Wai Man Helen (Chairperson) BEHZET(FE) 4/4
Mr. Kan Man Wai F%Y1§§E$ 4/4
Mr. Cho Chi Kong EE AL 4/4

During the Year, the audit committee reviewed the
Company’s annual financial statements, annual results
announcement, interim and quarterly results
announcements and reports; discussed and reviewed the
internal control and risk management systems of the
Group; reviewed the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal audit function; met with the independent external
auditors and reviewed report from the independent
external auditors regarding their audit on annual financial
statements.

The Company established a remuneration committee on
20 January 2014 with written terms of reference in
compliance with code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code. As
at the date of this report, the remuneration committee
consists of three independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Kan Man Wai, who serves as the chairman of
the remuneration committee, Mr. Cho Chi Kong and
Ms. Hsu Wai Man Helen.

The primary duties of the remuneration committee include
(but without limitation): (i) making recommendations to the
Board on the policy and structure for all remuneration of
Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policies on such remuneration; (i) determining
the terms of the specific remuneration packages of the
Directors and senior management; and (i) reviewing and
approving performance-based remuneration by reference
to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board
from time to time.
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During the Year, the remuneration committee held two
meetings for, inter alia, reviewing the policy and structure
for all remuneration of Directors and senior management,
assessing performance of executive Directors, approving
the terms of executive Directors’ service contract and
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independent non-executive Directors’ appointment letter, /r:} NRBIFNTEST 2 W%%A%
and making recommendations to the Board regarding the cHMNEESEMRELHERBEREME
remuneration packages of executive Directors and senior EEZ%BZ%& ﬁﬁﬁf’lﬁ%AhﬁTﬁ%L%
management, and director’s fee of independent
non-executive Directors. The remuneration committee was
satisfied with the existing arrangement and did not make
recommendation to the Board on any change of such
policy and structure.
Number of
remuneration
committee
meetings
Members of the remuneration committee attended/held
HEBTH
FMEES
FHEEERE CE P8
Mr. Kan Man Wai (Chairman) X (& e (F &) 2/2
Mr. Cho Chi Kong |2 ,Ufﬁf‘ai 2/2
Ms. Hsu Wai Man Helen BT 2/2

Each of the Directors will receive a fee which is subject to
an annual adjustment at a rate to be reviewed by the
remuneration committee and be determined at the
discretion of the Board. The Company’s policy concerning
the remuneration of the Directors is that the amount of
remuneration is determined by reference to the relevant
Director’s experience, responsibilities, workload and time
devoted to the Group. The Group has adopted incentive
bonus schemes and continues to maintain these schemes
in order to align the financial well-being of the Group with
that of the employees, and to retain the Directors and
staff of high caliber.

The executive Directors are also the senior management
of the Company. Details of the remuneration of executive
Directors for the year ended 31 December 2023 are set
out in Note 34(a) to the audited consolidated financial
statements contained in this annual report.
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The Company established a nomination committee on
20 January 2014 with written terms of reference in
compliance with code provision B.3.1 of the CG Code. As
at the date of this report, the nomination committee
consists of three independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Cho Chi Kong, who serves as chairman of
the nomination committee, Mr. Kan Man Wai and Ms. Hsu
Wai Man Helen.

The primary functions of the nomination committee
include making recommendations to the Board to fill
vacancies on the same, assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors, making
recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment of
Directors and succession planning for Directors and
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board.

During the Year, the nomination committee held one
meeting for, inter alia, reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board and board diversity policy,
discussing matters regarding the retirement and
re-election of Directors and assessment of the
independence of independent non-executive Directors.
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Number of

nomination

committee

meetings

Members of the nomination committee attended/held
HEBITH

REEZEES

REZEERE E V8
Mr. Cho Chi Kong (Chairman) BEAKE(EFE) 1/1
Mr. Kan Man Wai FEJX&?EE 11
Ms. Hsu Wai Man Helen ®rEHLZLT 11
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The Company’s policy for the nomination of Directors (the
“Nomination Policy”) was adopted by the Company
pursuant to Board resolutions. The nomination committee
will review the Nomination Policy, as appropriate, to
ensure the effectiveness of the Nomination Policy and will
discuss any revisions that may be required, and
recommend any such revisions to the Board for
consideration and approval. The Nomination Policy is set
out as follows:

This policy sets out the criteria and procedures to
be adopted when considering candidates to be
appointed or re-elected as Directors.

The nomination committee shall consider the
following criteria in evaluating and selecting
candidates for directorship:

° Character and integrity;

° Qualifications including professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience
that are relevant to the Company’s business
and corporate strategy;

° Willingness to devote adequate time to
discharge duties as a member of the Board;

° Board Diversity Policy and any measurable
objectives adopted for achieving diversity on
the Board;

° Requirement for the Board to have independent
non-executive directors in accordance with the
GEM Listing Rules and whether the
candidates would be considered independent
with reference to the independence guidelines
set out in the GEM Listing Rules; and

° Such other perspectives as are appropriate to
the Company’s business or as suggested by
the Board.
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3.1.1 The nomination committee reviews the
structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board periodically and
makes recommendation on any
proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

3.1.2 When it is necessary to fill a causal
vacancy or appoint an additional
director, the nomination committee
identifies or selects candidates
recommended to the committee, with or
without assistance from external
agencies or the Company, pursuant to
the “Nomination Criteria” set out above;

3.1.3 If the process vyields one or more
desirable candidates, the nomination
committee shall rank them by order of
preference based on the needs of the
Company and reference check of each
candidate (where applicable);

3.1.4 The nomination committee makes
recommendation to the Board including
the terms and conditions of the
appointment; and

3.1.5 The Board deliberates and decides on the
appointment based upon the
recommendation of the nomination
committee.

3.2.1 In accordance with the Company’s
articles of association, every director
shall be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years and shall
be eligible for re-election at each annual
general meeting;
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3.2.2 The nomination committee shall review
the overall contribution and service to the
Company of the retiring director. The
nomination committee shall also review
the expertise and professional
qualifications of the retiring director who
offered himself/herself for re-election at
the annual general meeting, to determine
whether such director continues to meet
the “Nomination Criteria” as set out
above; and

3.2.3 Based on the review made by nomination
committee, the Board shall make
recommendations to shareholders on
candidates standing for re-election at the
annual general meeting of the Company,
and provide the available biographical
information of the retiring director in
accordance with the GEM Listing Rules
to enable shareholders to make informed
decisions on the re-election of such
candidates at annual general meeting of
the Company.

The shareholders of the Company may
propose a person for election as a director in
accordance with the Memorandum and
Articles of Association of the Company
and applicable law. For more details, please
refer to the section in Company’s website
“Investor Relations — Corporate governance
— Procedures for shareholders to propose a
person for election as director”.

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the
“Diversity Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board. The Company embraces the
benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality
of its performance. Pursuant to the Diversity Policy, the
Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of aspects, including (but not
limited to) gender, regional and industry experience, skills,
knowledge and educational background. All appointments
of the Board members will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity of the
Board.
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Current Board members have varied educational
backgrounds and expertises, diverse perspectives and
competencies in areas which are relevant and valuable to
the Group, including accounting, corporate finance,
strategic planning, business development and
management. The Board currently has one female Director
and 8 male Directors and the Board will take
opportunities to increase the proportion of female
members over time as and when suitable candidates are
identified.

The Board places emphasis on diversity (including gender
diversity) across all levels of the Group. The employee
gender ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2023 is 42
males: 25 females. The Group when hiring employees
considers a number of factors, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and education background,
qualification, ethnicity, professional experience, skKills,
knowledge and length of service, and the Group will make
sure achieving gender diversity across the workforce.

During the Year, the nomination committee has
considered and reviewed the Diversity Policy and
considered that the existing Diversity Policy is suitable
and effective.

The Company’s corporate governance function is carried
out by the Board pursuant to a set of written terms of
reference adopted by the Board, which include (a)
developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance (including
shareholders’ communication policy, board diversity policy
and mechanism on independent views to the Board) and
making recommendations to the Board; (b) reviewing and
monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management of the
Company and its subsidiaries; (c) reviewing and
monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (d)
developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and Directors and its subsidiaries; (e) reviewing the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosures in the corporate governance report of the
Company required to be prepared pursuant to the GEM
Listing Rules; and (f) considering, reviewing and deciding
any other topics as authorised by the Board.

During the Year, the Board reviewed and discussed the
corporate governance policy of the Group and was
satisfied with the effectiveness of its corporate
governance policy.
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All Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare
the Group’s consolidated financial statements for each
financial period to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows for
that period. The Directors continue to adopt the going
concern approach in preparing the consolidated financial
statements and are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

The responsibilities of the external auditors in financial
reporting are set out in the independent auditor’s report
attached to the Company’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2023 in this
annual report.

For the Year, the remuneration paid or payable to
PricewaterhouseCoopers in respect of audit and non-audit
services provided is set out below:
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Remuneration

Services rendered paid/payable

P 12 14 BR 7% e ENEE

HK$’000

T % T

Audit services Fit R 875
Non-audit services IEEF RIS

— agreed-upon procedures - BTERF 10

— tax compliance services — MEERRE 120

Total #Et 1,005

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to maintain an
effective risk management and internal control systems in
order to safeguard the Group’s assets and investments
and the shareholders’ interest. The Board oversees the
overall risk management of the Group and endeavors to
identify, control impact of the identified risks and facilitate
implementation of coordinated mitigating measures. Such
risk management and internal control systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.
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The Group has established a risk management policy
setting out the process of identification, evaluation and
management of the principal risks affecting the business.
Each division is responsible for identifying, assessing and
managing risks within its divisions, identifying and
assessing the principal risks (including environmental,
social and governance risks) on a quarterly basis with
mitigation plans to manage those risks. The management
is responsible for overseeing the risk management and
internal control activities of the Group, attending quarterly
meetings with each divisions to ensure principal risks are
properly managed and new or changing risks are
identified and documented. Lastly, the Board is
responsible for reviewing and approving the effectiveness
and adequacy of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems.

The risk management framework, coupled with the
Group’s internal controls, ensures that the risks
associated with different divisions are effectively controlled
in line with the Group’s risk appetite.

The risk management report was submitted to the audit
committee and the Board for review.

Given the Group’s size and relatively simple corporate
structure, the Group does not have an internal audit
function within itself. Nevertheless the Company engaged
an external consultant, CT Partners Consultants Limited
(“CT Partners”), to carry out internal audit function and
had during the Year conducted review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems. The review covered, inter alia, the
internal control systems over the inventory, purchase,
payable and payment and operating expenses cycles of
the Group, and the external consultant made
recommendations for improving the Group’s internal
control systems. The internal control review report was
submitted to the audit committee and the Board for
review. The audit committee has requested the
management to follow up with the recommendations of
the external consultant to remedy control issues identified
and to further improve the Group’s internal control
system.

The Company has adopted the following internal control
measures:

(@) The officers of the Group will cross check the
counterparty with the list of connected persons
updated on a monthly basis to identify potential
connected transaction.
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(b) A material transactions authorisation policy and
procedures (the “Policy”), which include (i)
implementing additional authorisation procedures by
setting different thresholds on the amount of all
transactions with specific authorisation requirements;
(i) preparing monthly reports with details of the
transactions above certain thresholds for the Board
and the audit committee’s review to identify if there
is any irregularity or doubtful transaction; and (iii)
providing ad hoc training to the Group employees to
ensure they are familiar with the Policy. During the
Year, the Company has engaged CT Partners, an
independent internal control consultant, to evaluate
the effectiveness and review the implementation and
enforcement of the Poalicy.

The Board has the overall responsibility to maintain the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programs and budget of accounting
and financial reporting functions. After having conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems, the Board has reached the
conclusion that the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems were in place, effective and adequate.
The Board will review and assess the risk management
and internal control systems at least once a year.

The Company has established a whistle-blowing policy
and system for employees of the Group to raise concerns
about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal
control and other matters. No significant areas of concern
that may affect the financial, operational, compliance,
controls and risk management of the Group have been
identified.

With respect to the monitoring and disclosure of inside
information, the Company has adopted a policy on
disclosure of inside information, with an aim to ensure
that the insiders abide by the confidentiality requirement
and fulfill the disclosure obligation of inside information.
The policy describes clearly the decision trees to identify
inside information and take necessary actions. Employees
and other relevant parties are required to keep inside
information in strict confidence. The Group is committed
to ensure that information contained in announcements
are not false or misleading, or false or misleading through
omission of a material fact in view of presenting
information in a clear and balanced way, which requires
equal disclosure of both positive and negative facts.
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The Company aims to provide its shareholders and
investors with high standards of disclosure and financial
transparency. The Board is committed to providing clear
and detailed information of the Group to its shareholders
in a timely manner and on a regular basis, through the
publication of quarterly, interim and annual reports and/or
dispatching circulars, notices, and other announcements.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Board and the Company’s
shareholders. The Chairman of the Board and other
members of the respective committees are available to
answer questions from the shareholders at the general
meeting. The Company recognises the importance of
maintaining on-going communications with the
shareholders and encourages them to attend general
meetings to stay informed of the Group’s businesses and
convey any concerns they may have to the Directors and
senior management.

The Company maintains a website at
http://www.perfect-optronics.com where extensive
information and updates on the Company’s financial
information, corporate governance practices and other
useful information are posted and available for access by
the public investors.

At the annual general meeting held on 6 June 2023,
separate resolutions were proposed by the acting
Chairman in respect of each separate issue, including the
re-election of directors and voted by way of poll. The
Company announced the results of the poll in the manner
prescribed under the GEM Listing Rules. The then
chairman of each of the Board, audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee
attended the annual general meeting held in 2023 to
ensure effective communication with shareholders of the
Company. All Directors attended the annual general
meeting held in 2023.

The Board reviewed the validity of implementation of the
shareholders’ communication policy of the Company
during the Year and considered that it remained effective
in enhancing timely, transparent, accurate and open
communication between the Company and its
shareholders.
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Pursuant to Article 64 of the articles of association of the
Company, the Board may, whenever it thinks fit, convene
an extraordinary general meeting. Extraordinary general
meetings shall also be convened on the requisition of one
or more shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of
the requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company with voting rights in the general
meetings attached thereto. Such requisition shall be made
in writing to the Board or the company secretary of the
Company (the “Company Secretary”) for the purpose of
requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within 2
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21
days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to
the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Article 113 of the articles of association of the Company
provides that no person other than a retiring Director,
shall, unless recommended by the Board for election, be
eligible for election to the office of Director at any general
meeting, unless notice in writing of the intention to
propose that person for election as a Director and notice
in writing by that person of his willingness to be elected
shall have been lodged at the head office or at the
registered office. The period for lodgment of the notices
required under this Article will commence no earlier than
the day after the despatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election and end no later
than 7 days prior to the date of such general meeting
and the minimum length of the period during which such
notices to the Company may be given will be at least 7
days. The written notice must state that person’s
biographical details as required by Rule 17.50(2) of the
GEM Listing Rules. The procedures for shareholders of
the Company to propose a person for election as director
is posted on the Company’s website.
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Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board by addressing them to the Company Secretary
by mail to the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong. The Company Secretary forwards communications
relating to matters within the Board’s purview to the
Board and communications relating to ordinary business
matters, such as suggestions, inquiries and complaints, to
the executive Directors.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at
the general meetings of the Company.

The Board plays a leading role in defining the purpose,
values and strategies of the Company, and aligning them
with the culture of the Company. The Board sets the tone
and shapes the company culture of the Company, which
is instilled and continuously reinforced by the core values
of acting lawfully, ethically and responsibly across all
levels of the Company. The Company endeavours to act
responsibly and maintain accountability to its employees,
shareholders, other stakeholders, as well as the
community. The Company’s purpose, values and
strategies form the foundations of the culture of the
Company, which adheres to strong ethical values and
strives for sustainable development.

The Company has adopted a whistleblowing policy to
provide guidance to employees and external stakeholders
to report concerns about any suspected or actual
improprieties relating to the Group.

The Board has adopted effective mechanisms to ensure
independent views and input are available to the Board.
Subject to approval of the Chairman of the Board,
Directors may seek, at the Company’s expense,
independent legal, financial or other professional advices
from advisors independent to those advising the Company
as and when necessary in appropriate circumstances to
enable them to discharge their responsibilities effectively.
The Board will review the implementation and
effectiveness of such mechanisms on an annual basis.

The Board reviewed the validity of implementation of such

mechanisms during the Year and considered that such
mechanisms are effective.
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Under the Companies Act of Cayman Islands and the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the
Company, dividends may be paid out of the profits of the
Company, or subject to solvency of the Company, out of
sums standing to the credit of the share premium account
of the Company. However, no dividend shall exceed the
amount recommended by Directors.

Declaration and recommendation of payment of dividends
of the Company is subject to the approval of the
Directors, depending on results of operations, working
capital, financial position, future prospects, and capital
requirements, as well as any other factors which the
Directors may consider relevant from time to time. Any
future declaration, recommendation and payment of
dividends of the Company may or may not reflect the
historical declarations and payments of dividends and will
be at the absolute discretion of the Directors. The
Company does not have any predetermined dividend
payout ratio.

The Company Secretary, Mr. Tse Ka Wing (“Mr. Tse”), is
an employee of the Company. He was appointed as an
executive Director with effect from 26 March 2015. He
reports to the acting Chairman and is responsible for
advising the Board on corporate governance matters. The
biographical details of Mr. Tse are set out under the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management”.

During the Year, Mr. Tse has undertaken not less than 15
hours of relevant professional training in accordance with
Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules.

In June 20283, the Company amended its memorandum
and articles of association in order to (i) bring it in line
with the amendments made to the GEM Listing Rules (in
particular to conform to the core shareholder protection
standards as set out in Appendix 3 to the GEM Listing
Rules) and applicable laws of the Cayman Islands; and (ii)
make other miscellaneous and housekeeping
amendments. The proposal for the amendments to the
Company’s memorandum and articles of association was
considered and approved at the Company’s annual
general meeting held on 6 June 2023. The existing
amended and restated memorandum and articles of
association are available for viewing on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange. There have been
no changes to the memorandum and articles of
association since the Company’s annual general meeting
held on 6 June 2023.
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This is the eighth consecutive Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG”) report of the Company, providing
detailed information about its performance and
management approach toward the relevant issues. All
topics that can possibly have significant impact on the
society and the environment are covered.

This ESG report complies with the ESG Reporting Guide
set out in Appendix C2 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Reporting principles
of Materiality, Quantitative, Balance and Consistency
stipulated in the ESG Reporting Guide have been followed
in preparation of this report.

This report covers management approach and quantitative
performance in respect of material ESG topics for the year
from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023 of the entire
Group. Annual report of the Company provides some
additional information about our sustainability
performance, besides the financial information and data.

Principal business activities of group companies are
trading, development and sale of display and optics
products and related electronic components, as well as
trading of health-related and other products. The Group
also processes some of the products which it sells.

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
assumes the ultimate responsibility of integrating material
ESG issues with its business operations. The ESG
Working Group has been set up for taking stock of
progress towards sustainability every quarter and reporting
to the Board, which takes final decisions about ongoing
work as well as future plans.

Annual Report 2023
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ESG-related risks are regularly identified to develop
appropriate strategies and prioritise them based on the
likelihood of happening and potential consequences. The
Board conducts quarterly reviews of these risks.
Additionally, an external consultant is also engaged to
assess the overall risk annually and provide
recommendations for remedial measures.

The Group establishes ESG performance targets that
consider both sustainability and financial requirements and
capabilities. The progress towards these targets is
presented to the Board on a quarterly basis. The Board of
Directors of the Company recognises its duty to uphold
the credibility of this ESG report and confirms that it has
reviewed and approved the report.

ESG Policy

We remain committed to addressing sustainability
concerns comprehensively and have implemented an ESG
policy that encompasses operations, environmental
considerations and social aspects. This policy serves as
our guiding principles, allowing the Group to achieve
positive outcomes for its stakeholders, including
employees, suppliers, sub-contractors, customers, and the
community. When making decisions about operations and
strategies, we actively take into account environmental
and social factors to enhance our ESG performance. The
integration of our ESG policy into the decision-making
process facilitates this improvement.

R -HERERES

HMEEHHANRE HERERBEERR -
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e (Conserve resources e Protect employee rights e Monitor suppliers’

REEIR RIEE TH#F

sustainability performance

ERHEANTSERSE

e Raise employees’ e Provide training opportunities

REEIIES

environmental awareness

e Ensure the procurement

REaEERRES process and contractual
e Create a safe and healthy arrangement are transparent
e Advocate green office working environment and fair
initiatives HEZ2 RERNITIERE BREBBERGAOTHE
REHEHNE B &~ F

e Support the community

e Adopt green procurement
practices

MITHRERE

through donations
AR it =
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE-HE8RERRSE

Stakeholder Engagement BHhESH

The Group acknowledges significance of the role AEBRAEEFMHEEINGRI LAl FHE %
stakeholders play in attaining success and sustainability. E S EAMEENEZER ASENFHEE
Among the Group’s stakeholders are shareholders and HEREREKEHR BT -BF HEBES B
investors, employees, customers, suppliers, B BELLE BRACAZESENERAS
sub-contractors, government, and the community. W BEBRBEL THRESZBEISEE - T X
Effective communication channels are employed to #MEFIHFEOHEMAF RS ENEREE
engage these stakeholders and comprehend their specific

concerns. The following outlines our stakeholder groups

and their respective engagement channels.

e Annual general meeting Reporting channels
BRERBFRE %’zi%;_
e Corporate reporting e Meetings
hERE =
e Training
=]
e Grievance channels o Regular meetings
REFRE EHE®
e Surveys e Supplier screening and
kS assessment
e &R LT fh
e Compliance with laws and e Donations
regulations B
BT RARRER e Community activities
e Response to government tL &S B
policies
ZREFBR
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In the reporting year, we undertook a materiality
assessment with the assistance of an independent
consultant, using an online survey. The assessment
involved identification, prioritisation, validation and review
of various ESG topics. The Board has thoroughly
reviewed the identified topics and affirmed their
significance and relevance to the Group, as well as their
impact on the economy, environment and the community.
Actions taken and progress made in respect of each
material topic are reviewed by the Board and
incorporated into the Group’s ESG management strategy.

Seven material topics were identified, as listed in
alphabetical order below:

1. Anti-corruption

2. Customer Satisfaction

3.  Customer Service

4. Diversity and Equal Opportunity
o8 Employee Communication

6. Product Quality Management

7. Supplier Chain Management

BE HERERRSE
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BE HERERRSE

A risk management plan has been put in place, based on

the identified potential ESG risks, to prevent risks from B -

materialising. The Board, along with the concerned
responsibility for

departments, takes
impact. The risks identified

minimising the
by the Group and actions

taken are listed in the table below:

Material Topics
EpN- §-:]

Anti-corruption .

k&S

Customer Satisfaction °

BEFREE

Customer Service °

BEFER%

ESG-related Risks
RE -HEREREBERR

Any breach of regulatory rules may
affect the business and reputation
of the Group
EREEMRAAEZEREENE
s REE

Lack of a culture of integrity in the
organisation may lead to potential
risk of bribery

B AR Z B AE 8 XX Rl B S BUE
X R R

Customer concern might not be well
received due to lack of a channel
and methodology
BEFRBE A e A RBRRE R ITA
i 7R B 3% W

Service level might not be well
monitored, resulting in a complaint
being handled without a proper
mechanism
RIGIZEFTRERAGE R NEE
FEREAEMS T EIBREF

EH
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BMERERINENEERE HERERE
ERARERTE U ERAREE B
S 1 [F 48 B 7R P9 5L 0RL
BEFERIREREFRERNITEEIN TX:

(Y EAERE A&

Action Taken

Fi SR EX H9 1T B

Have an effective Anti-Fraud
Management System in place
EERARNRRFERERS
The Code of Conduct must be
signed by all employees
PRETIMAEFZERTEL
Provide whistle-blowing channels
RHEBHRERE

Ensure awareness-raising initiatives
are organised on integrity and
anti-corruption
BRAEARERERESHERS B &
R 9]

Provide numerous customer
communication channels
REZETPBERES

Provide guidelines to employees on
customer information handling
MEIREEBAEFPERNEEMNIE
5l

Adopt a grievance resolution
mechanism

B FA BB AR AR R

Offer technical support in response
to customer feedback
RERMZEALBERT P RE



Material Topics

EXEE

Diversity and Equal
Opportunity
ZRERTFEHRE

Employee
Communication

BETERE

ESG-related Risks
BRE HEREAREERR

Lack of diversity in the workforce
limits the Group’s ability to attract
and retain top talent, hinders
innovation and results in a narrow
perspective in the decision-making
process

BETEERZ ZTRH T AEER
RS RIRBIESR AL EIEE S - [HEE
BIER - WEBURKBIE R EFRE

Insufficient communication may lead
to misunderstandings and a lack of
clarity regarding the Group’s ESG
goals, initiatives, and performance
BETIEBAREERRE  SAKE
MIRE HERELER 2|ER
48 2T 7 B BA B

BE HERERRSE

Action Taken

Fit SR EX B9 1T B

e Prohibit any form of harassment and
discrimination in the Code of
Conduct
RSP 2E Bl H 2 E AR AR 2K A B 5 AT
AR T/

e Provide reporting channels for
violations of the Code of Conduct
MERBTEUNNTREHBRE
b

e QOrganise employee activities and
reward outstanding employees
BB TEE WEESFETL

e |mplement diversity and inclusion
initiatives to actively recruit and
retain individuals from diverse
backgrounds
Bt le R ERE  BER
ER#EBERETAERNHAL

e Regular engagement with
employees
EHEETES

e Use various communication
channels, such as newsletters,
intranet platforms, and digital tools,
to ensure multiple touchpoints for
employee engagement
MAZEBERIREE  WMERK - A
WMEEREIBTE BREBITH

% i % 1B
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BE HERERRSE

Material Topics

EXRE

Product Quality and
Safety
EREERRE

Supply Chain
Management

HEEEE

ESG-related Risks
BRE HEREAREERR

Lack of channels for handling
customer grievances and insufficient
quality monitoring may result in low
customer satisfaction and even
product recalls
MZREEXFPRFNEREREEH
RTRAREBREPMEEER &

EREMmAM

Certain suppliers of the Group may
not understand the ESG
requirements adequately and might
not be aware of the need to comply
with environmental regulations,
which may also lead to reputation
loss
AEBETHREARBRNG THRIR
BoHEgREBORE mMAES—
EHNBFEBTONRERL BN
ARRENBEXE

The assessment of suppliers may be
insufficient which may result in
business malpractices
HMHEFOTEATRNRE
HETRTE

HEH

(u]
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Action Taken

Fit SR EX B9 1T B

Receive customer feedback on
product quality
WEEFPFRERBEENREER
Apply quality assurance and control
procedures
EREEREREHIRF

Obtain certifications on product
quality

NERBEEMEES

Ensure the customer engagement
channel is clear and regular
engagement is conducted

R P BB R EFM I E BT
i

Having regular meetings with
suppliers to monitor the updates on
product safety compliance
FHEHEEHRITEE UNERE
mEZEAaRNENBER

Follow supplier selection and
evaluation standards diligently

IR 238 <7 i e 7 b 0 N RT (AR 2
Sign agreements with suppliers of
goods and other inputs
HEmhkEMRARNHEERRS
1 7

Prefer suppliers with higher
environmental performance, and
ensure all major suppliers have an
environmental management system
and quantify their greenhouse gas
emissions and have the reported
certificates
BEEERRRERENHER
VHRMAETIEHEBRORARER
EREAGREMRERBYR I
RAEREEZE

Ongoing assessment of suppliers to
be organised to mitigate the risks
HETERENHEFETHEN
fily - AR R L B2

Use eco-friendly raw materials

B RIRREM B



The Group strives to maintain long-term and stable
relationships with its suppliers and processing services
providers to ensure quality and reliability of the products.
During the year, the Group worked with 97 suppliers, of
which 23 are located in Hong Kong, 47 in Mainland
China and 27 in other regions. We maintain the quality
standards expected of us and engage with
sub-contractors and processing services providers about
components procured.

BE HERERRSE

AEEFHEFEEBERNIRFEERER K
HERENEER NERERBERASE -F
W AEBEETZHERAF  HP23Run
TR ATRM R BB K EE R27& R H b i
B BMARFTARERMAALENEEKRF
VTHERBNTHZESEE RINTREHE
5 o

Supplier Distribution
HIER 2 o

24%

28%

48%

We have established comprehensive guidelines for
supplier selection and evaluation, with a focus on not only
price, quality, service, and reputation but also social and
environmental management practices. Through the
reporting year, a majority of our key suppliers have
obtained ISO 14001 Environmental Management System
certification and demonstrated robust ESG management
systems. We actively encourage our suppliers and
processing services providers to effectively address areas
such as product responsibility, human rights, and
environmental protection. We prioritise suppliers who use
environmentally friendly products and services.

M Hong Kong
B

W Mainland China
B K RE

Other Regions
A 3=

RO E R EHRERH T T 2EAMER
ZEEBTEIEER B2 REEREE-
NI SRBRENEREN RARSF
B RAPAAZHENEZEHERHE ERBZISO
14001 RIEEEBEARET YR TRE2AIR
B HEeNEAEEAS BMABGREELERE
FmEMIKRSHRESS B AEEERE
T ARMEREFEMNMBE - RMAELERE
FRRRER KRS HEER -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE-HE8RERRSE

e Processing contracts are signed to ensure products meet our

standards

o Processing Services EUMTANLERERGE R M EE

a Providers Evaluate our processing services providers’ performance
10T B 75 4 P S P 9 P P
regularly
EHFEMIRBHEHEBRNRE
Supplier Management
HEBER
Green Procurement RERE

The Group consistently improves its ESG performance by ANEBFREREZMA B EREENREF
integrating environmental considerations in decisions made MAFERAEIRE - EREREXR  BHMB
in the entire supply chain. We prioritise green #SEBHBEEMNENEUITELBERERAR
procurement practices and give preference to suppliers £ R fERg ©

with stronger environmental performance.

A majority of our key suppliers hold certifications under ZN& @ KEH X B EFEFEISO 14001 B E
ISO 14001 Environmental Management System and ISO E Z#H KZISO 14064 R E R EE/HHEFMNR
14064 Greenhouse Gas Accounting and Verification. We & o T M8 1% Z kIR (IR (R &= b sk IR 75 A0 (L JE
actively seek suppliers who offer environmentally friendly - 0 HFBREEEREREBEMHOE
products or services. For instance, sourcing of personal ERERBERXEBEAFTLENBESESR -
hygiene and disinfectant products aligns with the

Recommended Green Specifications published by the

Environmental Protection Department of Hong Kong.

Our processing services providers are required to register T FIEY I TR A HER BRI B k@ KA R
themselves and get licences from the relevant MAEMRRERELERIGHEER - KMAHLE
environmental protection authorities under the local laws TFEIETEM IR UEFBEHBTRBIEZE -
and regulations'. Regular site visits are conducted by our

managers to verify compliance with environmental

standards.

' List of applicable laws and regulations available in “Laws and Regulations”

U BRARRERINKRBRDER ROER]
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The Group is committed to delivering high-quality
products to its customers. We strictly adhere to quality
assurance and control procedures to ensure that desired
and stipulated quality standards are maintained. In case of
any non-conformity, we work directly with the original
manufacturer to replace the product promptly.

For “K-clean,” a personal hygiene and disinfectant
product, we have obtained various certifications that attest
to its quality. These certifications include antibacterial
tests, chemical safety evaluations, and assessments of its
disinfection effectiveness. This demonstrates our
dedication to providing safe and effective products to our
customers.

Our focus on quality management ensures that our
products are safe, effective and compliant with industry
standards. During the year, there were no product recalls
for safety and health reasons. We did not receive any
material products and service-related complaints.

BE HERERRSE

AEERIRAEFPREGEEER - HMIE&
RETHERERENRF AREEKREDFTS
HERREMNEERE - —BREFNERE
oo BPERERSERRIE REERERM -

BIEAG LR EBER K-clean | 5 * BIFE
BESEANEALERNEL - REBERHE
FHEBS (B2 2 T RAEBRN T -
BERTRMABERAR S RAKER K
SEPR

HMEINESER BREGRZTE AXAE
HETEFRE-FA HENZE2REREMR
BEER BRMYBRETANENER LR
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BE HERERRSE

The Group is dedicated to meeting customer expectations
and ensuring their satisfaction. We offer multiple channels
of communication, such as Facebook, Email, WhatsApp,
and a hotline, to provide convenient ways for customers
to reach out to us.

We prioritise understanding the needs and demands of
our customers to continuously enhance product quality
and provide the necessary technical support and
resources. By actively listening to customer feedback, we
strive to identify areas for improvement and make the
necessary adjustments to meet their expectations
effectively. Our goal is to deliver products and services
that align with customer requirements and provide a
seamless experience throughout their engagement with
us.

Customers can also communicate their opinions on quality
of products and services or any related issues through a
grievance resolution mechanism. Specific departments and
managers record and deal with customer concerns in a
timely manner by taking the necessary follow-up actions.
Sales and marketing team works with the technical team
to provide support to customers. If there is a potential
safety issue, quality concern, or an instance of
non-compliance with regulations, we start a recall
process. This involves a comprehensive investigation to
evaluate the seriousness of the issue, communicating with
the relevant stakeholders, and promptly retrieving any
affected products from the market.

We prioritise the confidentiality of customer information
and have established guidelines for employees to follow.
To prevent unauthorised access, customer information is
stored securely on our company server, and responsible
personnel are entrusted with task of maintaining its
confidentiality and preventing unauthorised use, loss,
damage, or corruption.

Annual Report 2023
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We are committed to complying with all relevant laws and
regulations concerning personal data and privacy?. By
obtaining trademarks for our products, we safeguard our
intellectual property rights. This proactive measure helps
prevent counterfeiting and fraud, ensuring the integrity
and authenticity of our offerings.

During the year, the Group complied with all relevant laws
and regulations relating to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters concerning products and
services sold and provided to customers.

The Group upholds integrity and honesty as its
fundamental values. We have a strict zero-tolerance policy
towards unethical business practices, including corruption,
bribery, fraud, blackmail and money laundering. To ensure
ethical conduct in all our business units, we have
implemented various anti-corruption measures.

One of these measures is the Anti-Fraud Management
System, which aligns with applicable laws and regulations.
This system helps us proactively address and mitigate
fraud risks within our organisation. We also have
Anti-bribery Guidelines in place to provide clear
instructions for our employees to follow. It is crucial for all
employees to thoroughly understand these guidelines and
diligently avoid any involvement in corruption-related
activities. Additionally, we have implemented educational
measures to promote a culture of integrity, including
providing anti-corruption related literature to our
employees, issuing an employee handbook containing
anti-corruption related requirements for new employees,
and reminding employees from time to time in our daily
business activities to raise their awareness. These
measures work in conjunction with our robust internal
control systems to prevent misconduct. The Audit
Committee provides guidance and oversight for our
anti-fraud efforts, while the Anti-Fraud Department
coordinates anti-fraud initiatives across the Group.

2 List of applicable laws and regulations available in “Laws and Regulations”

? ERRRRERINKRERDERRIER]
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE-#HERERRSE

Management Audit Committee
EEfE BZLESE
— Establish and implement anti-fraud
programmes and controls such as
fraud risk assessment and Anti-Fraud Department
prevention = % Wik j—,_lg F"ﬁ
L KRB RIS B A B e -
© BNFEBR R B B4 e TR
— Conduct self-assessment on
anti-corruption : :
BATRES BRI Business Units
FIFEAL
Anti-Fraud Governance Structure
RE¥IM

During the year, we were not aware of any breach of HF R @ HMEFHMNBEEHE  BF FHRLA
laws and regulations® that could have had a significant JtRBEEHAEBAJEERNEAFTENELE
impact on the Group relating to bribery, extortion, fraud #3°E# - BIEBBEE S ERNEBLERERG -
and money laundering. There were no concluded legal

cases regarding corrupt practices.

Code of Conduct 1 FEE

A comprehensive Code of Conduct is in place. It provides ®HFE&EH—E2EAETER - REEH A
clear guidelines to ensure all employees are able to 53| WMRZEE TN THTELSEEEN
understand what constitutes ethical behaviour and to act 174 WA E RHEMNEEITE - TR
with honesty and integrity. The following table lists some #9825 REABEEHEREHEETE
major unethical behaviours that are viewed as corrupt and  1E17/4 °

should be avoided at all times.

3 List of applicable laws and regulations available in “Laws and Regulations”
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Failure to declare any conflict
of interest to the Group for
approval

RN (A 725 &8 B BB R AL ] Al 2
B R ARG 8L

Employee or their family
members engage in business
relationships that are
competitive to the Group
BIHEREKBERFER

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE-HE8RERRSE

Accept gifts of large
economic value, in the form
of services or discounts
ARRFskiTME X EWNAESR
RAKEBEEBENEM

Deliberately accepting gifts
that put the Group in an
embarrassing situation
HMEEMEm RAEER
A& BR 3%

Damage the goodwill of our
competitors through
fabricating and disseminating
false information
mERBEERES  BE
HREHFOEE

Infringe competitors’ trade or
commercial secrets with
ilegal means

MIEEFBRRLHEFETH

SEEBRFNEBKBE

BREBEUE

e Failure to report the
acceptance of a gift to
supervisors for approval
RA [\ £ B BRI A1 mm A

St

Whistle-blowing

We have established multiple communication channels to
enable employees to report any instances of misconduct
or corrupt business practices. Whistle-blowers can use an
anonymous email box to submit information securely and
confidentially. All reported cases are subject to thorough
investigation, with a strong emphasis on protecting the
confidentiality of the whistle-blower.

In cases where misconduct is substantiated, disciplinary
actions are promptly taken, including immediate
termination of employment. If necessary, we also refer
cases involving breaches of the Code of Conduct to law
enforcement authorities for further action. Our
commitment to maintaining the highest ethical standards
is unwavering, and we take decisive measures to ensure
a transparent and accountable work environment.

£

BRI TZEERE  UWEBITHREEMADN
ETRIESEHETR BRAATUNERES
B 22 RESLEIEHN -FEEHREZR
MEXZEAHE YEHREBBRANEL -

—BTETABIEE  BME ARG R
FRERERTENNEREN FHIAIPIRER
E—F1T8 - RARETBHBORERESK
FiEEEE . WIRIREIERERE —EQRH
B -BEMIERE-
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BE HERERRSE

OUR PEOPLE

Employee Composition

The Group is committed to safeguarding the rights of its
employees and fostering an inclusive and supportive work
environment that promotes their well-being. As of

31 December 2023,

EPHET

employees. All our employees are full-time staff.

By Gender
BRI &S

37.3%

62.7%

B Male
St

W Female
it

During the year, the overall employee turnover rate was
14.9%. Distribution of employee turnover is presented in

the graphs below:

Employee Turnover Rate by Gender

RMRIE D HESR AR

20% 19.0%

17.1%
_ 10.0%
i I I B
0% I
Ma\e Female
by

. 2022 W 2023

- —p-=

Employee Turnover Rate by Age

RERBDNESRAR
60%
42.9%
40%
21.6%
20% 15.8%
10.0%
4.5%
0% 0%
Below 31 yearsold 31 to 50 years old Above 50 years old
B1BRT 31E508% 508% A £
W 2022 . 2023
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BTIAMR
AEBBMORREEINEN ZEHRRIE
HARBXENITERE RESTIHNREL B
E_?__$+ R=+—B XEEHESF
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Employee Rights and Welfare

The Group remains committed to equal treatment to all
employees, irrespective of age, gender, family status,
sexual orientation, ethnicity, creed, or religion. We
prioritise fostering an inclusive and diverse working
environment that values and respects every individual.

We have a zero-tolerance policy towards harassment or
discrimination in any form. We encourage employees to
promptly report any violations of the Code of Conduct to
the designated officer through established reporting
channels. Reported cases are thoroughly and fairly
examined, and appropriate disciplinary actions are taken
against those responsible for any breaches.

Qur Personnel Management System encompasses
comprehensive policies that cover various aspects, such
as recruitment, promotion, compensation, working hours,
rest periods, dismissal, benefits, and welfare measures.
We strictly adhere to the prevailing laws and regulations
governing these areas, ensuring compliance and fairness
in all our personnel management practices.

We understand the importance of recognising and
appreciating contributions of our employees as a means
of retaining talent. To support this, we offer competitive
remuneration packages and comprehensive welfare
benefits, encompassing statutory benefits, caring benefits,
and incentives. Remuneration packages are reviewed
once a year to ensure we meet or exceed the prevailing
market standards.

BE HERERRSE

BEEFRER

AEEBRRBRORRAFHEGMEEL T
Fie R REMR - EERRF - Bk E0%
RH - -BRMABEERTRZ TN TIERRE
REAEFH EAYBEF—@EA-

ZHEEMEANBRRRERIRNERBK
R-BZMEBETITRERENERRE kK
AEEERERREMERRETERNNTS - K
MeENRRERETE2A AENEES I H
FRARZRTRNEEARREENLCERD °

BETERANERRESETENGEERE
flanmeEE - E7 - MfE - IR KB BB &
BREMNER RABRBETELTENEA
EREMER HERAEEIEEEHER

T o

BMPRAMRBALEEEINERERNBE AL
MEZME - St RPRBERFINFHME
BREAMEN BEEZERN  BEREMNE
B RMSEFAFIGE  ARERRERME
B BBRITHTIHIRE

e Social insurance e Medical benefits e Year-end bonus
e RR kiR FRES
e Provident fund e Holiday benefits e Share option scheme
NES UNCEER R AR BT 2l
e Housing reserve fund e Vaccination holidays
EEFHEE THEERR
e Maternity leave e Qutstanding employee award
ER L eS8
e Statutory holidays e Team building activities
EE R & X 35 31 E B
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BE HERERRSE

The Group remains vigilant against child and forced
labour, actively collaborating with suppliers and
processing services providers to ensure that no instances
of such labour are present in their business operation.
Violations of our policies in this regard can lead to
termination of business relationships.

During the year, the Group was not aware of any instance
of non-compliance with laws and regulations having a
significant impact on the Group relating to employment
and labour practices. No incidents relating to use of child
or forced labour were found.

Adequate and the right type of training to employees is
crucial not only for advancement of individual careers but
also for the Group’s performance. The Group provides
appropriate training to its employees to equip them with
the required knowledge and skills. Our internal training
initiatives are designed to enhance technical
understanding of our products and improve sales
performance. By investing in these training programs, we
aim to empower our employees with tools and expertise
needed to excel in their roles and contribute to the
success of the Group.

A total of 1,209 hours of training were provided to
employees during the year. About 93% of male employees
and 100% of female employees received training and all of
management staff and about 94% of general staff were
recipients of training this year. During the year, average
training hours per year for male and female employees
were 25 hours and 10 hours respectively, and the
average training hours per year for management and
general employees were 31 hours and 14 hours
respectively. A well-established system is in place to
decide promotions and provide a clear career
development path to help employees grow along with the
Group.

Annual Report 2023
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Occupational Health and Safety

Due to the nature of our business, occupational hazards
are minimal. However, we remain committed to providing
a safe and healthy working environment for all employees.
We regularly communicate health and safety information
to keep employees informed about potential hazards.

In line with our ESG policy, we have implemented
appropriate safety measures in both office and warehouse
areas. These measures aim to mitigate any potential risks
and ensure the well-being of our employees. Our ongoing
efforts prioritise maintaining a secure and conducive
working environment for everyone.

During the year, there were no reports of any
work-related injuries and there have been no fatalities in
the past three years. The Group was not aware of any
incidents of non-compliance with relevant laws and
regulations* that could have had a significant impact on
the Group, relating to safety and protection of employees
from occupational hazards.

BE HERERRSE

BEXRERZR

HREMEBEEE BERESMTFEM-R
M- BANABOIRBABEEIRERZERE
FOTHERR -RAEHMEHRRERLEZE
BoEETHERBEENESE -

RERPORE L@ REBERR RFAEHR
RENPERBHERDEENRLEREE - %F
EREEERECMEERR BEREINE
- HZMIEEBEERMAAEE —ERE
BREITERER-

FA BESFSEAIERNBE=ZFHEE
BRTER AEEYEBNEFTANEBLER
REEEHCBREEEANREHYAERENE
TENERBBEIBREIRZF N -

Implement safety emergency plan
BEfTRE2 R

Keep the workplace clean
REFLIESEOF R R

Safety Measures

REER

4 List of applicable laws and regulations available in “Laws and Regulations”

CERRRRERNRBRERRIER]
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BE HERERRSE

In order to fulfil our commitment to community
engagement, we have partnered with the Heep Hong
Society to make meaningful contributions. During the year,
we actively participated in the Heep Hong Charity Sports
Fun Day and donated HK$60,000 to the ‘Children and
Youth Training Fund’. This fund supports timely
assessment and necessary training for children and youth
with special needs. Moving forward, we remain dedicated
to fulfilling our social responsibility and actively seek
opportunities to make a positive impact on the
community.

The Group recognises the profound impact of climate
change, both on its own business operations and on a
global scale. In response to the escalating threats posed
by climate change, we refer to the guidelines set forth by
the International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) S2
on Climate-related disclosure. This involves identifying and
assessing climate-related risks and opportunities in order
to effectively navigate this evolving landscape.

Climate-related Risks

R 15 46 B3 L B
Physical Risks  Acute
BEREAR Sk

RETEMASEE2 2K AR RMARBES
B -FLHEEENEM -FR RMAEERZ
HpFEAZEPRLEAD  YRAIRERTFIR
E 2 IBK60,0008 T - ZEET /ERFHRFEN
REME FREMENEOFGHENSEOFIX
RE-RERAR RMBEEZNIRNETHER
T BEBRSARE PULETREETE -

AEEHARRECHAFEBKEL R2IRE
BEMREZE -/ T EERRE TR
TRMEE - B FI2E T (B 5SS (FRS)
ARERBELENER — RERBBRE NS
B3 5] - 5 B ¥ A Al e 5F 4 S 1R A8 B R B B
B ANBABES NE S -

Potential Financial Impacts

¢ Increased severity of extreme weather e Reduced revenue and higher costs from negative impacts

events such as cyclones and floods
BRRE RN ERIERREGHREN

on workforce

HEHNNAAZEERRARL LKA LT

el e Reduced revenue from lower sales

HE TS B AR D

Chronic

R

e Rising mean temperatures
THRBLF

* Rising sea levels
BEELFR
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Climate-related Risks Potential Financial Impacts
R 15 48 B3 [ By BENBRE

Transition Risks Policy and Legal

B R R

BRRER

* Increased pricing of GHG emissions e Increased compliance related costs
RERBHEREE LA B #5842 A

e Enhanced obligations on climate-
related disclosure

R AR B R0 I B R AT SE A0

Technology

R

e Failure in new technology investment e Costs to adopt new practices and processes
MR E RN RAFMNEBENREFrOKAK

e Costs to transition to lower emissions e Additional costs of technology development investment
technology RiAZEKRENEINEF

3B IR 2 (K HE BRI 9 B AR

Market

™%

e Increased cost of raw materials * Reduced demand for products and services due to shift in
JR M R AR 32 00 consumer preferences

e Customer behaviour changing AR EEERITNEEMERERMBRET K TR
BEP{IRNE

Reputation

BE

e Shifts in consumer preferences ¢ Reduced revenue from decreased demand for products
HEEEHEEY Em®E R TEZIRA TR

e Increased stakeholder concern
BinEAEEY

2023 F 3R
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BE HERERRSE

Climate-related Opportunities

SRR R AR E

Opportunities Energy Source

¥ BER

e Use of new technologies
18 A 37 i

e Use of lower-emission sources of
energy

{5 PR K BE R R

Products and Services
ERRERE®

e Shift in consumer preferences
HEZEHHESZ
o Ability to diversify business activities

EEBEHZ LM

In our efforts to tackle climate-related risks, we have
established a comprehensive climate change policy that
outlines our commitments to minimise the impact of our

business operations on the environment.

Mitigation
=R

Adopt energy saving, waste reduction and
resource saving measures

PRERERRE - JRlRE R BRI HE

Reduce GHG emissions by developing
environmental targets
HITEERIE B IR ARE R =R EEHE L

Incorporate climate change considerations
into the procurement process

BRIEE(CEEMARBIET

Potential Financial Impacts

BEMBTE

e Reduced exposure to GHG emissions and therefore less
sensitivity to changes in cost of carbon
AR ERBHER  HmEEHRKAEHNGRE

¢ |ncreased revenue through demand for environment-related
products and services

FEBHRBABERMRBEOFREIMEA

SEHEREEBNRR  ZAEHE—B"E
T FY S IR B2 AE BOR - L e At 3 (P98 7T BE RIS
XBEBHRRNZEN AL -

Adaptation
i pe
Assess climate-related risks and

opportunities
BREERETE NG

Include climate-related issues into the
risk management process and business
continuity plans

1S RIEAER AR A R EIRE T &
ETSFHER 2

Climate Change Policy
RIRE ALK
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE-HE8RERRSE

We have set specific targets in different areas for HFIEMBEEESHRBENFEETREHER
reducing the environmental impacts of our business which FEEZBEZ K@ FrHBEZSEE-
we review on a regular basis.

Environmental Targets Status

RIZEEE ik R

e Replace all vehicles with electric cars by 2030 In budget planning stage
=R R A A ERERAREYE BRRETEENEER

e Achieve overall waste reduction Under progress
KB BRI RE HEITH

e Achieve overall rise in paper recycling rate Under progress
EREBRARBKE FA HEITH

e Procure office equipment with higher grades of Under progress
energy efficiency labels by 2025 EITH

CE AT CARBERSERIEERABNOHARE
Energy Consumption BEIR H #E

Electricity and gasoline are the main types of energy we T RAHARFEENTERRER -
consume. Office premises consumed 110,644 kWh of — =4 #AGFTEFE T110,644T HBEE H X
electricity, and vehicles consumed 19,587 litres of (REHIE T19,587AT A BB HEHEE B
gasoline in 2023, which means a total energy 1,027,390k &£ E &k % & & & F 77 K268%k &
consumption of 1,027,390 MJ and an intensity of 268 MJ EH « {1 =T — = F£ W £ R E & £ F 1 1
per m2. Our energy consumption increased by 8.3% 83%  FEARIIEEGERAZTRNFRERES
compared to the preceding year in 2023, as offices in & J] °

Shenzhen and Taiwan consumed more electricity during

the year.

Energy Consumption and Intensity
BERHEREE

268

1,200,000 o 300
— 1,000,000 250 ¥
=y TR
‘cuE 800,000 200 Sk
=31 582,461 029,071 g%
%m 600,000 : 150 2
2 23
£l 100 gk
S 400,000 El

200,000 50 &

0 0
2022 2023
=3 —E=F
I Flectricity H Gasoline e nergy intensity
BhH YU BEREE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BE HERERRSE

Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emissions

Our operations cause only indirect carbon emissions,
mainly from electricity consumed in office premises and
warehouses. However, the rise in frequency of extreme
weather events triggered by climate change is increasing
and that could pose safety risks to our employees,
delaying ongoing projects. We follow the Code of Practice
in Times of Typhoons and Rainstorms issued by the
Labour Department and consider climate-related issues
when formulating our business plans.

In 2023, the total GHG emissions amounted to
approximately 107 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent
(“tCO,e"), of which 52 tCO,e were direct emissions
(Scope 1), attributed to gasoline consumed by our
vehicles. The remaining 55 tCO,e of indirect carbon
emissions (Scope ) were on account of purchased
electricity. The emission intensity was 0.03 tCO,e per m?.

BERE([BERE])HK

HMeEEREERMBRFER TERBPR
SRk EERENES - AN - RIRE(L 3|
MBIm AR EFBRBET  AJREHE THEMX
ZEER - SETPHRBEH - BHMAEHE
AR ETEIRMN(EARBRRES T
THESTAD AZRRIRBEZERE -

TECCHF RERBEREERMIOTE_&
e E 8 (T _—S(LiREE])  Eho2ME — 4
EiREESERER(EBE—)  RREMOL
REHFEH M o 88 T55ME — (LR E 8 R
EWREE(BE =) DIRRABEET ) - BEX
BERBFHKOBE —_AtHKE= -

GHG Emission and Intensity
BERBIEREREZE
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Resources Management

The Group has accelerated efforts for reducing
environmental impacts of its operations. Our
well-articulated ESG policy helps ensure compliance with
environmental rules and regulations and promote resource
conservation.

Perfect Optronics Limited Annual Report 2023
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Water

Water consumed in our offices is tap water. In 2023, the
total water consumption was 342 tonnes, with water
intensity of 0.49 tonnes per m?. There was no issue in
sourcing water fit for the purpose.

BE HERERRSE

7k

B AEHEHENKBERK ZE==F >
/K42 2 AB342W8 - /KT E AT F 75 K0.401F -
FESKEE KB TR 77 N A R RE o

Water Consumption and Intensity

23R
BAXKERZE
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Consumption of packaging materials declined significantly
during the year. During the year, approximately 10 tonnes
of paper was used as packaging materials, a decrease of
83.1% compared to the last reporting year, because
demand for the Group’s health-related products declined
following the subsidence of the COVID-19 pandemic in
Hong Kong.

Implementing Green Office

Let S \llj

n nEUC Fﬂﬁ

The Group has pursued green office initiatives since

2017, in order to build an environment-friendly culture in
its organisation and operations.

BEMEEERFERKIE T FMRN - 41008
HMEAEREEME BEL—REFERD
83.1% B A& B20198 R E SR EBEM
B AEEREEBERNTRBATR-

BERSEHRAE

7«1»‘%@ BT -LtFEOCHTRERDER
CNEABREERBRNRIIRERXIE -
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BE HERERRSE

To raise employees’ awareness on resource conservation,
we distribute and paste stickers and posters about green
practices. We also adopt numerous resource conservation
and energy-saving measures, listed below.

Energy
Eb/ﬁ

e Switch off equipment when not in use
RARA L SE(E A P YR B

* Purchase office equipment with high
grades of efficiency labels
BEE RS EERA SRS

e Clean air conditioners periodically

EHBEZZER

Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment

BEEBRREFRE

* Adopt multi-function devices, such as
printing, scanning, fax photocopy

RAZIheER M - PIZTED - R
BE EH

Water
7K

e Periodically check taps to prevent leakage
TEHAREKEESE - HERRBIRK

During the vyear, the Group was not aware of any
incidents of non-compliance with laws and regulations®
that could have had a significant impact on the Group,
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste.

5 List of applicable laws and regulations available in “Laws and Regulations”

S ERRBRRERINKRERDERRIER]
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RREBEINERFRESSZ RMADBERKRY
BERSEMEMNME N SR - RATERNGFZ
MOERNMEAAERNIER  RBMT -

Paper

MR

® Use electronic storage medium to
reduce printing
FERAEFTA  BRAFIE

° Assign a designated area for paper recycling
5 7E IR0 BE AR [ Ui [ 13

e Collection tray for waste copy paper used
on one side so it is available for printing on
the other side

FEATENHSS R B MR - WEEFIEI—E

HIAR R AfE BT E)

Plastic

2H

e Use reusable tableware to avoid disposable
utensils
ERRIERE AN - BRfEA—RIE
EEREA

Miscellaneous

FIR

¢ Design publications with fewer varmnishes
and coatings
R BERSERML Y

e Use web-conferencing to minimise
business trips
ERBEEE RO BEBIRT

® Reuse stationery
BAXA

FR AEEYTANBEAEEERIEER
BN RAKRELHESRELEREMESA
YRR RHAEBERERT ENEEERS
B



Environ

Air Emissions and Waste

The Group’s gasoline consumption (private vehicles)
generates approximately 0.3 kg sulphur oxides (“SO,”),
9.7 kg nitrogen oxides (“NO,”) and 0.7 kg particulate
matters (“PM”).

We are a predominantly office-based business and the

mental, Social and Governance Report
RE-HE8RERRSE

ERHFHRERY
AEBEHUHER(LRE)ELEKNOIRTREA

e (THEfkn))  o7AFRALN (AAL
W1) RO.7TA TR F HORL ([48)% B0k )

BMEBURREXEBAET H-ELNER

only waste we generate is wastepaper. During the year, a 24K - F R - HIEFE T482_A T 4K - FE&E

total of 482 kg of waste paper were generated. The
waste intensity was 0.13 kg per m?. Our operations do
not generate hazardous waste.

MEERE T FHAKOABAT - KM EETE
TEEERED-

Air Emissions
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RIE-HER
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B E

The Group has established and implemented internal AR&EESERA IR L E N ZBIRE
policies in all departments to ensure adequate action in  (FH R EIBIE HEeLEAAE @ HEWH
respect of each ESG aspect and compliance with all {T&) REBEFHREEAEELER - FHEY
applicable laws and regulations. The list of major st R EEz|EMT

applicable laws and regulations is as follows:

Aspect Applicable Laws and Regulations Section/Remarks
=) BREERER B M

Product Responsibility e The Trade Descriptions Ordinance OUR OPERATION
EmER CEEL YN BMMEE

Anti-corruption
RES

Employment
BR

Occu&ational Health and Safety e
BERERZ2

Environmental Management

RAER

The Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance

(IEAEH (FLE) &1

Product Quality Law of the PRC
(FEARKEABEREEE)

The Civil Code

(hPEARLRBRZER)

The PRC Customer Rights and Interests Protection Law

(FEARANBEEEZREREL)

Prevention of Bribery Ordinance

€7 1L B BR 581D

The Competition Ordinance

(BE D)

Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the PRC
(REARAMNBRTEEHFEE)
Anti-Money Laundering Law of the PRC
(PEARARNEREEE)

Criminal Law of the PRC
(hEARLRERE)

The Company Law of the PRC
(hEARELHERADE)

The Anti-Corruption Act of Taiwan
AEN(ETAF D

Employment Ordinance

(R

Minimum Wage Ordinance

(ZETE B

Labour Law of the PRC
(hEARLNEL L)

Labour Contract Law of the PRC
(FEARENELEHSRE)
Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour of the PRC
FEARANBEMNRIEREIRE)
The Regulation on the Administration of Housing Accumulation
(ER DB EREHD

The Social Insurance Law of the PRC
(PpEARLRB S RERZE)

The Labour Standards Act of Taiwan
REN(EBHEEE)

The Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance

(BERE LRGN

Employees’ Compensation Ordinance

(BEME D)

Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases
(hZ ARLRREBERBNEE)

The Occupational Safety and Health Act of Taiwan
REN(REREHLEE)

Air Pollution Gontrol Ordinance

(ERTRE BIHEH)

Water Pollution Control Ordinance

(KB B 51

Ozone Layer Protection Ordinance

(RERLE KN

Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Environment Pollution caused by Solid Wastes
(hEARLATRERENSERENRE)

Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC
(hEARLRBERRSENRE)

Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC
(hEARLFMEKFEDRE)

The Environmental Protection Law of the PRC
(PEARKANBERZREE)

The Law of the People’s Republic of China on Environment Impact Assessment
(PZEARANBEREY EFBE)

OUR OPERATION
ERMeEE

OUR PEOPLE
EMHET

OUR ENVIRONMENT
BRWNRE

Annual Report 2023
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Workforce
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BER

Community
HE
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Hong Kong
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BE HERERRSE

*

Total Resources Consumption (MJ)
Electricity (KWh)
Gasoline (litres)
Tap water (tonnes)
Energy intensity (MJ/m?)

Water intensity (tonnes/m?)
Packaging materials

BEREFBE(KEER)
EN(TEH)
YR (R F)

B 3K (HE)
ER%E
KEE /A K)
KEE (M, 375 K)
B 7R

Paper (tonnes) 7 (W8)
Air Emissions BER B
Sulphur oxides (SO,) (kg) ety (2mr)
- Nitrogen oxides (NO,) (kg) RENW (D7)
5 Particulate matters (PM) (kg) BEMA(AT)
£ m Waste BEY
= Paper waste (kg) BREZED(DT)
5 Paper waste intensity (kg/m? BMREENTE
(R /M AXK)
Greenhouse Gases Emissions and BREREANEREBE"
Intensity*
Total GHG emissions (tCO,€) RERBHERAE
(B tREE)
Scope 1 (tCO,¢) &E—
(E=&LHRE =)
Scope 2 (tCO,e) BE—
(B_EtREE)
GHG emission intensity (tCO,e/m?) BERBHENEE
(B-—gthgs,/
M K)
Notes: * B &

Calculation methods used for carbon emissions:

Carbon emissions are calculated using “Greenhouse Gas
Protocol” published by the World Resources Institute and
World Business Council on Sustainable Development

The sources of published emission factors for the reporting
of carbon emissions are:

(@)

(o)

2022 Sustainability Report of CLP

“Guidelines to Account for and Report on
Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Removals for
Buildings (Commercial, Residential or Institutional
Purposes) in Hong Kong” published by the
Environmental Protection Department

“Notice on Doing a Good Job in 2023-2025
Reporting and Management of Greenhouse Gas
Emissions of Power Generation Enterprises”
published by the Ministry of Ecology and
Environment of the People’s Republic of China ({#
R 472023-2025F B BT E B X R ERBH MR
EEBREEIENRM)
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KPIs
BRENER

Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
BRARE HERERARERIER 10

Governance Structure

EREY

Mandatory
Disclosure

BHEE

Reporting Principles
& R A

Mandatory
Disclosure

BHEE

Reporting Boundary
REHE

Mandatory
Disclosure

BHEE

A statement from the board containing the following elements: Board Statement
EZgERHEFTINE: Exg2H

(i) a disclosure of the board’s oversight of ESG issues;
REESQURE HERERFENEE:

(i) the board’s ESG management approach and strategy, including the process used to evaluate, prioritise
and manage material ESG-related issues (including risks to the issuer’s businesses); and
EZENRE HERERERHARER BTG BEAHIREREZNRSE HERER
HREE(BEHETAZBORR)MNBRE K

(i) how the board reviews progress made against ESG-related goals and targets with an explanation of
how they relate to the issuer’s businesses.

EZNAERRE HeRERNHEERRIER URBMWESRTAREABEE

A description of, or an explanation on, the application of the following Reporting Principles in the Reporting Guide
preparation of the ESG report: wEES
HAIBREERHERE HERERRERFEANUTRERE

Materiality: The ESG report should disclose: (i) the process to identify and the criteria for the selection

of material ESG factors; (i) if a stakeholder engagement is conducted, a description of
significant stakeholders identified, and the process and results of the issuer’s stakeholder

engagement.

BEN: RE HERERREERE  (BAEERE HERERARZNARREEELA
ZMER: ((NBTARETROHELZE BRANEERHENRLRETARHE
SENBERER

Quantitative:  Information on the standards, methodologies, assumptions and/or calculation tools used,
and source of conversion factors used, for the reporting of emissions/energy
consumption (where applicable) should be disclosed.

Eflt: FRERERE SRER(MER) MANEE 7% BRE/JHEIANER
URFERNEARINRRETHRE -

Consistency: ~ The issuer should disclose in the ESG report any changes to the methods or KPIs used,
or any other relevant factors affecting a meaningful comparison.

—Ht: BOARERE HERELRETRESRH AEZABRENEENEE (WE) I A
MEMTYEFERLBNHEBRE -

A narrative explaining the reporting boundaries of the ESG report and describing the process used to Reporting Boundary and

identify which entities or operations are included in the ESG report. If there is a change in the scope, the Period

issuer should explain the difference and reason for the change. REHERAR

BERE HERERRENERGE NEAKEPLERREBHARE HEREARENE
B-ORABEE BOAERBEZRNGENES
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KPIs Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guide Requirements
BRENER BRARE HERERBERIER

A. Environmental
A BE

Aspect A1: Emissions
EEAT: HBY

General Disclosure Information on:
-REE ERERARRZERBHR MAKRLHNES FEREEEEVNELESN:
a) the policies; and
BE R
b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
ETHETABEAZENEREERAGINEH -
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

KPI' A1.1 The types of emissions and the respective emissions data.
BRENGEEAMT  HREEREBEREE -

KPI' A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions (in
tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

BREMERAL2  ER(BE)RERAZ (MR -) RERBEHNE AR H) R (PER)Z
A GESEN BRIXMEFE) -

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g.
per unit of production volume, per facility).
MRERERAMS MELREEEVEE UMAE)R(MEREE (MAGESEN  §RRE

i)

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
MRERERAMG MELEZSEEVEE UMAE)R(MEREE (MASESEN §RRE

HE) -

KPI A1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
BRERERAMSL  HAMITIMNERARRAENELERARANTR -
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BE HERERRSE

KPIs Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
RENER BRXABE HERERRERESIER B/ fEE
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a OUR ENVIRONMENT
description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. HMMRE
BRERERAG HIRBAEREZEEEVNAE RERMTUOREERRAZIELE — Addessing Climate
EREROTR - Change
JES R ARE
— Resources
Management
BRER

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

EEA2: ERER

General Disclosure Policies on efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw materials. OUR ENVIRONMENT
-RKE ERERER(BEER  KREMEMH)MBE - HAMERR
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in ~ OUR ENVIRONMENT

total (KWh in’000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility). % {1 #3235
BRERERAN  BEHNASHEER /SMESR(ME fh) @RS TETRETE) — Resources

REEMUABESEN  BERGTE) - Management
BRER
PERFORMANCE DATA
SUMMARY
YEBERRHBE
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per OUR ENVIRONMENT
facility). BMNRE
BREMNEGAN2 BFRKEREE(WASESSEM §EREHE) - —  Resources
Management
BRER
PERFORMANCE DATA
SUMMARY
YEBERRHBE
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve OUR ENVIRONMENT
them. BMHRE
BRENEEALS AR VNERERAYREERARIELEERAEMOLR - —  Addressing Climate
Change
EHRREL
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, OUR ENVIRONMENT
water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. HMMERE
MREREEAL  HRKBERKRELUEEMEE  URMTIMAKRZEERAZLEL — Resources
ERES e 0Pz 0 Management
BRER

The Company considers
the Group’s domestic
water consumption is
purely for sanitisation
purpose, and our
employees will remain
cautious in identifying
water leaks and
wastage.
ARARBARENE
/E)EWK EEZRAE
BMME TRREER
R BRKRRE
RIKHER
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KPIs Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guide Requirements
HEERER BRARE HERERBERIER
KPI A2.5 Total packaging materials used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if applicable,
with reference to per unit produced.
MRERERA2S SRmMBeEMHNEs UBAE) R(WER)BEEENEE

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
EEAS: RERAARER

General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuers’ significant impact on the environment and natural resources.

—-REE REZBTAHRERRARERERERY ENHE -

KPI' A3.1 Description of significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to manage them.

BREWERAT HAXBEPHRERRAERNEAYENERREREHTENTY -

Aspect A4: Climate Change
BEAL: RIRE1L

General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and
-REE those which may impact, the issuer.
HAREHEERATREHETAEBEYENEARGHEBEENRE -

KPI Ad.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and
those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.

BRENERAMI  HIESRUREHETAELYENEARGERBESEE REHGTH-
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KPlIs
BRENESR

B. Social
BAE

BE HERERRSE

Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guide Requirements
BRARE HERERRERIER

Aspect B1: Employment

BEB1: ERE

General Disclosure

—-REE

Information on:

ERFHERE REREA TERE BRY TEHE Sl RERAREGEBREMNN

a) the policies; and
W& R
b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
ETHETABEAZENEREERAGINEH -
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

KPI B1.1
group and geographical region.

BRaNEEs. KU REEN(NE2RAFRE) FRAGNRGEISNERLH -

KPI B1.2
B ANRERB2

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region.
B ERERRGRESHEERELE -

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

EEB2: gEER2

General Disclosure

—-REE

Information on:
BFARGEZ2TIERERREREE
a) the policies; and
W& R
b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
ETHBTABEAZENEREZERANNER -
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from occupational hazards.

ERREEREN:

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past three

years including the reporting year.

BREMERB BE-FREERFE)SFAICHMARRIL K.

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury.
BREEER2 HEIBBXIFAL-
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, and how they

are implemented and monitored.

BMRENESRBS HIMRANBERRAR2EE UREBERTRER L.

Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full- or part-time), age

Section/Remarks

BE

OUR PEOPLE
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EEEMNREMN
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PERFORMANCE DATA
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BE HERERRSE

KPIs Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guide Requirements
BRENER BRARE HERERBERIER

Aspect B3: Development and Training
EEB3: #EREN

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at work. Description of
-REE training activities.
BRRFEESRITIERENMERRENIE - HlEFNED -

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category (e.g.
senior management, middle management).
MRERERB RUFIRESEM(MERERE +RERE)EINIIEEENL

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee
category.
BRENEEB2 RUFIREEEGNES SEEETHIIM TR -

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
B4 : 5 THE

General Disclosure Information on:
—-REE BRMIEETREHLSIH
a) the policies; and
BE R
b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
ETHETABEAZENEREERAGNEH -
relating to prevention of child and forced labour.

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and forced

labour.
BRENEEBLT  HORIBEENNEEABEETRARNST -

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered.

BRENESRBL2 HWAEERERABARERABELMRRO SR -
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BE HERERRSE

Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guide Requirements
BRARE HERERRERIER

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

EmBs : HEEERE

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.
ERHEEERNREERLGRBREE

—-REE

KPI B5.1

R E NI RS

KPI B5.2

BRI EIEB5.2

KPI B5.3

PR ENEEBS.

KPI B5.4

BIREMIEIEBS4

Number of suppliers by geographical region.
BRSSO REFHE -

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers where
the practices are being implemented, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

HAEHEEAMERNEN RMARTERENNRERERE  LRBERTR
ERN%.

Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks along the
supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.
HAEABRREEGERONRERLGRARNES ARBBERTRER
FiVE

Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable products and
services when selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and monitored.
HAEREHEEBRESRAEREARRBNOEN  UAREBRTRERS
)
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KPlIs
BRENESR

Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guide Requirements
BRARE HERERBERIER

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

EEB6: EmAR

General Disclosure

—-REE

Information on:

FEMRHEERMBBOREEZSE BES BRRERLBEEARBRTEN

a) the policies; and

HE R

b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
ETHETABEAZENEREERAGINEH -

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products and services

provided and methods of redress.

KPI B6.1

R EMIEEB6.1

KPI B6.2

BREMIEEB6.2

KPI B6.3

BREANEIEB6.3

KPI B6.4

BRENEIEB6A

KPI B6.5

PR ENIEEBS

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and
health reasons.
EEREREERARTRZ2EREEMARKNBE AL -

Number of products and service related complaints received and how they are
dealt with.
BEEEREGRRBORFEEUARES T L -

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual property
rights.

Wit EgERRENIERFBNED

Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.
HLEEREBERERBKER -

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

R REERRERLBER D RABRTRER A
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BRARE HERERRERIER

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

BEB7: R&S

General Disclosure

—-REE

Information on:

BREMLLSAE 9%

HEFREBEM :

a) the policies; and

HE: R

b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
ETHBETAREAZENEREERANINESN -
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

KPI B7.1

BREMIEEBTA

KPI B7.2

BR AN EIEBT .2

KPI B7.3
FAS A MIERBT.3

Aspect B8: Community Investment

EmB8: HERE

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the

issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the outcomes of the
cases.

RERAABETAZHREERLYCERANESHARMINEE RFALER -

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, how they are

implemented and monitored.
A ERRRBREF URBBATRERS -

Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff.
HilMEERE IRENREFHE -

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities where the issuer
operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the communities’ interests.

BHENHE2ERTREEMAHERENRRELBEDGZRURNEMIUER -

—-REE

KPI B8.1
R EMIEEBSA

KPI B8.2
BREMIEEBS.2

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, labour
needs, health, culture, sport).
EIEHEE(WHE BEFH SI5R BR X BF)-

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.

EEIBREMHAER(WEBEHER) -
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Mr. Cheng Wai Tak, aged 54, was appointed as director
of the Company on 13 June 2013. Mr. Cheng is a
founder of the Group. He has been in the business of
trading TFT-LCD components for over 20 years and has
established close relationships with various suppliers. He
graduated from Hong Kong Baptist University with a
bachelor of science in combined sciences in mathematical
science degree. Pending the outcome of the legal
proceedings of the Petition, Mr. Cheng has been
suspended from his duties as an executive Director, the
chairman of the Board, the chief executive officer of the
Company and the director of Perfect Display Limited, a
major subsidiary of the Company, effective from
25 September 2020. He continues to serve the Company
as a consultant to bring in businesses and maintain the
relationship with business partners. He is also a
substantial shareholder of the Company. Save as
disclosed above, Mr. Cheng is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Liu Ka Wing, aged 51, was appointed as an executive
Director on 18 June 2013. He joined the Group in
November 2008. Mr. Liu has about 29 years of
experience in accounting. Prior to joining the Group, he
worked in various certified public accountants firm and
corporations, responsible for general accounting functions.
He is responsible for the Group’s finance and
administrative functions. Pending the outcome of the legal
proceedings of the Petition, Mr. Liu has been suspended
from his duties as an executive Director effective from
25 September 2020 and he continues to serve the
Company as the financial controller. Mr. Liu is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Tse Ka Wing, aged 48, joined the Group in May 2013
and is the Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer
of the Company. He was appointed as an executive
Director with effect from 26 March 2015. He is primarily
responsible for the financial management, supervision of
financial reporting and corporate finance matters, and
company secretarial matters of the Group. Mr. Tse
graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong with
a bachelor of business administration degree. He is an
associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Tse is a professional
accountant with over 26 vyears of experience in
accounting and had previously served as a senior
manager of an international firm of certified public
accountants. Pending the outcome of the legal
proceedings of the Petition, Mr. Tse has been suspended
from his duties as an executive Director effective from
25 September 2020 and he continues to serve the
Company as the chief financial officer and the company
secretary.
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Mr. Chang Huan Chia, aged 46, was appointed as an
executive Director on 25 September 2020. He obtained a
bachelor degree in electrical engineering in Yuan Ze
University in Taiwan in 2001 and has over 19 years of
experience in the technology and electronics industry.
Prior to joining the Group in September 2016, Mr. Chang
was a field application engineer and served as an
assistant manager in HannStar Display Corporation and a
project manager in Fitipower Integrated Technology Inc.
He is responsible for supervising the sales teams of the
Group. He is the chief executive officer and a director of
Perfect Intelligent Technology Limited, a subsidiary of the
Group. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Group and the responsible person of a Taiwan branch of
the Group.

Mr. Wong Yik Chung John, aged 57, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 20 January 2014
and is responsible for providing independent advice on
material issues of the Company. Pending the outcome of
the legal proceedings of the Petition, Mr. Wong has been
suspended from his duties as an independent non-
executive Director effective from 25 September 2020.
Mr. Wong graduated from the University of Melbourne,
Australia with a degree of bachelor of commerce. He was
a member of the Australian Society of Certified Practising
Accountants and was admitted as an associate of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in
April 1997. Mr. Wong has more than 30 years of
experience in auditing and corporate finance work. Over
the past three years, he served as independent
non-executive director for EcoGreen International Group
Limited (stock code: 2341) and Jinke Smart Services
Group Co., Ltd. (stock code: 9666), which are listed on
the Stock Exchange, and Beijing Capital Land Ltd. (stock
code: 2868), which was listed on the Stock Exchange
and privatised in September 2021. He is currently serving
as an independent non-executive director for Xinda
Investment Holdings Limited (stock code: 1281), which is
listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Wong Chi Chiu, aged 53, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 20 January 2014
and is responsible for providing independent advice on
material issues of the Company. Pending the outcome of
the legal proceedings of the Petition, Mr. Wong has been
suspended from his duties as an independent
non-executive Director effective from 25 September 2020.
Mr. Wong graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with a degree of bachelor of engineering in
electrical engineering. He further received his master of
science in engineering (building services engineering)
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degree from The University of Hong Kong. Mr. Wong was
registered as a chartered engineer (CEng) at the
Engineering Council in April 1998 and was registered as a
registered professional engineer in electrical discipline at
the Engineers Registration Board in July 1999. He has
been a member of The Institution of Engineering and
Technology since February 1998 and the Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers since May 1998. Mr. Wong has
over 30 years of experience in the engineering industry.

Mr. Kan Man Wai, aged 60, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 1 January 2020
and is responsible for providing independent judgment on
issues of strategy, performance, resources and standard
of conduct of the Company. He is the acting chairman of
the Board. He is also the chairman of the remuneration
committee of the Company and a member of the audit
committee and nomination committee of the Company.
Mr. Kan obtained a Diploma in Management Studies
awarded by The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and
the Hong Kong Management Association, and
subsequently obtained a Master’s Degree of Business
Administration in International Management from the Royal
Melbourne Institute of Technology in Australia. He has
over 30 years of experience in the electronics
manufacturing services industry, including over 20 years
of experience at management level of sales and business
development and 4 years of experience at management
level of business operations. Mr. Kan is a Vice President
of Business Development for Great China and Korea of
Sanmina Corporation, a leading electronics manufacturing
services provider in the world that serves original
equipment manufacturers in  communications, medical,
automotive, industrial and defense and aerospace fields
which is headquartered in San Jose, California, USA and
is listed on the Nasdag Stock Market. In his current
position, he is responsible for managing sales business,
exploring new business and introducing mergers and
acquisitions.

Mr. Cho Chi Kong, aged 71, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 1 January 2020
and is responsible for providing independent judgment on
issues of strategy, performance, resources and standard
of conduct of the Company. He is also the chairman of
the nomination committee of the Company and a member
of the audit committee and remuneration committee of the
Company. Mr. Cho has extensive experience in corporate
law, legal and regulatory compliance and prevention and
detection of fraud. Mr. Cho is a Non-practicing Barrister
of the Honorable Society of Lincoln’s Inn United Kingdom,
the High Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region, the Supreme Court of Australian Capital Territory
and the High Court of Australia. He is a Certified Fraud
Examiner of the Association of Certified Fraud Examiner
and a former President of the Hong Kong Chapter of the
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Association of Certified Fraud Examiner, and is also a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
Mr. Cho has served as adviser and in-house legal
consultant on legal and compliance matters for
companies in Hong Kong and London. Mr. Cho taught
post-graduate courses in corporate governance and
regulatory framework as a Professor of Practice (Law) at
the School of Accounting and Finance, The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University before he retired in July 2020. He
has also lectured at universities in Hong Kong and
Mainland China on corporate law, securities law and
business law. Over the past three years, Mr. Cho served
as an independent non-executive director for Mansion
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 8456) from
June 2019 to May 2021, which is listed on GEM of the
Stock Exchange, and GSN Corporations Limited (formerly
known as “New Western Group Limited”) (stock code:
8242) from June 2021 to December 2021, the listing of
shares of which on GEM of the Stock Exchange was
cancelled in May 2022.

Ms. Hsu Wai Man Helen, aged 54, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 25 September
2020 and is responsible for providing independent
judgment on issues of strategy, performance, resources
and standard of conduct of the Company. She is the
chairperson of the audit committee of the Company. She
is also a member of the nomination committee and
remuneration committee of the Company. Ms. Hsu
graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong with
a bachelor degree in business administration. Ms. Hsu is
a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a member of the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. She has more
than 20 years of experience in accounting. Ms. Hsu had
been working with Ernst & Young for 18 years and was a
partner of Ernst & Young before she retired from the firm
in February 2011. Ms. Hsu is currently an independent
non-executive director of Richly Field China Development
Limited (stock code: 313), China Display Optoelectronics
Technology Holdings Limited (stock code: 334), Perfect
Medical Health Management Limited (stock code: 1830)
and Beijing Gas Blue Sky Holdings Limited (stock code:
6828), the shares of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. Over the past three vyears,
Ms. Hsu was an independent non-executive director of
Harmonicare Medical Holdings Limited (stock code: 1509)
from August 2020 to March 2021, the listing of the
shares of which on the Stock Exchange was cancelled in
March 2021.

Note: The executive Directors are also the senior management of the
Company.
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The Directors present their report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2023 (the “Year”).

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as
an exempted company with limited liability on 13 June
2013 under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.
The Company’s shares were listed on the GEM (“GEM”) of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 7 February 2014 (the “Listing Date”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set
out in Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group’s principal activities during the Year.

Business review of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2023 as required by Schedule 5 to the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a description
of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group
and an indication of likely future development in the
Group’s business, can be found in the Management
Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 7 to 20 of this
annual report which forms part of this directors’ report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the Year by
operating segment is set out in Note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

To help conserve the environment, the Group has
implemented policies to encourage its employees for the
efficient use of energy and resources. Besides, the Group
has internal control measures in place to ensure that its
processing service providers comply with the relevant
environmental laws and regulations.

In addition, details regarding the Group’s environmental
policies and performance can be found in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report set out on
pages 40 to 77 of this annual report.
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The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) do
not recommend the payment of a dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

There were no movements in the Company’s share capital
during the Year.

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31
December 2023 amounted to approximately
HK$77,458,000.

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during
the Year amounted to HK$60,000 (2022: HK$61,000).

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association and there was no
restriction against such rights under the laws of Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group, as extracted
from the consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the years ended 31 December 2019,
31 December 2020, 31 December 2021, 31 December
2022 and 31 December 2023, is set out on page 176 of
this annual report. This summary does not form part of the
audited financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company
did not redeem any of its shares, and neither did the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchase or sell any
of the Company’s shares.
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The Company has a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) which was approved and adopted
pursuant to the written resolutions of the sole
Shareholder passed on 20 January 2014 (the “Adoption
Date”). The following is a summary of the principal terms
of the Share Option Scheme.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to
provide the Company with a flexible means of giving
incentive to, rewarding, remunerating, compensating
and/or providing benefits to the Participants (as
defined below) and for such other purposes as the
Board may approve from time to time.

On and subject to the terms of the Share Option
Scheme and the requirements of the GEM Listing
Rules, the Board may, at its discretion, invite:

(i) any director of each member of the Group or
of any entity in which any member of the
Group holds any equity interest (“Invested
Entity”);

(i) any employee (whether full-time or part-time) of
each member of the Group or of any Invested
Entity (the “Employee”);

(i) any discretionary objects of a discretionary trust
established by any Employee or any director
of each member of the Group or of any
Invested Entity;

(iv) a company beneficially owned by any Employee
or any director of each member of the Group
or of any Invested Entity;

(v)  any consultant, professional and other adviser
to each member of the Group or any Invested
Entity (including their employees or executives
or any persons, firms or companies proposed
to be appointed for providing such services);

(vi) any chief executives or substantial shareholders
of the Company;

(vi) any supplier, customer, service provider,

business or joint venture partner, contractor,
of the Group or any Invested Entity; and
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(viii) any person who, at the absolute discretion of
the Board, has contributed or may contribute
to the Group or any Invested Entity, provided
that the Board may at its absolute discretion
determine whether or not one falls within the
above categories,

(together, the “Participants” and each a
“Participant”), to take up share options to subscribe
for shares of the Company at a price determined in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme.

In determining the basis of eligibility of each
Participant, the Board would take into account such
factors as the Board may at its discretion consider
appropriate.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a period of 10 years commencing on
the Adoption Date and ended on 19 January 2024.

The period as the Board may in its absolute
discretion determine and specify in relation to any
particular option holder in his option agreement
during which the option may be exercised (subject
to such restriction on exercisability specified therein),
which shall be not greater than the period
prescribed by the GEM Listing Rules from time to
time (which is, as at the date of adoption of the
Share Option Scheme, a period of 10 years from the
date of the granting of the option).

The offer of a grant of share options may be
accepted within the period from the date on which
such offer is made by the Board in accordance with
the Share Option Scheme to such date as the
Board may determine and specify in the letter where
such offer is made to a Participant in such form as
the Board may from time to time determine, upon
payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total
by the grantee.
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The subscription price in respect of each Share
issued pursuant to the exercise of options granted
hereunder shall be a price solely determined by the
Board and notified to a Participant and shall be at
least the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on
the date of offer, which must be a business
day;

(i) a price being the average of the closing price
of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5
business days immediately preceding the date
of offer; and

(i)  the nominal value of a Share.

The total number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company shall not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue
immediately following completion of the Placing and
the Capitalisation Issue (as defined in the
prospectus of the Company dated 24 January 2014
(the “Prospectus”)) (being 132,000,000 Shares). The
Company may renew this limit at any time, subject
to shareholders’ approval and the issue of a circular
and in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules
provided that the number of shares to be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under all the share option
schemes does not exceed 30% of the shares in
issue from time to time.

As at the date of this report, the Company had
132,000,000 share options available to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme, which represented
approximately 8.9% of the Company’s shares in
issue as at that date.
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The total number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to each
Participant under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company
(including both exercised and outstanding Options)
in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
total number of Shares in issue. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to
any of their respective associates, are subject to
approval in advance by the independent non-
executive Directors. In addition, any share options
granted to a substantial Shareholder or an
independent non-executive Director, or to any of
their respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time or with
an aggregate value (based on the price of the
Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of
HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting.

No share option has been granted under the Share
Option Scheme since its adoption.

Save for the Share Option Scheme, at no time during the
Year was the Company, its parent company, or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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The directors of the Company during the Year and up to
the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Cheng Wai Tak (suspended)
Mr. Liu Ka Wing (suspended)
Mr. Tse Ka Wing (suspended)
Mr. Chang Huan Chia

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Wong Yik Chung John (suspended)
Mr. Wong Chi Chiu (suspended)

Mr. Kan Man Wai (Acting Chairman)
Mr. Cho Chi Kong

Ms. Hsu Wai Man Helen

By virtue of article 108 of the articles of association of the
Company, Ms. Hsu Wai Man Helen, Mr. Wong Yik Chung
John and Mr. Wong Chi Chiu will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. Ms. Hsu Wai Man
Helen will, being eligible, offer herself for re-election.
Mr. Wong Yik Chung John and Mr. Wong Chi Chiu do not
offer themselves for re-election and shall retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, as they would like to
devote more time to focus on other work engagements
and further pursue other business interests.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
25 September 2020, pending the outcome of the legal
proceedings of the petition dated 25 September 2019
issued by the High Court of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region which was taken out by the
Securities and Futures Commission against certain
directors of the Company, Mr. Cheng Wai Tak, Mr. Liu Ka
Wing, Mr. Tse Ka Wing, Mr. Wong Yik Chung John and
Mr. Wong Chi Chiu have been suspended from their
duties as Directors with effect from 25 September 2020.

The Company has received annual confirmation of
independence from all the existing independent non-
executive Directors pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules. As at the date of this report, the Board
considers them to be independent.
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Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years,
except terminated by either party giving not less than
three months’ prior written notice to the other. They are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
Company’s annual general meeting in accordance with the
Company'’s articles of association.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for
a term of three years, except terminated by not less than
three months’ notice in writing served by either party on
the other. They are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the Company’s annual general meeting.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable
within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

In order to attract and retain high quality staff and to
enable smooth operation within the Group, the Group
offers competitive remuneration packages (with reference
to market conditions and individual qualifications and
experience) and various in-house training courses. The
remuneration packages are subject to review on a regular
basis.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
remuneration committee of the Company, having regard to
the Group’s operating results, market competitiveness,
individual performance and achievement, to the Board for
determination.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest
paid individuals are set out in Note 34 and Note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.
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No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company, any of its subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its
parent company was a party and in which a director of
the Company or his connected entities had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the Year or at any time during the Year.

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association, every
director of the Company shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
losses or liabilities which he may sustain or incur in or
about the execution of the duties of his office or
otherwise in relation thereto. The Company maintains
directors and officers liability insurance, which gives
appropriate cover for any legal action brought against its
directors. The level of the coverage is reviewed annually.

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior
management are set out on pages 78 to 81 of this annual
report.

During the Year, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by
the Group.

Based on the information available to the Company and
within the knowledge and belief of the Directors, none of
the Directors or the controlling shareholders of the
Company (as defined under the GEM Listing Rules) have
any business or interest which competes or may compete
with the business of the Group, or have any other conflict
of interest which any such person has or may have with
the Group throughout the year ended 31 December
2023.
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As at 31 December 2023, interests and short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”)) held by the Directors and chief
executives of the Company which have been notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which were taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO) or have been
entered in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise have
been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the standard of dealings by directors set out
in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules were as
follows:
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FETBRABRARR K EMEMBE LB (T
ERBHFNBEGKATESRBEEN]) EXV
B, BEROEREST  BERESES
NEAEIEM EXVEB BTN FE8n B BT A
BARARNAEBRANEZLIAR (BEFSIR
BESLHEGRAINZEGRIEE E W RIE
BERNEDZRAR)  HRIEEHFRBAEEME
352K FTIRE - AR SR EZ G FTigm Z A2 it
MR EAR » SR BEGEM £ R B £5.46%
S567TIEFMB v EETETR G ZEAMMRTE ' A
HNEARRAIRBIATHER AR MT

Percentage of
Number of the Company’s

Name of Director Capacity shares held issued shares
P NCINEE - Sy
Exps 87} ARG EE R E 2L
Mr. Cheng Wai Tak Interest in controlled corporation 923,427,151 62.24%
BREELE R EEER (Note) (Fff 5%)
Beneficial owner 2,220,000 0.15%
BEHEERA
925,647,151 62.39%
Mr. Kan Man Wai Beneficial owner 320,000 0.02%
B £ EmEA A

Note:

These 923,427,151 shares are held by Winful Enterprises Limited (“Winful
Enterprises”), which in turn is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Cheng
Wai Tak. As such, Mr. Cheng Wai Tak is deemed under the SFO to be
interested in these 923,427,151 shares held by Winful Enterprises.

MR

% %923,427,151 % f% 19 FAWinful Enterprises Limited ([ Winful
Enterprises |) # % » MWinful Enterprisesfl S0 1B £ 2 E &
Enfs - FHit BEEHFRPERY BEELEHKE
HWinful EnterprisesFT % A 8% 923,427, 151D F HEH
RS o
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company had
registered an interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
required to be entered in the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or which
were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the standard of dealings by
directors set out in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

So far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 December
2023, other than the Directors and chief executives of the
Company, the following persons/entities have an interest
or a short position in the shares or the underlying shares
of the Company which were required to be disclosed to
the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO or which were required to be recorded in the
register of the Company required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO:

Name Nature of interests

7 HmE

Winful Enterprises

HEERRA

Note: Mr. Cheng Wai Tak is deemed under the SFO to be interested in
these 923,427,151 shares held by Winful Enterprises.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, no
other person had any interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which were
required to be disclosed to the Company under Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were required to
be recorded in the register of the Company required to be
kept under section 336 of the SFO.
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No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the Year.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, sales to the
Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 40.0% (2022: 38.3%) of the total sales for
the year and sales to the largest customer included
therein amounted to approximately 21.1% (2022: 12.2%).
Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 88.1% (2022: 90.4%) of the
total purchases for the year and purchase from the
largest supplier included therein amounted to
approximately 78.7% (2022: 61.4%).

None of the Directors, their close associates or any
shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the number of issued shares of
the Company) had an interest in these major suppliers or
customers.

The material related party transactions in relation to the
key management personnel remuneration and the
guarantee provided by a director as disclosed in Note
32(c) and Note 32(d) to the consolidated financial
statements respectively are connected transactions
exempt from reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 20 of
the GEM Listing Rules.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float
required by the GEM Listing Rules as at the date of this
report.
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All the independent non-executive Directors were
delegated with the authority to review on an annual basis
the compliance with the non-competition undertaking
given by each of Mr. Cheng Wai Tak and Winful
Enterprises, the controlling shareholders of the Company
(collectively, the “Covenantors”) in favour of the Company
dated 20 January 2014 (the “Non-Competition Deed”).
The Covenantors have provided to the Company all
information necessary for the annual review by the
independent non-executive Directors and the Covenantors
have confirmed to the Company that each of the
Covenantors and his/its associates has not breached the
terms of the undertakings contained in the Non-
Competition Deed. All independent non-executive
Directors confirmed that they are not aware of any non-
compliance with the Non-Competition Deed by the
Covenantors during the Year.

Details of the Non-Competition Deed have been set out in
the section headed “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders” of the Prospectus.

Save for the Share Option Scheme, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into during the Year or
subsisted at the end of the Year.

Details of the corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company are set out in the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 21 to 39 of this annual report.

The consolidated financial statements have been audited
by PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire at the forth
coming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Perfect Optronics Limited

Kan Man Wai
Acting Chairman
Hong Kong, 26 March 2024
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
B M 1% D R &

_a

pwec

To the Shareholders of Perfect Optronics Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman lIslands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Perfect Optronics
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”),
which are set out on pages 105 to 175, comprise:

° the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2023;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for
the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
comprising material accounting policies information
and other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 December 2023, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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: PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
B BAH®E

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised
as follows:

. Inventory provision

. Valuation of financial asset at fair value through profit
or loss

Perfect Optronics Limited Annual Report 2023
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Key Audit Matter
HRETSR

Independent Auditor’s Report
R

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BB NMEERARENSE

Inventory provision

FERE

Refer to Note 2.2.5, Note 4.1(a) and Note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.
BL2HEEPBmRERMF2.2.5 - Wiks. (@) & HizF20 -

As at 31 December 2023, the Group held net
inventories of HK$17,907,000, carried at the lower of
cost and net realisable value (“NRV”) in the
consolidated financial statements.
RZB_=F+-_A=+—0  EEEXRBEERE
17,907,000 7T - 4R & B IR IZ N AR B 7] Z 375
B(AERFEMEZREEINE -

The estimation of impairment provision for inventories
involves significant management judgement based on
the consideration of key factors such as the
estimated selling price and expected future market
demand with reference to current market trends,
historical sales experience, expected customer
demands and technology development.
FERERGBRAPLREEERBEHBEEEZNE
EFELERHEG INEASERZ2EERNTSB
MG ARRTISZBY BEHELR HHEPFE
kR R R -

We discussed with management of the Group and
obtained an understanding of management’s internal
control and assessment process of impairment
assessment performed by management on the
inventory provision;

HMEESEEEREETH R BREEEHFR
BEREN ORI IES R ERERF

We assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent risk
factors such as complexity and subjectivity;

BIMZ BT THEE T R EAMES R REE (10E
FMUEREHM)BKT Ul ERERRANESR
e o

We considered management’s previous years’
assessment to evaluate the effectiveness of their
estimation process;
BMEREEBATFEMNNMG U EMHEARE
"B M
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
B BAH®E

Key Audit Matter
HRETSR

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BB NMEERARENSE

Inventory provision (Continued)

FERHEE)

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of
inventories balances, and the judgement involved in
estimating the NRV in management’s assessment.
MR EEHESBEAN BTG AE2RFER I RER
X RABIRN U RS -
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We tested the ageing of inventory items by checking
to the relevant supporting documents on a sample
basis, and recalculated the mathematical accuracy of
the provision made for the selected items;
BMHMER@EERXY  ARTEEEMNERR W&
Mt EMBEE A IERENREERE

We assessed the reasonableness of the provisions by
challenging management’s projections on current
trends and demands for the remaining inventories,
with reference to historical sales experience;
BM2RELHELR HEEBHI AR LT
%ﬁﬁ%i%ﬁﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁ'%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁméﬁ
:ﬁ 0

We tested the estimated selling price and sales
quantity with post year-end sales data, on a sample
basis, and found the estimated selling price and
sales quantity in the NRV assessment to be within
reasonable ranges; and
BPRBEFRENEHERBHGTEERHEEETT
MEAS UEEAZRFETEIONRAEER
HEBAREE &

We discussed with management to understand the
additional factors that were considered relevant
based on the current market conditions that might
require adjustments to the historical sales pattern for
both the price and the quantity and obtained
evidence for these explanations.

BMEEEEN R UTHREEBERRETRM
ZENEMBEBARE MATE2HEBRKBREN
BAEHEBBELRAE  URBZERERGEIE -

Based on the work performed, we considered the
inventory provision determined by management was
supportable by available evidence.
ERBEFMERMTOIIE BMARRERBEEENTF
ERERASIEBRM -



Key Audit Matter
HRETSR

Independent Auditor’s Report
R

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BB NMEERARENSE

Valuation of financial asset at fair value through profit or loss

ERBEAABEFABRSEZESREE

Refer to Note 3.3, Note 4.1(b) and Note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.
BRAHMEAM B RERNFESS - M 5E4.1(0) R HTEE19 -

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has an unlisted
investment of HK$35,848,000 measured at fair value
through profit or loss, using market information and
significant unobservable inputs.
R-EBE_=F+_A=+—HB MBAWBEHRE
ETAIERBASE ESEEERAAEBENA
18 %5 89 3F |- T 2 £35,848,00078 TT °

The unlisted investment is not traded in any active
market, management determines the fair value by
using applicable valuation techniques with the
assistance from an independent external valuer.
FIETREFAEAMIKERN TS ERXF - BE
BEBIIBHEMNHS T KABRNMGEER
WMEEAREE-

The fair value determination requires significant
management’s judgements and estimates and the
use of unobservable inputs.
BEAABEFTEZEREBEHEXRHE KM I
ERATATEENEARE -

We discussed with management of the Group and
obtained an understanding of management’s internal
control and fair value assessment performed by
management on the valuation of financial asset at fair
value through profit or loss;

BME EEEEREEETANR BRETEBHRRAD
ABEFAESNSREELENAITES RQR
BEFEBER

We assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent risk
factors such as complexity and subjectivity;

BAIE RBAGET 8N E I R B A E A E b B 3= (104
HMMREBM) AKE UM ERERRANESR
(e

We assessed the objectivity, independence and
expertise of the independent external valuer; and
BMEREBLINEEMOZTEE BLMERE
EM R
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
B BAH®E

Key Audit Matter
HRETSR

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BB NMEERARENSE

Valuation of financial asset at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)

EMRAABEFABEZSRMEE(F)

We focused on this area due to the high degree of
judgement required in determining the fair value of
the unlisted investment.
HREETHFLTRENAABERETEFLSE
FUET - MM ZIER S EE -
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We assessed both the appropriateness of valuation
methodology and the reasonableness of the
assumptions used by management in the fair value
assessment by the following procedures:
BMAEEREN AR BEMBI G EZNES
MRERZROEEE  BFHAT

e FEvaluated the key assumptions used in the
valuation model by comparing the assumptions
used against appropriate benchmarks and
challenging the appropriateness of the pricing
multiples available from comparable companies
and assessing sensitivities to the assumptions
used;

HMMEERNERACEERSR  FEREME
AHREEREERFLE  YHAILRQAN

ETERHRERERLERLFGMAREKK
BREE

e Tested the data integrity for the valuation model;
and

HEESENBEBETERFETAR R

e Used our valuation expert to perform independent
assessments.

MARMNGEEERETELFG -

Based on the work performed, we considered the
methodology and assumptions made by management
were supportable by available evidence.
EREHTHIE RMB/EEBN A ERESD
BRRIEGHA G BRI H -



OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises all of
the information included in the annual report other than
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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BYZBM®RE

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

Annual Report 2023
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
B BAH®E

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Ng Ka Ho.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 March 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Inoome

FeEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_ZT-_=F+-_A=+—HLFE

2023 2022
—s-= —E=-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER FAT
Revenue A 5, 6 124,255 301,318
Cost of sales 5 A AR 8 (108,961) (231,649)
Gross profit EF 15,294 69,669
Other gains/(losses), net Hih s, (B18)F8E 7 10,956 (12,862)
Distribution and selling expenses DEREERY 8 (22,087) (24,657)
General and administrative —MRITERRX
expenses 8 (23,890) (26,969)
Research and development MREBEERX
expenses 8 (938) (996)
Operating (loss)/profit R (BER) (20,665) 4,185
Finance income B 75 L A 280 75
Finance costs B 7% & A (325) (367)
Finance costs, net M5B A FE 10 (45) (292)
(Loss)/profit before income tax BREFFESHA(ER)
F (20,710) 3,893
Income tax expense Frig B X 11 (10) (410)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(ER) B (20,720) 3,483
Other comprehensive (loss)/ Httz2m(ER)
income: Wz
Item that may be subsequently BE# AT EAT D IE R
reclassified to income statement Wz 2IE A
Currency translation differences INEETH =58 (42) 245
Item that will not be subsequently —FEETEEH HHE
reclassified to income statement Wk zEA
Change in value of financial asset at Eki}fﬁfﬁﬁﬁEf]\Eiﬁﬂ
fair value through other 1@4& S BB E
comprehensive income BEEE 200 (352)
Currency translation differences HNEE I % ZH = 103
Total comprehensive (loss)/income H£EZH (BE) Wi#
for the year AR (20,562) 3,479
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
FREREWER

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_ZT_=—f+_A=+—RALEE

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx T T
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(&FEB) FE
attributable to: BER:
Equity holders of the Company KA E=EFEBA (19,104) 4,038
Non-controlling interests FE 2 AR HE 2 (1,616) (555)
(20,720) 3,483
Total comprehensive (loss)/income FEZMH (i) WH
for the year attributable to: BERBERN:
Equity holders of the Company KA E=EFEBA (18,946) 3,931
Non-controlling interests FE 2 AR HE 2 (1,616) (452)
(20,562) 3,479
Basic and diluted (loss)/earnings SREXRK#5E (FiE)
per share (HK cents) S BRI GEAL) 12 (1.29) 0.27

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive [\ F4R& 2 EINERELEWTE —HHEE -
income should be read in conjunction with the
accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B R AR R R

As at 31 December 2023
RZEZ=%+=ZA=+—H

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Assets EE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y- WE k&S 14 169 104
Right-of-use assets CREEE 15 = 4,261
Intangible assets BEEE 16 5,322 5,322
Deferred income tax assets EEFMEHEE 26 69 79
Financial asset at fair value BAREBEEFTAHA
through other comprehensive ZHKREZEREE
income 18 1,500 1,300
Financial asset at fair value BEAnBEFAER
through profit or loss JEMEE 19 35,848 25,201
L 42908 36,267
Current assets RBEE
Inventories BE 20 17,907 21,743
Trade and other receivables JE L BR 3k N H Ath e
W 3k 21 7,944 10,031
Cash and cash equivalents HehkREFEY 22 47,372 85,709
R 73228 117,483
Total assets EEHRE 116,131 153,750
Equity and liabilities ERREE
Equity attributable to equity AAFEEEEAERL
holders of the Company R
Share capital & A 23 14,837 14,837
Reserves 1 116,218 116,060
Accumulated losses B g (38,760) (19,656)
BT e 922% 111,241
Non-controlling interests RS (3,519) (1,903)
Total equity xEE 88,776 109,338
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

FeMBRR R

As at 31 December 2023
RZEZ=F+=A=+—8H

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FE T
Liabilities =K
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Bank loan RITER 25 3,810 4,516
Lease liabilities HEAE 15 623 1177
Current liabilities FEBEE
Trade and other payables FE AT BR 3R I E b fE
3% 24 19,034 34,464
Current income tax liabilities EHMEHRasE 395 395
Bank loan RITEXK 25 709 690
Lease liabilities HEA®E 15 2,784 3,170
N 22922 38,719
Total liabilities EEHREE 27,355 44,412
Total equity and liabilities EEREEEHE 116,131 153,750

The consolidated financial statements on pages 105 to F105E175EMG AV ERREN T _UF
175 were approved by the Board of Directors on 26 =A-+XBHEZEFeH A THRRKEZEE

March 2024 and were signed on its behalf. o
Chang Huan Chia Hsu Wai Man Helen
RER ®hEH

Director Director

EFE EFE

The above consolidated statement of financial position M F4RA SRR EEBEMM T —FRE -
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REERBEK

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_T-_=F+-_A=+—RHLEFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
AR ERKEAER

(Note 1) (Note 2)

(H3E1) (Mz2)

Non-

Share Share Other Merger Revaluation  Exchange Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium  Reserves reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
BAx  ROBE HtHEE AHEE EARE EXRE  RTER axt FEREE RR4AE
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TERT TER TER TERT TER TER TER TERT

Balance at 1 January 2023 —E-=%-HA-H

“h 14837 465738 67,349 (415675  (1,306) (46 (19656 111,241 (1,003 109,338
Comprehensive loss 2EEE
Loss for the year FEBR = = = = = = (19,104)  (19,104) (1616)  (20,720)
Other comprehensive (loss)  E#1 2 (§8) /
income 1§
Currency tranglation differences SME T EZ - - - - - (42) - (42) - (42)

Change in value of financial B2 4 BEF ALK
asset at fair value through 2EhEZER
other comprehensive EEEEZY
income - - - - 200 - - 200 - 200

Total other comprehensive H2ERE/
income/(loss) (BB Bz = - - - 200 42) - 158 - 158

Total comprehensive income/ 2B W/ (F8)
(loss) 8% - = = = 200 @2 {9104 (18946 (1616  (20562)

Balance at 31 December 2023 —Z==%+=8
=+-pgl 14837 465738 67349 (415675  (1,106) (88)  (38760) 92295 (3519 88,776
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RERBEBR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_Z-_=Ff+-_A=+—BLFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

RARERKA ARG
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(R31) (Brit)
Non-
Share Share Other Merger Revaluation  Exchange Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium  Reserves reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity

RE  RHEE HbEE ARG EREE EIRE  ZHAER Bt FERER ERER
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TETL TR TEL TETL TR TEL TR TEL TETL TR

Balance at 1 January 2022 ~—E--%-HA-H

F1] 14,837 465,738 67,349 (415,675) (954) (291) (23,694) 107,310 (1,451) 105,859

Comprehensive income/(loss) 2 E W/ (F8)

Profit/(loss) for the year FREAE/ (B8 = = = = = = 4,038 4,038 (555) 3483

Other comprehensive income/ E A2 EK#E/

(loss) (E#8)
Currency tranglation differences  SMNEHEZHE = = = = = 245 = 245 103 348
Change in value of financial &2 4 BE AEA

asset at fair value through 2EhHEZER

other comprehensive EEBEZY

income = = = = (352) = = (352) = (352)

Total other comprehensive Eh2E(EE)/

(loss)/income lgatt] = = = - (352) 245 S (107) 103 4)

Total comprehensive (oss) 27 (#8)/

income W3 = = = = (352) 245 4,038 3,931 @) 3479

Balance at 31 December 2022 —E-Z%+=§

=+-REH 14,837 465,738 67,349 (415,675) (1,306) (46) (19,656) 111,241 (1,903) 109,338

Notes: Bt &

1 Other reserves include: (1) the difference between the share capital 1 HEtEHEeFE (WVREAQR LmETHEA(E
issued by the Company for acquisition of the subsidiaries pursuant A ARRBFWEMNBAFTCEHTHRARNRER
to a reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) for the listing of the BRKENNBARIZBEARNESE  RQFTAER
Company and the aggregate capital of the subsidiaries being THEHBIERRERECERESE -

acquired at the time of the Reorganisation; and (2) the amount of
the loan waived by the controlling shareholder upon completion of
a common control combination.

2 Revaluation reserve represents fair value reserve for financial asset 2 EEFEHEDERAABEFARMEAREZ CHE
at fair value through other comprehensive income. ENARBERE -

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity MW 4G AEFEBHREEBEHNT —HHE -
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_ZT-_=F+-_A=+—HLFE

2022
Note HK$’000
B 5 FAT
Cash flows from operating RETHNRESRE
activities
Cash (used in)/generated from #& % (Fif8) FiBHE S
operations 28(a) (33,367) 3,255
Interest paid BEAF B (173) (171
Payments of interest element of {478 fﬁﬁ 2 EB >
lease liabilities 15, 28(c) (152) (196)
Net cash (used in)/generated e EB) (FTR) s
_.from operating activities AR 38692 2888
Cash flows from investing RETBENRERE
activities
Purchase of property, plant and BB E % - BE M &
equipment 14 (144) =
Interest received 2B 280 75
Net cash generated from REFDHMBEFRS
__investing activities 186 [N
Cash flows from financing METHNRERE
activities
Repayments of bank loan EBERITER 28(c) (687) (682)
Payments of principal element of X E & EAR L&D
lease liabilities 15, 28(c) (4,238) (4,143)
Net cash used in financing MESTHAAFERS
e« | 4925 .. (4.825)
Net decrease in cash and cash BE&REBESZEYWRE D
equivalents EH (38,481) (1,862)
Cash and cash equivalents at FHRENIRELEEY
beginning of year 85,709 88,512
Exchange differences on cash Ba&RREZEWIER
and cash equivalents ZH 144 (941)
Cash and cash equivalents at FERBERBEESEEY
end of year 22 47,372 85,709

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should A F4ABE S REREEEEWH F— 0 E
be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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No’res to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n\/-ﬁ

1

2.1

@)

(b)

& BB R B R

GENERAL INFORMATION

Perfect Optronics Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 13 June
2013, as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law (as Revised) of the
Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office
is Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, PO Box 1350,
Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman lIslands. The
Company’s shares are listed on the GEM of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Company is an investment holding company
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are
principally engaged in trading, development and sale
of display and optics products and related electronic
components, as well as trading of other products.
The Group also processes some of the products
which it sells.

These consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), unless
otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Basis of preparation

Compliance with HKFRS and the disclosure
requirements of HKCO

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance Cap. 622.

Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a historical cost basis, except for
financial asset at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) and financial asset
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) which
have been measured at fair value.
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2.1

©

@

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

The Group has applied the following new and
amended standards for its annual reporting period
commencing 1 January 2023:

HKFRS 17 — Insurance Contracts

° Definition of Accounting Estimates —
amendments to Hong Kong Accounting
Standard (“HKAS”) 8

° International Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model
Rules — amendments to HKAS 12

° Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction -
amendments to HKAS 12

o Disclosure of Accounting Policies —
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

The amendments listed above did not have any
impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods
and are not expected to significantly affect the
current or future periods.

New and amended standards and interpretations
not yet adopted

Certain new and amended standards and
interpretations have been published that are not
mandatory for 31 December 2023 reporting period
and have not been early adopted by the Group.
These amendments are not expected to have a
material impact on the entity in the current or future
reporting periods and on foreseeable future
transactions.

2.1

(©

@

GeMBRRME

ST HEBE (&)

L E X ()

EEER 2 H ] RAZIEETER

AEBR _ZE_=—F—HA—-HHRABHFE
WE AR RB AT BT LA

s EAMBBREEAFITHR — RRE
#

e B ZER — BESIHER
(BB ER)) FE8K ZER]

. BB RE — & AREA
— BB G ERNE125 285

s HBE-XSGMELAZEERAER
BZBELEHE — BEGEASE
125% 2 & 7T

s S BRZBE — BESTEAF
1R RE B G mEEERXERNE
2%k ZEF]

EXFIHEEERT S B PR ER N S B
BEMPE YRR E R ARRS
MEXERTE-

=
5 K ERAY 2 AT RASIEET BRI R 2 FE

ETEBEMOF RSIERTER RREY
R -ZE_=ZF+-_A=+—HBFEHME
EHIAER  MAEBINERATRE - %25
BRI TSHERRE R SR RREH
FMERARAKRORGELEERZE -

BEXEARLDA 2023 £H

S



114

Noftes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

)

2.2

2.2.1

B 7% 3R R B 5

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Summary of material accounting policies

Principles of consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity when the
Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power
to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are
fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of financial position
respectively.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s
net assets including goodwill.
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ltems included in the financial statements of each of REEGEEROMBER YA TN

the Group’s entities are measured using the ZERBKEFEINIELERBENER

currency of the primary economic environment in ([ B DT E - A M BRI IAB T

which the entity operates (the “functional currency”). TR BT ARNRTNNEEE R AEE

The consolidated financial statements are presented Bl | EH o

in HK$, which is the Company’s functional and the

Group’s presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the INERZHRARSE ANIER EMEN

functional currency using the exchange rates HERHNERTEANEEE HER

prevailing at the dates of the transactions or EARSEERBINETENEEEEM

valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign BENFRERTEELNE LIRSS

exchange gains and losses resulting from the KEGE2EAWRSERPIEMKE (B

settlement of such transactions and from the B)FEIANER -

translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary

assets and liabilities denominated in foreign

currencies are recognised in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income within “other

gains/(losses), net”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value AN IR A R BETEMNIIEEBIEEFA

in a foreign currency are translated using the AABEETERMERRE -ZAAE

exchange rates at the date when the fair value was BIRNEERBENBREZEHERAA

determined. Translation differences on assets and BEKRKEEN - E2H - ROIM

liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of T EKEERARWEBREBERIZA

the fair value gain or loss. For example, translation AEEREENER) WBREZEIIRGEA

differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities FHRERAEAAABEKEHEEN

such as equities held at fair value through profit or —HomER RIIBEEE(WHERE

loss are recognised in the consolidated statement of BEMEARSN AL BENEZ)HIR

comprehensive income as part of the fair value gain EEGHREMEZEIRERER -

or loss and translation differences on non-monetary

assets such as equities classified as fair value

through other comprehensive income are recognised

in other comprehensive income.

The results and financial position of all the Group FEEEER(2BEIEFASBIRLCE

entities (none of which has the currency of a BEAMNEB)NNEEEEME RN RE

hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional B HEBERUBRABROTIATE

currency different from the presentation currency are RINMEE :

translated into the presentation currency as follows:

. assets and liabilities for each statement of . B0 5w e B 7 AR & Y & E A
financial position presented are translated at BEERZY BT BB mE
the closing rate at the date of that statement EHTE

of financial position,
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Noftes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

)

2.2

B 7% 3R R B 5

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2.3 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(@

(@)

Group companies (Continued)

° income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions),
and

o all resulting currency translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of any net investment in foreign
entities, and of borrowings and other financial
instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a foreign operation is sold or any
borrowings forming part of the net investment are
repaid, the associated exchange differences are
reclassified to profit or loss, as part of the gain or
loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
or liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate.

Disposal of foreign operation

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over
a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a
disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint
venture that includes a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of significant influence over an
associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the
currency translation differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the company are reclassified to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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2.2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2.4 Investments and other financial assets

@

®)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income or
through profit or loss), and

o those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this will
depend on whether the Group has made an
irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition
to account for the equity investment at FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE M BRRME

2.2

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2.4 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(@

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at
FVTPL are expensed in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt investments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income and
presented in “other gains/(losses), net”
together with foreign exchange gains and
losses. Impairment losses are presented as
separate line item in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2.4 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(c)  Measurement (Continued)

Debt investments (Continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements
in the carrying amount are taken through other
comprehensive income, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest income and foreign exchange gains
and losses which are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gains or losses
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss and recognised in other gains/(losses),
net. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in
other gains/(losses), net and impairment
expenses are presented as separate line item
in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

FVTPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at
FVTPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at FVTPL is
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income and presented within
“other gains/(losses), net” in the period in
which it arises.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

)

2.2

B 7% 3R R B 5

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2.4 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(@

(@)

Measurement (Continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to
profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as other
income when the Group’s right to receive payments
is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVTPL are recognised in other gains/(losses), net in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as applicable. Impairment losses (and
reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from
other changes in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the
expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost and FVOCI.
The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables.

Perfect Optronics Limited Annual Report 2023

2.2

224

@

(@)

S HERBE (&)

EXEABERBE (&)

RERAMEHEE (H)

=
f

o \
al

(&)

by
3

=

AEBEMARRTRERENR A BER
E-MRAGSEEEEEEEEETAN
AhBEEZSHBaAARLMEEEE - B
RUEBBREZETAIBBAAEERSR
EfoBREEL - BAKBEBUSKET R
ZHEFNR ZERENRESEEESRS
EEWRSERTFIESEMBA T IARER -

BRAABEAABENEREENIAE
BEEBHEGAEERaR 2 [Htka
(BR)FEINER(WMER) - BIAE
Bt AR 2E RSB EIRE R EE
B(RBEBERRD) BEMALEBEE
ARDRIIR -

S L

18

BRABBERAGTENIZ AR EEF AR
fEERamER TR AEERERE
EEBRME AR - BAZBEIET A
BRRNEERBREBRELM-

HREWESR  AEERBEEEVMBRS
ERESREABLEAN  ERERH 2
HEBRARUIRR S ERDHER -



2

Noftes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies

(Continued)

2.2.5 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the
weighted average method. The cost of finished
goods and work in progress comprises raw
materials and other direct costs. Net realisable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

2.2.6 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade
and other receivables is expected in one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets. Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less allowance for impairment.

2.2.7 Revenue recognition

Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when control of the
products has transferred, being when the products
are delivered to the customer, the customer has full
discretion over the products, and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s
acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs when
the products have been shipped to the specified
location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have
been transferred to the customer, and either the
customer has accepted the products in accordance
with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions
have lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence
that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are
delivered as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is
due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

w8

2.3

2.3.1

B 7% 3R R B 5

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Summary of other accounting policies

Business combinations

Except for the reorganisation for the listing of the
Company and business combinations under
common control, the Group applies the acquisition
method to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary comprises the:

° fair values of the assets transferred

° liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business

° equity interests issued by the Group

° fair value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement, and

° fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in
the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions, measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the acquired
entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Summary of other accounting policies (Continueqd)

2.3.1 Business combinations (Continued)

The excess of the:
° consideration transferred,

° amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity, and

° acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts
are less than the fair value of the net identifiable
assets of the business acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration
is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are
discounted to their present value as at the date of
exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which
a similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms and
conditions. Contingent consideration is classified
either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts
classified as a financial liability are subsequently
remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any
gains or losses arising from such remeasurement
are recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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2.3.1
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Noftes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE M BRRME

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Summary of other accounting policies (Continueqd)

2.3.2 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the
directors, who make strategic decisions.

2.3.3 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the
term of the leases or
5 years

Moulds and machinery  2-5 years

Furniture and office 3-5 years
equipment
Motor vehicles 4-5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GeMBRRME

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (Continued)

SRR E (F)

2.3 Summary of other accounting policies (Continued) 2.3 HithSstHEME (&)

2.3.3 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 233Y¥ BERRZE (&)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income within “other gains/(losses),
net”.

2.3.4 Intangible assets

Club memberships

Club memberships with indefinite useful life are
stated at cost less any impairment losses, which are
tested annually for impairment.

2.3.5 Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life
are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that they
might be impaired. Other assets are tested for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
group of assets (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE M BRRME

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Summary of other accounting policies (Continueqd)

2.3.6 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts, and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.3.7 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
include cash on hand, deposits held at call with
banks, other short-term, highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less that
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

2.3.8 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.3.9 Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and
services provided to the Group prior to the end of
financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other
payables are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If
not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.
Trade and other payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
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Noftes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Summary of other accounting policies (Continueqd)

2.3.10 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost. Any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of
loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of
the loan to the extent that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case,
the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To
the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down,
the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility
to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated
statement of financial position when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of a financial liability that has been extinguished or
transferred to another party and the consideration
paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed, is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as finance
costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the end of the reporting period.
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Noftes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

)

2.3

2.3.11

B 7% 3R R B 5

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Summary of other accounting policies (Continued)

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income in
the period in which they are incurred.

2.3.12 Current and deferred income tax

@

The income tax expense or credit for the period is
the tax payable on the current period’s taxable
income based on the applicable income tax rate for
each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred
income tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the statement of financial position date in
the countries where the Group operates and
generates taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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Noftes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Summary of other accounting policies (Continueqd)

2.3.12 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

®)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred income tax liabilities
are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting
period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only if it
is probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences and
losses.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised for temporary differences between the
carrying amount and tax bases of investments in
foreign operations where the company is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current income tax assets and liabilities and when
the deferred income tax balances relate to the same
taxation authority. Current income tax assets and
liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE M BRRME

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Summary of other accounting policies (Continueqd)

2.3.12 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)  Deferred income tax (Continued)

Current and deferred income tax is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

2.3.13 Employee benefits

(a)  Pension obligations

The Group pays contributions to defined
contribution plans in Hong Kong and Taiwan. The
schemes are generally funded through payments to
separate trustee-administered funds, determined by
periodic calculations.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions
if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees the benefits relating to employee service
in the current and prior periods.

The Group pays contributions to administered
pension plans on a mandatory, contractual or
voluntary basis. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid.
The contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expenses when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Summary of other accounting policies (Continueqd)

2.3.13 Employee benefits (Continued)

@)

®)

(@

Pension obligations (Continueq)

The Group also contributes on a monthly basis to
defined contribution retirement benefit plans
organised by relevant municipal and provincial
governments in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”). The municipal and provincial governments
undertake to assume the retirement benefit
obligations payable to all existing and future retired
employees for post-retirement benefits beyond the
contributions made. The assets of these plans are
held separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds managed by the
PRC government. Contributions to these plans are
expensed as incurred.

Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payments wholly due
within 12 months after the balance sheet date are
recognised as a liability where the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of

services rendered by employees and a reliable
estimate of the obligation can be made.

Employee leave entitlernents

Employee entitlements to annual leave are

recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the statement of financial position
date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE M BRRME

2

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Summary of other accounting policies (Continueqd)

2.3.13 Employee benefits (Continued)

(@)

Long service payment

The Group’s net obligations in respect of long
service payment to its employees on cessation of
employment in certain circumstances under the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance is the amount of
future benefits that the employees have earned in
return for their services in the current and prior
periods.

The obligation is calculated using the projected unit
credit method, discounted to its present value and
reduced by entitlements accrued under the Group’s
retirement schemes that are attributed to
contributions made by the Group. The discount rate
is the yield at the end of each reporting period of
Hong Kong Government Bonds, which are
denominated in the currency in which the benefits
will be paid, and that have terms to maturity
approximating to the terms of the related
obligations. The expected costs of these benefits
are recognised in profit or loss over the period of
employment. Actuarial gains and losses arising from
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in full in other
comprehensive income in the year in which they
occur. Changes in the present value of the defined
benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognised in profit or loss as past
service costs.

Perfect Optronics Limited Annual Report 2023

2.3

2313

(@)

S HERBE (&)

Hitt gt R M E (&)
ES 157 (&)

RIB(EBRBHIDNRE  EETHBER
TELERE AEEREESNEH
R EWERFESEBLE A MATH
) 42 (AR 75 1 1S RO R SR A& ) -

ZEBRBEFELEEEAE  TRR
A WHRANEEBRAKGE TR E
MGEEARREEBNHRK) cBRKRBER
BEEFRSHRERAROUEE  ZER
BRESAXNBMOEEE SN
PR ELAE B = S R BARR AR - R F AR A TR
HRAERBEHRANERPER - HER
HAEMBERREIMEENKERSRE
HLEEFNEMES RSP EHER -
BE CREE AR E GOl F ERUE-3 3
EEPERSTRIBSBERBEA -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Summary of other accounting policies (Continueqd)

2.3.14 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount can be reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
anyone item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised
as interest expenses.

2.3.15 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

° the profit attributable to owners of the
Company, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares

° by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares
issued during the year and excluding treasury
shares.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE M BRRME

2

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Summary of other accounting policies (Continueqd)

2.3.15 Earnings per share (Continued)

®)

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used
in the determination of basic earnings per share to
take into account:

° the after-income tax effect of interest and other
financing costs associated with dilutive
potential ordinary shares, and

° the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

2.3.16 Leases

134

The Group leases various properties. Rental
contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 1 to
3 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain various terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants, but
leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and
the corresponding liabilities at the date at which the
leased assets are available for use by the Group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives
receivable

° variable lease payment that are based on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GeMBRRME

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (Continued)

SRR E (F)

2.3 Summary of other accounting policies (Continued) 2.3 HithSstHEME (&)

2.3.16 Leases (Continued) 2316 HHE (&

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise that
option, and

° payments of penalties for terminating the lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising
that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably
certain extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot
be readily determined, which is generally the case
for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the
individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value
to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group, where possible, uses recent third-party
financing received by the individual lessee as a
starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in
financing conditions since third party financing was
received.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE M BRRME

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING 2 BIERRME#
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Summary of other accounting policies (Continued) 2.3 HihSstHEME (&)

2.3.16 Leases (Continued) 2316 & (&)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost
comprising the following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received

o any initial direct costs, and
° restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over
the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease
term on a straight-line basis. If the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option,
the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of all
leases of low-value assets are recognised on a
straight-line basis over the lease term as an
expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.
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2.3.17 Government subsidies 2317 B FFE A

Subsidies from the government are recognised at
their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the subsidies will be received and
the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government subsidies relating to costs are deferred
and recognised in the profit or loss over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they
are intended to compensate.
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2.3.18 Interest income 2318 FI E g A

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion
basis using the effective interest method.
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Noftes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, cash flow and fair value interest rate
risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk and
price risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance. Risk management is carried out by the
senior management of the Group.

Market risk

Foreign exchange risk

The Group is primarily exposed to foreign exchange
risk arising from United States dollars (“USD”),
Renminbi (“RMB”) and New Taiwan dollars (“TWD”).

Foreign exchange risk arises when future
commercial transactions, recognised assets and
liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not
the entity’s functional currency. Management
periodically reviews assets and liabilities held in
currencies other than the entity’s functional currency
to ensure that net exposure is kept at an
acceptable level. The Group does not enter into any
arrangement to hedge its foreign exchange rate risk.

The Group manages its foreign exchange risk by
closely monitoring the movement of the foreign
currency rates. In the opinion of the directors, HK$
are reasonably stable against the USD under the
Linked Exchange Rate System, and accordingly, no
sensitivity analysis with respect to the USD against
HK$ is performed.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion
that the impact on exchange differences for TWD
and RMB are immaterial as at 31 December 2023
and 2022 due to the low volume of transactions
and minimal amount of balances, and accordingly
no sensitivity analysis is performed.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Group’s interest rate risk arises from
bank balances and bank loan. Other than bank
balances and bank loan, the Group does not have
significant interest-bearing assets or liabilities.

At 31 December 2023, if interest rates had been
100 basis points higher/lower, with all other
variables held constant, the pre-tax loss for the year
would have been approximately HK$429,000 lower/
higher (2022: pre-tax profit for the year would have
been approximately HK$805,000 higher/lower),
mainly as a result of higher/lower interest income
from bank balances.

Price risk

The Group’s exposure to price risk arises from
investments held by the Group and classified in the
consolidated statement of financial position either as
FVOCI or at FVTPL.

At 31 December 2023, if the fair values of the
investments classified as financial assets at FVTPL
and FVOCI had been 10% higher/lower, with all
other variables held constant, the Group’s pre-tax
loss and other components of equity would have
been approximately HK$3,585,000 lower/higher
(2022: pre-tax profit would have been approximately
HK$2,520,000 higher/lower) and approximately
HK$150,000 higher/lower (2022: HK$130,000
higher/lower) respectively. Pre-tax loss for the year
would decrease/increase as a result of gains/losses
on financial asset classified as at FVTPL. Other
components of equity would increase/decrease as a
result of gains/losses on financial asset classified as
FVOCI.
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Noftes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. Credit risk
arises from trade and other receivables, restricted
bank deposits and bank balances. The carrying
amounts of these balances represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to
financial assets. The credit risk is monitored on an
ongoing basis with reference to the financial position
of the debtors, past experience and other factors.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that the
sales of products are made to customers with
appropriate credit histories and the Group performs
regular credit evaluations of its major customers.

The Group applies the lifetime expected loss
provision, as permitted under HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments, for all trade receivables.

The Group considers the credit risk characteristics
of the trade receivables to measure the expected
credit loss (“ECL"). For the trade receivables, the
Group has assessed the ECL by considering
historical default rates, existing market conditions
and forward-looking information. Based on the
Group’s assessment, ECL rate of trade receivables
is close to zero. Therefore, the loss allowance
provision for these trade receivables balances was
not material.

The Group’s bank deposits and bank balances are
deposited in reputable banks. Management does not
expect any losses from non-performance by these
banks.
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The Group’s other financial assets carried at
amortised cost include deposits and other
receivables in the consolidated statement of financial
position. The impairment loss of other financial
assets carried at amortised cost is measured based
on the 12-month expected credit loss. The
12-month expected credit loss is the portion of
lifetime expected credit loss that results from default
events on a financial instrument that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. However,
when there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since origination, the allowance will be based on
the lifetime expected credit loss.

To assess whether there is a significant increase in
credit risk the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with
the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information. Especially
the following indicators are incorporated:

= external credit rating (as far as available);

— actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
change to the borrower’'s ability to meet its
obligations;

— actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the borrower; and

— significant changes in the expected
performance and behaviour of the borrower,
including changes in the payment status of
borrowers in the group and changes in the
operating results of the borrower.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, management
considered the credit risk of deposits and other
receivables to be low as counterparties have a
strong capacity to meet their contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term. The Group has
assessed that the expected credit losses for these
other receivables were immaterial under 12-month
expected losses method. Therefore, no provision
was recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GeMBRRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MBERER (&)
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 HMERKBEEGE)
(c) Liquidity risk (c) MmBELERE
Prudent liquidity risk management includes BEENADESEAREZOEIRREAT
maintaining sufficient cash and marketable NRSRBERS EARNERAHBEE
securities, the availability of funding through an BE KRB NEEASENENR-
adequate amount of committed credit facilities and
the ability to settle the payables of the Group.
The table below analyses the Group’s financial TRINTAEEN @B ERIEHRT BN
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on MEBZEAHDN AT MR RARME
the remaining period at the date of the statement of BIERZERIETH DN - ERABENSE
financial position to the contractual maturity date. REHNRUERNRERE BHRITRTE
The amounts disclosed in the table are the WAEK - W12 A ABI RS E AR
contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due H#ERES -
within 12 months equal their carrying balances, as
the impact of discounting is not significant.
Between Between
Less than 1 and 2 and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
1FRA 1826 2Z&5F 5B L e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT
At 31 December R-ZB=-=F
2023 +=ZA=+-—H
Trade payables P& BR 3R 7,717 — — — 7,717
Other payables H e S 5k 7,424 — — — 7,424
Bank loan RITER 861 861 2,582 717 5,021
Lease liabilities HEaE 2,849 628 — — 3,477
18,851 1,489 2,582 717 23,639
At 31 December R=2=Z=
2022 +=-—A=+-—H
Trade payables FE T EBR K 22,916 = = — 22,916
Other payables H b FE T 3K 7,518 = = = 7,518
Bank loan RITERX 853 854 2,562 1,566 5,835
Lease liabilities HEHRE 3,259 1,136 57 — 4,452
34,546 1,990 2,619 1,566 40,721
EEx®AEMRAL D 2023 £8§ 141
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The Group’s objectives when managing capital are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and
to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce
the cost of capital.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
debt-to-asset ratio. The ratio is calculated as total
debt divided by total assets. Total debt is calculated
as interest-bearing borrowings. In order to maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares and sell
assets to reduce debit.

During the vyear, the Group’s strategy, which
remained unchanged from prior year, was to
maintain a net cash position. As at 31 December
2023, the Group has a net cash position and the
aggregate balances of unrestricted bank deposits,
and cash and cash equivalents exceeded the total
interest-bearing debt by HK$42,853,000 (2022:
HK$80,503,000).

Financial instruments carried at fair value are
analysed by valuation method. The different levels
have been defined as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the assets or
liabilities, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level
2).

° Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not
based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
assets, including cash and cash equivalents and
trade, bills and other receivables; and the Group’s
financial liabilities, including bank loan, trade and
other payables approximate their fair values due to
their short maturities.
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3.3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Fair value estimation (Continued)

The nominal values less any estimated credit
adjustments for financial assets and liabilities with a
maturity of less than one year are assumed to
approximate their fair values. The fair value of
financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is
estimated by discounting the future contractual cash
flows at the current market interest rate that is
available to the Group for similar financial
instruments.

The following table presents the carrying value of
financial instruments measured at fair value at the
consolidated statement of financial position across
the three levels.
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Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2023

R-E-=F+-A=t-HZAAREEHE

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
18 Ep) = 38 #ar
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
THER T TR THER
Recurring fair value measurements REMEAABETE
Financial asset at FVTPL BRABEFABRZ
— Unlisted preferred shares - FETELR = — 35,848 35,848
Financial asset at FVOCI BonBEFAEMEZE
hnzeBEE
— Unlisted equity securities - EETREES = = 1,500 1,500
= = 37,348 37,348
Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2022
RZBE-_ZF+-A=t-HzAArBEHE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
1B E0E £E3E B
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FiET THET THET THET
Recurring fair value measurements REMDNABESE
Financial asset at FVTPL BRABEFABRZ
— Unlisted preferred shares - FETELR = - 25,201 25,201
Financial asset at FVOCI BonBEFAEMLEZE
hazeBEE
— Unlisted equity securities - FETREZES = = 1,300 1,300
= = 26,501 26,501
HEXEBEMRAT 2023 £3R 143
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MBERER (&)
(Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 DAREEME (E)
The Group further assessed the need for transfers EREEBRESY UEFEIETIAD
between levels in the hierarchy given the changes in BERBEEZREHRZATEBRER K&
economic conditions and considering whether a lack EE-—STHREERERPETERER
of observable information existed for factors relevant BB - FREIE  F2EHEIE 2 H
to the value of certain instruments. There were no WRER( T _F &)
transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year
(2022: Nil).
Fair value measurements using significant EHEAXT BRI A AEEGT
unobservable inputs (level 3) £ (#3F)
The following table presents the changes in level 3 TERERBE-_ZT-_-"FR_FT=-
instruments for the years ended 31 December 2023 +-A=Z=+—BLEFEFIEBIAEZEH
and 2022:
Unlisted Unlisted
preferred equity
shares securities Total
El ) FEH
BER REES et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FATT
Balance at R-E—Z
1 January 2022 —B—HBz#&e 38,461 1,652 40,113
Fair value changes recognised in 7 H 4th 2 m W
other comprehensive income BRzZAAEE
#E) = (352) (352)
Fair value changes recognised in £ {518 % 58
other losses, net WRZAREE
% 3 (13,260) - (13,260)
Balance at R-E—-Z
31 December 2022 +=A=+-—H
and 1 January 2023 k===
—A—Bz#&e 25,201 1,300 26,501
Fair value changes recognised in 7 E {th 2 m W 35
other comprehensive income WRZAREE
2% - 200 200
Fair value changes recognised in 7 E b Y 28 )% 58
other gains, net WRZAREE
)] 10,647 S 10,647
Balance at R-ZEZ=
31 December 2023 +=ZA=+—H
2 e 35,848 1,500 37,348
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3

(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

GeMBRRME

BHRERERE (&

3.3 2RARBEEME (A

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3) (Continued)

The following table summarises the valuation
techniques used and the quantitative information

EHEAXT o] BB ABIZ R 1 7 EE
B (#3F) (&

TERBANEIB AR EEFTEMBGEE
BEORIAEARTNABEGARENTE

about the significant unobservable inputs used in &R

level 3 fair value measurements:
Significant Relationship of
unobservable unobservable inputs

Description Valuation technique inputs Value to fair value

ERTITHE THBERAHEHR

t B 1 1B 5 g (PN ¢ BE AABEENBER

(a) Preferred shares Market comparable Volatility 63.20% 10% increase/(decrease) in
issued by a private companies and (2022: the volatility would result in
entity equity value 45.00%) (decrease)/increase in fair

allocation with value by approximately
option-pricing (HK$93,600)/HK$78,000
method (2022: (HK$343,000)/
(2022: same) HK$359,000)

(@ —FMIRLEREET WmMHEALRATR R 8 63.20% RMEIE AN, Ok 2)10% -

2 BRR AT BE (% #ernEBAECD),
HEEREEE 45.00% ) ¥ hn49 (93,600 JT)
(ZZT =% : HER) (/78,000%%7‘5
(343,000 &)/
359,000 7T.)

(b) Ordinary shares Discounted cash flow Weighted 16.16% 10% increase/(decrease) in
issued by a private method (2022: average (2022: WACC would result in
entity same) cost of 16.68%) (decrease)/increase in fair

capital value by approximately

(“WACC”) (HK$225,000)/HK$250,000
(2022: (HK$275,000)/
HK$325,000)

o) —MMLERERET BRERESRAZE mEFrHE 16.16% MEFHEARKARNE M,

2 BB (ZZ % MRA) AFERX B (RA)10% - <R RE
([ on#e 16.68%) EURZ) /18N
Fi9E R (225,000 78) /
B 7R ]) 250,000/ 7T

Valuations of the above financial assets held by the
Group as at the end of the reporting period were
performed by independent valuers.

(B —F:
(275,000 7T) /
325,000/ 7T)

AEBRREBRAFOULEREEN
HEBRBIAEMET -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements requires the
use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will
seldom equal the actual results. Management also
needs to exercise judgement in applying the
Group’s accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated.
They are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that
may have a financial impact on the entity and that
are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated selling expenses. These estimates are
based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of
changes in consumer preferences and competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management reassesses these estimations by each
date of the statement of financial position to ensure
inventories are shown at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Estimation of the fair value of certain financial
assets

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. The Group uses its judgement
to select a variety of methods and makes
assumptions that are mainly based on market
conditions existing at the end of each reporting
period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 HEEHR

AARBESE (B EFELRRE) ZHIA
ETERDEMHENENBRENIRE R
|55 VM A D AT ©

H

Information reported to the directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision-maker,
for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment focuses on the revenue analysis by
products.

lElHHf

BRTAEBEMNBRBEERT BRI - W
ERGEHMBIUEERNBETGSET
REKTH - AW E27TEEREIEF
E TEXFPRIEER -

Other than the Group’s results and financial position
as a whole, no other discrete financial information is
provided for the assessment of different business
activities. Accordingly, only entity-wide disclosures,
major customers and geographic information are

presented.

(a) The Group’s revenues from its major products forthe (@) #HE_ZT_=F kK _FT_-__F+_ A4
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 are as St—RILFEE- REBEKRBEXEEM
follows: ZWAFHII T

2023 2022
—Eg-= B —

HK$’000 HK$’000

TER TATT

Thin film transistor liquid crystal display SEEE R iE R R EHE A

panels and modules R & AE %«H 83,992 155,896
Health-related products i B AR A EE 18,209 87,876
Electronic signage BTFEER 14,029 16,396
Optics products Y EE M 4,994 590
Integrated circuits S ER 1,786 1,883
Polarisers 1@ R 782 36,554
Others H 463 2,123

124,255 301,318

(b) Segment revenue by customers’ geographical (b) EHEFPHIEMEE DD IBRA
location

AEEZERNEPXNERNMEE D W
SINBEFAEEBRASBERTRIIR -

The amount of the Group’s revenue from external
customers by locations where the Group’s products
are delivered to its customers is shown in the table

below.

2023 2022

—Eg-= ==
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Hong Kong BB 111,507 281,959
Mainland China R oK BE 10,007 13,451
Taiwan & 2,741 5,908
124,255 301,318

BExEXEHERAT 2023 FH
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 9 &B& % (4&)

(c) The Group has one major customer who has (¢) #HE_EZ-_=F+_A=1+—HIFE "

contributed 10% or more of the total revenue for AEBAE NUETEBERFIAEE B WA
the year ended 31 December 2023. Revenue from 10% 3k MA £ » 2R B %A & P R U3 BE 40
that customer is disclosed as follow: T

2023 2022
—Eg-= B —

HK$’000 HK$’000

TR TATT

Customer A 2EA 26,205 20,464

(d)  An analysis of the Group’s non-current assets (other (d) EEEMNE  AEBZERSDEE(CTE
than financial assets and deferred income tax REeMEEREEMSHEE) DB T
assets) by location of assets is as follows:

Mainland
Hong Kong China Taiwan Total
BB BB K RE =9 | et

HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TR TR TR

As at 31 December 2023 RZ=-ZTB=-=4%

+=ZHA=+—H
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and E YR
equipment - 10 159 169
Right-of-use assets EREEE o - - -
Intangible assets EWEE 4,200 1,122 = 5,322
4,200 1,132 159 5,491
As at 31 December 2022 RZ=-ZZTE==
+=ZHA=+—8H
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and Y% BB R
equipment - 49 55 104
Right-of-use assets CREEE 2,980 1,095 186 4,261
Intangible assets mEEE 4,200 1,122 = 5,322
7,180 2,266 241 9,687
6 REVENUE 6 WA
Revenue represents the sales of display products, WABEERTER  KEER KBRS
optics products and related electronic components, FEMG REAEEMMEMERTINR
health-related products and other products to ALTHERA -

external parties.
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7 OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES), NET 7 Htz (F58) FHE
2023 2022
—=s-= —E- =
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Fair value changes in financial asset at E AR EBEFAEBZFZ
FVTPL TREEAABEED 10,647 (13,260)
Government subsidies IS 7 B 197 773
Net exchange gains/(losses) BE 5 Wz (B 18) F 58 71 (401)
Others Hith 41 26
10,956 (12,862)
8 EXPENSES BY NATURE 8 RUEEEIIWEAR

HERAE DHEREERX - —RRITE
R RAEMAERIONAT

Cost of sales, distribution and selling expenses,
general and administrative expenses and research
and development expenses are analysed as follows:

Cost of inventories sold (Note 20)

Processing and sub-contracting
expenses

Transportation expenses

Provision for obsolete inventories
(Note 20)

Auditor’s remuneration

— Audit services

— Non-audit services

Employee benefit expenses (Note 9)

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (Note 14)

Depreciation of right-of-use assets
(Note 15)

Lease expenses not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities
(Note 15)

Provision for impairment of right-of-use
assets (Note 15)

2023
—E_=F
HK$’000
T8 T
&7 & A (Ft3E20) 104,375
MIRINEER
368
B ER 1,485
PR & 17 & 45 (i E20)
1,333
% SR B &
— BER® 875
— EEFT R 130
& B & FI F S (FF 539) 24,713
WE BERIEBITE
(Bt 3£14) 79
FREEEE (ME15)
4,196
W AREGBHE Y
HEMAX (WE15)
2,067
15 F W 8 B R (B BB
(Fff 5£15) 3,363

2022

HK$’000
TR

220,672

1,168
4,490

6,228
875
194

26,495
137

4,151

2,311
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FE M BRRME

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 9 EEBAMX
2023 2022
o g == = _
HK$°000 HK$’000
F#& T FHE T
Short-term employee benefits (Note (a)) % H2i1E E @A) (M 5£(a)) 23,583 25,384
Post-employment benefits & B iR IK1& T
— defined contribution plans — EEEERE S
(Note (b)) (P 5 (b)) 1,130 1,111
Total employee benefit expenses, EERNHAZAE BEE
including directors’ remuneration =& 24,713 26,495
Notes: Bt & -
(@) Short-term employee benefits include salary, wages, bonus (@) RHEERMEEINTREREF S T8 %
paid to employees, and insurance premium for staff S REIRBTENRE -
insurance schemes.
(b) Post-employment benefits — defined contribution plans (b) BEBRKERN — EREHRTE
During the year ended 31 December 2023, no forfeited ﬁg:g:z%ﬁ':ﬂ Ej— qui\JtEJE P AR
contributions were utilised by the Group to reduce its 158 4 ) 1B A80R W i ¢ 5% DA B R %lii & 1) Eiﬁ
contributions for the current year (2022: Nil), there is no 'ﬂ(:?;:g ; ﬂt) AR AR M R
forfeited contributions available at the year-end to reduce IR R B AR SRR o
future contributions.
(c) Five highest paid individuals (© LEBEHAL

The five individuals whose remuneration were the highest in
the Group for the year include four directors (2022: four)
whose remuneration are reflected in the analysis shown in
Note 34. The emoluments payable to the remaining one
(2022: one) individual during the year are as follows:

FAAKELR RS FIALEERNZES
(T ZF M%) - EFBR B 345
HOAWEF FRAENBKRT —B(ZFT==
F—B)ALZHENT :

2022
—E-=

HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT F& T

Basic salaries, staff quarter expenses, other EAXATE BIBERAY -
allowances and benefits in kind At ERE R EWEF 1,644 1,644
Discretionary bonuses BBTEAT — 74
Contribution to pension scheme RIREHEI R 18 18
1,662 1,736
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GeMBRRME

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 9 EERABX (&
(Continued)
Notes: (Continued) B E : (88)
©] Five highest paid individuals (Continued) ©] TEBEEFAL#E)
The number of highest paid non-director individuals whose KEEHFMNTFUTHENIEESHS H M
remunerations for the year fell within the following bands: ATHAHET :
2023 2022
—EB=-= T =
Emolument bands: B & &5 & -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T 22,000,000 7T 1 1
For the year ended 31 December 2023, no remuneration =% E‘ﬁ += FIA_E +—HIEEE A%
(2022: Nil) was paid by the Group to the directors or the EARAERARERBHMA LN E@H
five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or B+ fF A E AN S 5% I8 0 S0 SR R O 4 - O
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of BEMERXDABSHMALIREXRE
office, and no arrangement under which a director or the MEHFHOLRH (T _—F &) -

five highest paid individuals waived or agreed to waive any
of the remuneration.

10 FINANCE COSTS, NET 10 I BERHFEHE
2023 2022
HK$’000  HK$'000
FE T FAE T
Finance income B 75 g A
_Interest income on bank deposits RITERZABYA 280 75
Finance costs 81 7% & F
Interest expenses on: LTEEZMERXE
Bank loan |ITE N (169) (156)
Lease liabilities (Note 15) HEa&(E1s5) (152) (196)
Factoring charges RIEEH (4) (19)
B S S 825 (867) _
Finance costs, net Bf 7% & R F 58 (45) (292)

EZxEHERAD 2023 £ 151



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRERMT
11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11 FTEHEX
Taxation on profits has been calculated on the FRAFBZ2HREC IR G EIHFEUAR
estimated assessable profits for the year at the SELEMENBER MMERTEAN
applicable rates of taxation prevailing in the EoERREBBEN - 28 REHIRE
countries/places in which the Group operates, -
based on existing legislation, interpretations and
practices in respect thereof.
The amount of income tax charged to the RirarHREXNROAEH SRE
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
represents:
2023 2022
—g=-= —E_- -
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Current income tax EHER
— Hong Kong profits tax — BENGEH - 395
Deferred income tax (Note 26) iR 3E P 15 B (B 5226) 10 15
Income tax expense B 10 410
The income tax on the Group’s (loss)/profit before RNEBRBRAEF A (BB, /FENME
income tax differs from the theoretical amount that MEFHAAEEERNBHEREENERS
would arise using the tax rate applicable to the HEMEZE HENT:
Group as follows:
2023 2022
—g=-= —E_-_
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
(Loss)/profit before income tax BrFTS R AT (E518) / F) (20,710) 3,893
Tax calculated at Hong Kong tax Hz%?ﬁﬁ%% 5% E R
rate of 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) B(ZE- = e, 5%) (3,417) 642
Effect of the progressive tax rate R K8.25% M FE
of 8.25% - (165)
Tax effects of: NI EENRBEEE
— Different taxation rate in — A aEEERTME
other jurisdictions M= 19 182
— Income not subject to tax — BAHZH KA (1,839) (131)
— Expenses not deductible for — TAEMR A E K
tax purposes & 6 2,566
— Utilisation of previously — AL ERER
unrecognised tax losses HIAE R - (2,964)
— Tax losses for which no — WERRELERER
deferred income tax asset BEMNTIEEBE
was recognised 5,241 280
Income tax expense PIT 15 B8 B X2 10 410

152 Perfect Optronics Limited Annual Report 2023



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GeMBRRME

12 BASIC AND DILUTED (LOSS)/ 12 BREAXALEE (5B BF

EARNINGS PER SHARE
FANGRER (BE) /BN TIERAAF

B E AL (BR) / FIBR I ERE
BT H AR T BEH -

Basic (loss)/earnings per share for the year is
calculated by dividing the (loss)/profit attributable to
equity holders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during

the year.
2023 2022
—E-=fF —_E-—

(Loss)/profit attributable to equity RARIERFEE ARG

holders of the Company (HK$’000) (B#8/),/FIB(F#ExT) (19,104) 4,038
Weighted average number of ordinary T 317 % I 2 H0#E

shares in issue (thousands) e (TR 1,483,687 1,483,687
Basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per BREAREE(FE)

share (HK cents per share) B F (FRRBEW) (1.29) 0.27

For the purpose of determining the diluted (loss)/
earnings per share amount, no adjustment has been
made to the basic (loss)/earnings per share amount
for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022
as the Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary
shares in issue during these years.

NETESRES (SR /aFmE  BR
AEBRBE-_ZE_=FRk=_F ==
T+ A=+ BUILFEEITETMREETE
FEHBTER RUYERZSFERIN
BRELXA(BE), /BFELAE-

13 SUBSIDIARIES 13 HWEAF
The following is a list of principal subsidiaries at RZBE_=ZFR-_F-_—_F+-_A=+—
31 December 2023 and 2022: HREEZMBRAHKIMAT
Proportion of Proportion of
ordinary ordinary
shares  Proportion of shares  Proportion of
Place of incorporation/ Particulars of issued  directly held ordinary  directly held ordinary
establishment and Principal activities and place share capital/paid up by the  shares held by the  shares held
Name kind of legal entity of operation capital Company by the Group Company by the Group
RAREE A5E AAFREE i 3
BRI/ RIEER BRATREG/ FEZEBR BEZEER BAEZLER BACEER
28 ERERER TEEBREELY EHRAFE t Al el b 6 Bl
(%) %) %) (%)
Rightone Resources Limited British Virgin Islands (‘BVI"),  Investment holding 10,000 ordinary shares at 100 100 100 100
limited liability company no par value
Rightone Resources Limited RERLZHS ((RBRAE REER 10,0008 & E B L @R
ENERAR
Shinwa Technology Limited BVI, limited liability company Holding of patents 1 ordinary share at no - 100 - 100
par value
MENRBERDA ERERABEEARAA BEER 1 B B Ak
Sinosky Resources Limited BVI, limited liability company  Investment holding 1 ordinary share at no - 100 - 100
par value
Sinosky Resources Limited ABRZEESRRAH BEER 1hEEEL AR
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FE M BRRME

13 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

13 B2 (&

154

Proportion of

Proportion of

ordinary ordinary
shares  Proportion of shares  Proportion of
Place of incorporation/ Particulars of issued  directly held ordinary  directly held ordinary
establishment and Principal activities and place share capital/paid up by the  shares held by the  shares held
Name kind of legal entity of operation capital Company by the Group Company by the Group
AAREE AEE ARFREE S 3|
EMRL/ RIEBR BRATREA/ BEZEBR BACEER HEZEER BEZEER
28 EEERESR TEXBREELY EHRAFE Bl el b 6 el
(%) (%) (%) (%)
2022
—Z--fF
Dexing Investment Limited BV, limited liability company  Investment holding 1 ordinary share at no - 100 - 100
par value
Dexing Investment Limited RERXESARAR BREER 1RERELRR
Yuan Tai Investment Limited Samoa, limited liability Investment holding 100 ordinary shares of - 100 - 100
company USD1 each
HaREBERLA BETERAA RERR 100 BREEIET
ERR
Perfect Display Limited Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Trading of display panels 38,000,000 ordinary - 100 - 100
company and related electronic shares
components in Hong
Kong
AXBETERLA ERERAA REBHERTERRKIER 38,000,000 & @R
ETHM#
Perfect Sky Technology Limited Hong Kong, limited liability  Electronic product 1 ordinary share - 100 - 100
company application development
in Hong Kong
BABEBRAF ERERAR REBETETERERA 1REER
kS
Yuan Mei Xin Technology The PRC, limited liability Wholesaling, import and USD1,000,000 - 100 - 100
(Shenzhen) Company company export of display panels
Limited and related electronic
components and
provision of technical
support and related
services in the PRC
BEEHBE(RINERRERT  HEERARF WA E{ESBRERKIER 1,000,000% T
BEFHM4asE £Q
RO SRR BT
X EREBRE
Yuan Tian Technology The PRC, limited liability Research and development,  USD100,000 - 100 - 100
(Shenzhen) Company company provision of technical
Limited support and related
services in the PRC
BRMZECRINEBRRA PEERRA R EHERREEITXE 1000005 T
REBRS
Yuan Tai Electronics Company ~ Taiwan, limited liability Design, development and 500,000 ordinary shares - 100 - 100
Limited company sales of electronic of TWD10 each
products in Taiwan
BREFRHBERAF AEERARE REER: RERBEEE 500,000 BHREE
FER HaKoTHEaR
Perfect Shiny Technology Samoa, limited liability Investment holding 500,000 ordinary shares - 100 - 100

Limited company of USD1 each
AHMZERDA EEGTARAF REER 500,0000% & B E (&
1ETZEBR
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13 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name

1]

Place of incorporation/
establishment and
kind of legal entity

MR/ RLBER
HERERER

Principal activities and place
of operation

TEXBRBEDLY

13 KB LA (&)

Proportion of

ordinary

shares

Particulars of issued  directly held
share capital/paid up by the
capital Company
FRREE

BRATREA/ BEZEAR
BARARE LBl
(%)

Perfect Shiny Technology (HK)
Limited

ERME(FB)BRAR

Perfect Shiny Technology
(Shenzhen) Limited

EEBa(FINERAT

Skyteam Resources Limited
Skyteam Resources Limited
Naruto Technology Limited
BAMRERLA
Perinnova Limited
Perinnova Limited

Perfect Intelligent Technology
Limited

EXEEMBRERLA

Fayeking Technology Limited

ROMBEBRAT

Hong Kong, limited liability
company

EBBRAA

The PRC, limited liability
company

REAERAR

BVI, limited liability company

EERABEERAA

Hong Kong, limited liability
company

EEBERAR

BVI, limited liability company

EERABEERAA

Hong Kong, limited liability
company

EEERAA

Hong Kong, limited liability
company

EBBRAA

Design, development and
sales of applied
optics-related products
in Hong Kong

EEERG RERHEEE
BEBEM

Sales, research and
development of
optics-related products
in the PRC

RO EHERREXLAB

E an
Investment holding
REZR

Not yet commenced
business

REREH
Investment holding
REER

Design, development and
sales of digital
information signage and
electronic shelf display
products in Hong Kong

REBRT HERHEEHR
BETRRETEER
TEEM

Design, development and
sales of environmental-
friendly products and
sale of health-related
products in Hong Kong

REBRT HERBER
REGRHEERFAMH
Em

1 ordinary share -

& RR

RMB1,000,000 -

AR #1,000,0007T

1 ordinary share at no -
par value

1REDELBR

10,000,000 ordinary -
shares

10,000,000/ & 1 it

10,000 ordinary share at =
no par value

10,0008 % A & @ &k

10,000 ordinary shares -

10,0008 % & B

10,000 ordinary shares -

10,000/ & & B

Proportion of

shares held
by the Group

GeMBRRME

Proportion of

ordinary
shares  Proportion of
ordinary  directly held ordinary
by the  shares held
Company by the Group
& ARFER S 3|

BHEZEER RAEZEER BAZEER

b Bl L fl t
(%) (%) (%)
2022

i 3

100 - 100
100 - 100
100 - 100
100 - 100
62 - 62
62 - 62
100 - 100
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FE M BRRME

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 ¥ ¥ -BERZE

Furniture and

Leasehold  Moulds and office Motor
improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
BER
HERFTHE EARER BAERE AE @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TEL TEL TR TEL

At 1 January 2022 R=ZB=Zf%-8-H
Cost PR 3,227 2,037 2,586 4,644 12,494
Accumulated depreciation ZHTE (3,196) (2,008) (2,387) (4,644) (12,235)
Net book amount EHFE 31 29 199 = 259
Year ended BE-E2-—%

31 December 2022 +-ZB=t+-BLEE
Opening net book amount FNEEFE 31 29 199 = 259
Currency translation differences SN EZE )] (1) (14) - (18)
Depreciation charge (Note 8) FEZL (Hs) (10) 28) (99) - (137)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 18 S 86 - 104
At 31 December 2022 R-E-Z

+ZA=t-H

Cost A 3,051 1,854 2,405 4,583 11,893
Accumulated depreciation ZiE (3,033) (1,854) 2,319) (4,583) (11,789)
Net book amount REFE 18 S 86 = 104
Year ended Bz-E2-z=%

31 December 2023 TZA=t+-HLEE
Opening net book amount FUREFE 18 S 86 - 104
Additions RE - - 144 - 144
Depreciation charge (Note 8) WEL I (f8) 9) - (70) - (79)
Closing net book amount FREETE 9 = 160 - 169
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=f

+=A=t+-H

Cost AR 3,067 1,871 2,221 4,589 11,748
Accumulated depreciation R E (3,058) (1,871) (2,061) (4,589) (11,579)
Net book amount REFE 9 S 160 - 169

Perfect Optronics Limited Annual Report 2023



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GeMBRRME

15 LEASES 15 #HE
B EHAEEAFAANEELSE

This note provides information for leases where the
Group is a lessee.
REEHBERRKREINSHE

(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement (a)
of financial position

2022
HK$’000
FAET

Right-of-use assets — Properties ERAEEE — W
As at 1 January Rn—A—H 4,261 5,565
Additions nNE 3,308 3,035
Depreciation expense (Note 8) ER X (M :E8) (4,196) (4,151)
Exchange realignment [ & & (10) (188)
Provision for impairment (Note 8) B H (P 5E8) (3,363) -
As at 31 December R+t=—HA=+-—-8 — 4,261

Lease liabilities HEEE

As at 1 January m—B—H 4,347 5,645
Additions = 3,308 3,035
Interest expense FMERX 152 196
Payments of principal element TRAREEH (4,238) (4,143)
Payments of interest element S A B E S (152) (196)
Exchange realignment PR AE (10) (190)
As at 31 December BR+=—BA=+—H 3,407 4,347
Current R E 2,784 3,170
Non-current FE T B 623 1,177
3,407 4,347
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REMBHRERMT
15 LEASES (Continued) 15 & (&)

REGE2HRERBEIANEHE

(b)  Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement (b)
of comprehensive income

The consolidated statement of comprehensive FETEAKEREREIATEHEERE S

158

income shows the following amounts relating to B
leases:
2023 2022
—E=-= = —
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FE& T FAT
Depreciation charge of right-of-use FRAEEEZTEL S
assets — Properties (Note 8) — W% (M 5£8) 4,196 4,151
Interest expense (Note 10) FMEFXZ (MFFE10) 152 196
Expense relating to short-term leases %8 HATH S /8 7 B % (Ff 518)
(Note 8) 1,801 1,892
Expense relating to leases of AR EXBRARHEE
low-value assets that are not shown MNEEEEEHEHEB
above as short-term leases (Note 8) F X (Mf3E8) 20 21
Expense relating to variable lease PEAAREAGHTE
payments not included in lease HENZEER X
liabilities (Note 8) (P 5E8) 246 398

The payments of principal and interest element of
leases liabilities during the year ended 31 December
2023 were HK$4,238,000 (2022: HK$4,143,000) and
HK$152,000 (2022: HK$196,000) respectively.

Payments for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets were not shown separately, but
included in the line of “(loss)/profit before income
tax” in respect of the net cash (used in)/generated
from operations.

Management has performed impairment assessment
on right-of-use assets and determined their
recoverable amounts by the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal (“FVLCD”) and value in use.
Management applied the cash flows forecast (“DCF”)
which covers the remaining lease terms to
determine the recoverable amounts under FVLCD
methods. Based on the results of management’s
impairment assessment, provision for impairment on
right-of-use assets of HK$3,363,000 was made for
the year ended 31 December 2023. Discount rates
used by management in the DCF are pre-tax and
reflect specific risks relating to the related
cash-generating units.
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JC) 152,000/ 7t (ZF = — 4 : 196,000
BIT) e

EHﬂfﬂff\&ﬁﬁﬂfﬁﬁﬁﬁfE’M‘J‘T)@Eﬁﬁ
DIt BEREE (FTA) /FBRIEEF
BHRBRFE %RFJI (&B#8/) /FE]—mE-

EEEYEMEEEETRMERN S WK
DA BERDERA ([R AR EBERDEK
ADBEERBERETORDEETHA
YWEl e - BEERAERRERSERN
ReRER) HIJ/f(FfE‘i\/ TETRRDE]) KE
EARBEREEXRAEZBE T LD
B-REEEEMNHENGHER BEZ

E_=F+_A=t+—BLEFER EH
#E R ERE R 1 /33,363,0008 T © EIRE

ERSRETBEDE R E’\J,ﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
BRRE RREBREELEUNETER

G o
N



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRMET
16 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16 B &EE
Club
memberships
e
HK$’000
FAT
At 1 January 2022 R=ZF=-=F—-HA—H
Cost BN 5,322
Accumulated amortisation RET# -
Net book amount BREFE 5,322
Year ended 31 December 2022 BE_Z_—_F+-A=+—-HLEE
Opening net book amount FURMFE 5,322
Amortisation charge i -
Closing net book amount HRREFE 5,322
At 31 December 2022 R-ZBZZH+ZA=+—8H
Cost BX A 5,322
Accumulated amortisation RETE —
Net book amount BREFE 5,322
At 1 January 2023 R-—ZTB-_=F—-—H—H
Cost B AR 5,322
Accumulated amortisation RET# -
Net book amount BREFE 5,322
Year ended 31 December 2023 BE-_ZT_=F+-A=+—-HLEE
Opening net book amount FURMFE 5,322
Amortisation charge i -
Closing net book amount HREREFE 5,322
At 31 December 2023 R-ZBZ=ZH+ZA=+—8H
Cost B A 5,322
Accumulated amortisation RETE -
Net book amount BREFE 5,322
The Group’s intangible assets as at 31 December REBR-ZT-_=FR-_F-__F+=-A
2023 and 2022 comprise membership rights with ST —ERNEREEREESEEFERFH
indefinite useful life and are stated at cost less any M2 EERER - R R R R EEE S
impairment losses. Bk -
Management applied FVLCD by using the market EEEAETIRESERNERAQAAEA
approach when determining the recoverable WHEK RPN TIGE BEZST =4
amounts. During the years ended 31 December KB —_F+-A=+—RBLEE #
2023 and 2022, no impairment was made in relation moigEENIEDRE-

to the membership rights.
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REMBKRERME
17 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 17 REBFHE7HEMIA
CATEGORY
The Group holds the following financial instruments AEBR-_E_=ZFR-_FE-_—_F+=-A4
at 31 December 2023 and 2022: =t+—BAEETIE&MIA:
2023 2022
—Zg== —E-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#& T FHE T
Financial assets EREE
Financial assets at amortised cost: R SRR BR A
TRVEE
Trade and other receivables JE WS AR 3R I E b B IR 6,398 7,925
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 47,372 85,709
Financial asset at FVOCI EAnBEIFAEMEZE
KRz emEE 1,500 1,300
Financial asset at FVTPL BAREBEFAEBERZ
CHEE 35,848 25,201
91,118 120,135
Financial liabilities cRBE
Liabilities at amortised cost: REHEKATENEE
Trade and other payables JE 11 BR 3R R L b JE A 3K 15,141 30,434
Bank loan RITE XK 4,519 5,206
Lease liabilities HEEE 3,407 4,347
23,067 39,987
The Group’s exposure to various risks associated AEEERMNESH T AEBENSERR
with the financial instruments is detailed in note 3. HERAS BEHAXRNEZFAEERR
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of REAZEEHEENREE-

the reporting period is the carrying amount of each
class of financial assets mentioned above.
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18 FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

The Group’s financial asset at FVOCI comprises the
Group’s equity investment in certain ordinary shares
issued by a private company principally engaged in
the research and development, manufacturing and
sale of separator which is a key component in
lithium battery, representing an approximately 0.96%
(2022: 2%) shareholding of such company. The
balance is denominated in TWD. Such equity
investment is not held for trading and the Group
considered it as a strategic investment. The Group
has irrevocably elected at initial recognition this
investment to recognise as financial asset at FVOCI.

GeMBRRME

18 RAREBEFAREMEE RS

CEMEE

AEBEZALBEFAEMZAKRE Z &
MEEREANEEN —BAAR BT
ETETBERAOBRERE DHZAA
0.96%BHE(ZTE__F : 2% ) * ZAHAR
RIETENEME RERHEREERE(A
EEMHNEEILD) - LU AR
B WERBERETARRKS  AEBER
BUL VBRI E c REBEVIRERRBD
AR REBEER AR AIAEBETA
Hivz2mWF 2SR EE -

2023 2022
—=—= —E_- -

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FAT

Balance at 1 January R—B—HBz&t 1,300 1,652
Fair value changes recognised in other REMEEUW R ANER 2

comprehensive income DRAEEEZS 200 (352)

Balance at 31 December Rt+-ZA=+—HBz&& 1,500 1,300

On disposal of such equity investment, any related
balance within the revaluation reserve is reclassified
to retained earnings/(accumulated losses).

HEBBBRERER  EHHBERNETM
HEEREET BB FRE (2t
B 18) -
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FE M BRRME

19 FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

The Group’s financial asset at FVTPL comprises the
holding of certain preferred shares in Mobvoi Inc.
(“Mobvoi”), a private company principally engaged in
the rendering of artificial intelligence software
solutions and sale of artificial intelligence of things
smart devices to enterprise and individual
customers. The balance is denominated in USD.
There have been no addition to or disposal of such
investment since the Group made the investment in
January 2015. No dividend has been received by
the Group from Mobvoi. The Group’s shareholding
proportion in Mobvoi was approximately 1.57% as
at 31 December 2023 (on a fully diluted and as
converted basis) (2022: 1.57%).

19 RAARBEFAREZEHME
-3

AREBZEARBEAABZZEMEESR
EHEHMEBERAR (THMEE]) A
FEER HFAMEMAZTERERCER
BARFIREATLE %@#M&H%&%
EANTEREYHBBEERENLAR
RERBRIAETTATE - §$Eﬁm:§*£
F—AEEZIRENUR BAKRELER
B E - NEBKRT G I EUWEE
e - RZZE_=ZF+=-_A=+—H &
SEAELRPIMMFRL AL B1.57%
(Fx2Em#EREEBREE)( T -
F157%) -

2023 2022
—E== —E-C

HK$°000 HK$’000

FTHExT FAT

Balance at 1 January R—A—Bz#&& 25,201 38,461
Fair value changes recognised in other R Efhikzs / (E18) F5E

gains/(losses), net FRANALEBEEZD 10,647 (13,260)

Balance at 31 December R+=—BA=+—Hz#& 35,848 25,201

Information about the Group’s exposure to price risk ﬁﬁﬂ$§%@@ﬁf KBS R E R BT

is provided in note 3.1. For information about the
methods and assumptions used in determining fair 1*
value see note 3.3.

cHMBTEAABENTERKRRE
! pﬁ/iMTHISSO

20 INVENTORIES 20 FE

2023 2022
—E_= —E-=

HK$°000 HK$’000
T&ET FET
Finished goods SEAX &R 32,625 38,072
Less: Provision for obsolete inventories i : [R & 17 & # & (14,718) (16,329)
17,907 21,743

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and
included in “cost of sales” amounted to
HK$104,375,000 (2022: HK$220,672,000) for the
year (Note 8).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GeMBRRME

20 INVENTORIES (Continued) 20 FE (&)
Provision for obsolete inventories of HK$1,333,000 AEBMBFNEERETERE (RE
(2022: HK$6,228,000) was recognised in the GFERD)FE REFTEBE AR
consolidated statement of comprehensive income in EFERERMBAGTEEENEIEEN
respect of the net amount of the provision for RGEEL2HRERERREFTERE
obsolete inventories/(write back of provision), loss on 1,333,000/8 7T (= F = — 4 : 6,228,000/
obsolete inventories, utilisation of provision for T0) R ERBEFALZEZEREERN
obsolete inventories and write-down of inventories to HEKARIET °
their net realisable values for the year. These
amounts have been included in cost of sales in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
The movement of provision for obsolete inventories BRETERB . ZHRERETEREM
included write-off of provision for obsolete J3,004,0008 L (ZEZZ4F « &) REH
inventories of HK$3,004,000 (2022: Nil) and 3 860,000/ 7T (ZF = 4 : 374,000
exchange realignment of HK$60,000 (2022: JT) °
HK$374,000).
21 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21 BEWERRE HEAAmERKRR
2022
—_EF-—-
HK$’000
FAET
Trade and bills receivables (Note (a)) ERERRER (MiE@)) 3,772 5,196
Prepayments, deposits and other AR - e R EAEBGR
receivables 4,172 4,835
7,944 10,031

Trade and bill receivables are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected
in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer), they are classified as
current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets. Trade and other receivables are
recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for impairment.

RUEFMRBERELT LB EH
& 78 n S ER R 7 T B U P RO SRR © i
e AR SR B B A R R TR AT E —F sk — 5
MA(REREAER MELREXBKEL
BHRKDE AIBRESRBEE-&
8 RIZIRIERBEE - RKIRR R H A
R R ER A BEER  BREAE
RN R RBEA AR ERERETE -

BEXEARLDA 2023 £H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE M BRRME

21 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21 EWERAKREMEWRR (F)

(Continued)

Notes: B &

(@) The Group generally grants credit periods of 30 to 90 days. (@) REE - BT HEI0ZI0ORNEER - RELHR
The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables based on HHAENERERREBENRRSITNAT ¢

invoice date is as follows:

2022
HK$’000
& T
0-30 days 0-30& 3,063 3,960
31-60 days 31-60K 419 866
61-90 days 61-90K 112 197
Over 90 days 90K A £ 178 173
3,772 5,196
(b) As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s trade and bills (b) RIE-_=F+_A=+—8 A&£EC8H
receivables of HK$709,000 (2022: HK$725,000) were past 1B R 5 (8 1 JE U BR 5% K B2 4% A709,0007% 7T (=
due but not impaired. The ageing analysis of trade and bills T 4 : 725,000/ T) - BB HERBERN
receivables that were past due but not impaired is as FEWEZREZEENER> AT
follows:
2022
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FA& T
Amounts past due B H e
1-30 days 1-30K 419 355
31-60 days 31-60K 112 197
61-90 days 61-90K 150 173
Over 90 days 90K LA £ 28 =
709 725
For these past due trade and bills receivables, the Group has MZECARUERLER  AEECEREER
assessed the expected credit losses by considering historical AERE EATRARAEEER  FHEHEES
default rates, existing market conditions and forward-looking B REABIE EREXREKEBENEREERHIE
information. Based on the assessment, ECL rate of trade and bills REERT - AU ZSERRERERZBRESRIEHNES
receivables is close to zero. Therefore, the loss allowance provision BREEBEITFEKX -
for these trade and bills receivables balances was not material.
(0) The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other (c) AEBRWRR R Et B Z BRE AR
receivables are denominated in the following currencies: TE®E:
2022
HK$’'000
F& T
HK$ BT 3,526 5,240
usD E 2,494 2,087
RVMB AR 1,485 1,020
TWD ek 439 1,684
7,944 10,031
(d) Due to the short-term nature of the current receivables, their (d) AREHREKRAREHEEE  ERREERRA
carrying amounts are considered to be the same as their BEAABEEER -
fair values.
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ir A B A 3R R T R
22 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 22 BERBEEEY
2023 2022
—Eg-= —_ET-—
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBx FHT
Bank balances and cash RITEBRERS 47,372 85,709

The carrying amounts of the Group’s total bank
deposits, bank balances and cash are denominated

AEBERTER  RITERRBAEZEE
BERTHE®FE:

in the following currencies:

2023 2022
o i == —_=__
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&x FE T
HK$ BT 19,404 39,005
usb ETT 15,818 39,487
RMB AR #& 11,500 6,510
TWD e 650 707
47,372 85,709
23 SHARE CAPITAL 23 KA
31 December 2023 and 2022
—EC_=EER-E-_C
+t=A=+t-8
Number of shares Amount
BB -]
(thousands) HK$’000
(FR&) FHE T
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each &% E @ K0.01E T 5,000,000 50,000

Number of Ordinary shares
shares of HK$0.01 each

BEREER
BHEE 0.013 7T
HK$’000
FAET
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:
At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022, R - T -~ —F—H »
1 January 2023 and —E-_F+=A1
31 December 2023 =t+t—-HB -ZEZ-=%f
—A—BkZZ==%
+=-A=+—H 1,483,687,151 14,837

There were no movements in the Company’s share
capital during the year (2022: Nil).

P AAFRAEEETLE (T
—Ffm) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE M BRRME

24 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24 BENRMRHEMENK
2023 2022
—_E-= —_=F_
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#& T FHE T
Trade payables (Note (a)) JE AF BR 3 (P 5% (a) ) 7,717 22,916
Deposits received from customers WHRFIES 5,258 5,171
Accruals and other payables FE&T 5 IE K H M FE 1 5K 6,059 6,377
19,034 34,464
Notes: Bt &
(@) The ageing analysis of trade payables based on invoice date (a) REZZAHAENEFEROERR DT
is as follows: T
2023 2022
—E-= ==
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET F T
0-30 days 0-30& 5,431 17,597
31-60 days 31-60K 2,256 5,288
61-90 days 61-90K — —
Over 90 days 90K A £ 30 31
7,717 22,916
(b) The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other (o) 755 B B e AT BR R R EL b FE A A TN B B
payables are denominated in the following currencies: A
2022
=
HK$’000
F %I
usD Y 11,557 27,002
RMB AR 3,831 2,782
HK$ BT 3,188 4,120
TWD ek 458 560
19,034 34,464
() The carrying amounts of trade and other payables () ERERREMENRZEREREARE
approximate their fair values. EEE -
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GeMBRRME

25 BANK LOAN 25 RITER

2023 2022

—E=-= —E- =
HK$°000 HK$’000
F& T FAT
Current portion EHE D 709 690
Non-current portion FEHREH S 3,810 4,516
4,519 5,206

R+—A=+—B AKERTERNE
BIERWT

At 31 December, the Group’s bank loan was
repayable as follows:

2023 2022

—E=-= —E-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
T& T FHET
Within 1 year 1F A A 709 690
Between 1 and 2 years 1224 735 712
Between 2 and 5 years 2FE5F 2,370 2,288
Over 5 years 5% A 705 1,516
4,519 5,206

AEBHIRITERIREE S BRI #
B R J\mraﬂﬁﬁi%% ETEIER  BIRZE

The Group’s bank loan was obtained under the
SME Financing Guarantee Scheme launched by the

Government of HKSAR mature in 2029. The carrying TENF - ZBUTERNEERENETA
amount of the bank loan is denominated in HK$, B RFBENNEREBRFERR25EE

and carried at a floating interest rate of prime rate B o
minus 2.5% per annum.

The carrying amount of the Group’s bank loan as at
31 December 2023 approximated their fair values
since the interest payable on those bank loan is
close to current market rate.

The Group’s bank loan is secured by HKMC
Insurance Limited and personal guarantee from
Mr. Cheng Wai Tak, a substantial shareholder of the
Company.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have
any unutilised bank facilities restricted for trade
finance purposes (2022: HK$15,600,000).

Details of the Group’s exposure to risks arising from
bank loan are set out in Note 3.1.

R=Z==F1=-A=+—H KEEAR
TEFNEEEREAAEBERE B
ZEBRITE A BN F BT E AT 5 A

= o
AEEMRTERBEERERBRERS

ST TIEH&%ER@%?&EH’M/\%
PRI -

R-IEBE-_=F+_A=+—H AEEW
EAARNBEESMEN KB ANIRIT

EB(ZE =% :15,600,000% 7T) °
2N 5 B T R 9 $R 17 & SRR B 0 5 1B 0 P
F13.1°
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE M BRRME

26 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS

The movements in deferred income tax assets in
respect of accelerated tax depreciation during the
year are as follows:

26

EFIEBEE

L1 45 79 #0 S0 BB 47 B 8 B BT S
BEESBMT -

2022

HK$'000

T T

Beginning of the year F 1) 79 94
Charged to the consolidated statement 0Bk B #4546 2 @Rz XK

of comprehensive income (Note 11) (Fﬁ?ﬁ) (10) (15)

End of the year FR 69 79

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax
loss carry-forward to the extent that the realisation
of the related tax benefit through future taxable
profits is probable. As at 31 December 2023, the
Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets
of HK$40,769,000 (2022: HK$35,181,000) in respect
of tax losses of certain PRC subsidiaries of
HK$8,122,000 (2022: HK$8,050,000), which will
expire in five years, and tax loss of certain Hong
Kong subsidiaries of HK$245,854,000 (2022:
HK$211,997,000) which will not expire under current
tax legislation.

27 DIVIDENDS

The Board did not declare any dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).
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=t —B AEEVEERELERE
E40,769,0008 T(= & = =
35,181,000 L) * S REFTHEWER
B 1 18 5 188,122,000 T (- 2 = — £ -
8,050,000 L) (R AF B L) » LA K
ETEHFBEHBRAINKRMEEIRB
245,854,000 (= T = = F:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GeMBRRME

28 CASH FLOW INFORMATION 28 BHEREER

(@) Reconciliation of (loss)/profit before income tax to  (a)
cash (used in)/generated from operations

BRETEBIA (B18) FIERLE (fA)
FEREZHEK

2023 2022
—g=-= —E=-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FATT
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRFTISEL AT (B518) / FIE (20,710) 3,893
Adjustments for: MUATHIEFE -
— Depreciation of property, — WE - BER&E
plant and equipment (Note 8) & (Mt sE8) 79 137
— Depreciation of right-of- — FRABEENE
use assets (Note 8) (P 5¥8) 4,196 4,151
— Provision for obsolete — RETFTERE (Ms8)
inventories (Note 8) 1,333 6,228
— Finance income (Note 10) — B R U A (FF5E10) (280) (75)
— Finance costs (Note 10) — % BA(ME10) 325 367
— Fair value changes on — RAnBEAER
financial asset at FVTPL (Note 7) MNEMEELAR
BEZH(HMF7) (10,647) 13,260
— Provision for impairment of — FREEERERE
right-of-use assets (Note 8) (FfF3E8) 3,363 —
Operating (loss)/profit before changes 2@ & &2 FATE 2 (EFiB)
in working capital &b (22,341) 27,961
Changes in working capital EEETEE
— Inventories - 78 2,502 14,423
— Trade and other receivables — BUER R R E A
J& W 5k 2,104 2,337
— Trade and other payables — ERERREM
FEAS R (15,632) (41,466)
Cash (used in)/generated from re (M) /RS
operations (33,367) 3,255
(b)  This section sets out an analysis of net cash by AHRIR-—B-_=FR-_ZT=-=-F+=

position as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 B=+—HNRFHEMRRDN

2023 2022
—E-=F —EFE-=

HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FATT

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 22) IRE&RBELZEY
(Fff 5£22) 47,372 85,709
Bank loan (Note 25) RITE R (M 325) (4,519) (5,206)
Lease liabilities (Note 15) HE&aE(ME15) (3,407) (4,347)
39,446 76,156

BEXEARLDA 2023 £H

169



170

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE M BRRME

28 CASH FLOW INFORMATION 28 MEREBER (&
(Continued)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing c0 METBHFELEEEZHE
activities
Bank loan Lease liabilities Total
RITEN HERE @t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHT FHT FHT
As at 1 January 2022 R-ZE--5-8—-H 5,888 5,645 11,533
Cash flows Ben
— Payments of principal - INHEEEREHH
element of lease liabilities - (4,143) (4,143)
— Payments of interest - XA HEBERNSBH
element of lease liabilities o (196) (196)
— Repayments of bank loan - BEBTER (682) = 682
Other non-cash movements Efh 3R & &)
— Addition of lease liabilities - BAHEEAR - 3,035 3,035
— Interest expenses on lease - HEBENFERE
liabilities - 196 196
— Exchange realignment - ERAZ = (190) (190)
As at 31 December 2022 and R=-Z2=-Z
1 January 2023 +tZA=+-8RK
—2-=%-A—-H 5,206 4,347 9,553
Cash flows Ran
— Payments of principal - X HEEEASHH
element of lease liabilities - (4,238) (4,238)
— Payments of interest - INHEEEMNEHRHD
element of lease liabilities - (152) (153)
— Repayments of bank loan - BEBTER (687) -
Other non-cash movements Ef R EH
— Addition of lease liabilities - BAHEEAR S 3,308 3,308
— Interest expenses on lease - HEBENNERX
liabilities - 152 153
— Exchange realignment - ELAE - (10) (10)
As at 31 December 2023 R-ZEZ=
+=A=+-H 4,519 3,407 7,926
29 COMMITMENTS 29 EIE

At 31 December 2023, the Group had no significant
capital expenditure contracted for but not
recognised as liabilities (2022: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had no
material contingent liabilities (2022: Nil).

ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had charged in
favour of a bank by way of first fixed charge of
certain trade receivables of the Group amounted to
HK$480,000 as continuing security for certain
banking facilities granted to the Group. As at
31 December 2023, the Group did not have such
banking facility.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parent entity

The Company’s immediate and ultimate holding
company is Winful Enterprises Limited, a company
incorporated in the BVI, and ultimately controlled by
Mr. Cheng Wai Tak, a director of the Company.

Subsidiaries

Interests in subsidiaries are set out in Note 13.

Key management personnel compensation

Key management includes directors and senior
management. The compensation paid or payable to
key management for employee services is shown
below:

30

31

32

GeMBRRME

Yl W = |

R-IE_=F+_A=+—H AEEW
BEAKARBBE( T _—_F &) -

BEARARBRERNEE

%_7__¢+ A=+—0 A&EBi%
lmﬁﬁﬁﬁu FIRTTAEZ = AB
$%@W = F FE Ui BE 30480,0005% 7T
o EAAEEBERNE THRITEENS
EEF R_TE-_=F+-A=+—8"
AEBWEBBEITREE -

ot

jj_’
SARER

ARRHEE R&EZERA R AWINful
Enterprises Limited * EA—RXRREBR X
HEAMKINARKBARARESHE
B AR o

3
"
K

=

B 8 2 F
KRB AR 2 EHNME13 -
TEEBEAESTMH

IZEEANERREENSREEE -3
BEENRBENAENEIEERABNT
BT

2023 2022
—®=-= —E-C

HK$°000 HK$’000

FTHExT T T

Short-term employee benefits (Note 34) %2 Hi{& 8 42 | (M 5£34) 7,716 8,892
Post-employment benefits & B iR IK4E T

— defined contribution plans — TEEHEREE 68 69

7,784 8,961

Guarantee provided by a substantial shareholder
and director

The Group’s bank loan as at 31 December 2023
and 31 December 2022 was secured by personal
guarantee from Mr. Cheng Wai Tak, a substantial
shareholder and director of the Company.

—BXERRRESREHANER

AEER _ZE_=F+_A=+—HEZ
E-_F+ A=+ —HHRTERHR
REATERRREEHEREENEALR
RIEH -
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REMBHRERMT
33 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 33 XA ERRREBEES
POSITION AND RESERVES )
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (@ A&7 AREBEAMRR R
As at 31 December
Hn+=—H=+—8H
2022
—E-4F
Note HK$’000
B =E FHET
Assets EE
Non-current assets ERBEE
_Interests in subsidiaries KHBAR RS 89,965 525667
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H th JE 5k 311 315
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG S — 98,559
Cash and cash equivalents ReEhREFEY 2,599 5,304
R .41 104,178 __
Total assets EEARE 92,875 629,835
Equity and liabilities EnkBE
Equity attributable to equity holders ZARQAFEHFIZFHE A
of the Company L=
Share capital fig 2= 14,837 14,837
Reserves 1 (b) 77,458 614,480
Total equity ~  fH#=@#&® 92,295 629317
Liabilities =R
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables 5k 580 518
Total liabilites  8#f\®s 580 ......518_
Total equity and liabilities EERBEEEE 92,875 629,835
The statement of financial position of the Company KA BERARRER _ZE_NFE=A
was approved by the Board of Directors on “tAHRESetE TRRESEESH
26 March 2024 and was signed on its behalf. Zo
Chang Huan Chia Hsu Wai Man Helen
RiEE BRES
Director Director
EFE EZE
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33 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION AND RESERVES
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

(b) Reserves movement of the Company

GeMBRRME

33 ARNANMBRARREHERES
B (&)

(b) FRAANREEE

Retained
earnings/
Share  Contributed (accumulated
premium surplus losses) Total
B/
B4 EE BAEH (RFAEBR) Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TET TAET TAT
(Note)
(P &%)
At 1 January 2022 RZE-_—F—A—H 465,738 136,082 12,743 614,563
Loss for the year FEEE - - (89) (83)
At 31 December 2022 and R-ZT-=
1 January 2023 +-A=+-8k
—“E-=%—-H—H 465,738 136,082 12,660 614,480
Loss for the year FEEHE = = (537,022) (537,022)
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=F+-A=1—H 465,738 136,082 (524,362) 77,458

Note:

Contributed surplus of the Company represents the
difference between the excess of the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued and the aggregate net asset
value of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a
reorganisation for the listing of the Company.

MiE: AR ZBABBRRARTACETROE
EERBERAAR LT METZEMAMKE
ZHMBABCEEFERFTZBLEZRE-

B=x&ARKRALT 2023 F]
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FE M BRRME

34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 34 EBE @A ERE
DIRECTORS

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (@ EBEERTHAZZHE
The remuneration of every director and the chief BEBERITHAHE ZHFNMT :

executive is set out below:

Employer’s

Salaries, contribution
allowances to retirement
and benefits  Discretionary benefit

Fees in kind bonuses schemes Total
e RBER B EHE K

e BUEAN REEAL BRTEMRK st

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FTER FTER FTER FTER FTER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_-_T - =4
+tZA=+—HLEEE

Executive directors: HITEE:
Mr. Cheng Wai Tak BiEEiE — 4,200 — 18 4,218
Mr. Liu Ka Wing BRRELE S 636 S 18 654
Mr. Tse Ka Wing HRETE — 1,440 — 18 1,458
Mr. Chang Huan Chia RERLE 240 240 S 14 494
Independent non-executive directors: BUHHTEE -
Mr. Wong Yik Chung John BEEBEE 120 — — — 120
Mr. Wong Chi Chiu HEBEE 120 S S S 120
Mr. Kan Man Wai R EE 240 - - - 240
Mr. Cho Chi Kong BENELE 240 S S S 240
Ms. Hsu Wai Man Helen HEHzT 240 - - - 240
1,200 6,516 - 68 7,784
Employer’s
Salaries, contribution
allowances to retirement
and benefits  Discretionary benefit
Fees in kind bonuses schemes Total
e RER BEEHEK
ue BYER BIEEA BAGEMER @t
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
TET TET TET TET TET

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZ-ZZT =
TZA=+—BLFE

Executive directors: HITEF -
Mr. Cheng Wai Tak BERELE = 4,200 700 18 4,918
Mr. Liu Ka Wing BERfrk = 636 106 18 760
Mr. Tse Ka Wing HREFE - 1,440 240 18 1,698
Mr. Chang Huan Chia REELE 240 250 120 15 625
Independent non-executive directors: B HHTEE -
Mr. Wong Yik Chung John ERBEL 120 S S S 120
Mr. Wong Chi Chiu ERBLE 120 = = = 120
Mr. Kan Man Wai X & x4 240 = = = 240
Mr. Cho Chi Kong BENEE 240 = = = 240
Ms. Hsu Wai Man Helen REHLL 240 = S — 240
1,200 6,526 1,166 69 8,961
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34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

DIRECTORS (Continued)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

No directors waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments during the year (2022: Nil).

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination
benefits

None of the directors of the Company received or
will receive any retirement benefits or termination
benefits for the year ended 31 December 2023
(2022: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Company does not pay consideration to third parties
for making available directors’ service (2022: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entitles with such
directors

As at 31 December 2023, there are no loans,
quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in
favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by
and controlled entities with such directors (2022:
Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

GeMBRRME

34 EE2RARER (HF)

ESRTHRARZME (&)

MESEENFARELRERETMNH
(ZE=ZZF 8|

ESERAREANRKILLERER
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Financial Summary

B R

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilites and AEBRBERA AT BRFENZEENLEE B
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five BN IIFEBREFRBME(HHEAC B ECEX
financial years, as extracted from the published audited BA#&#R)FI&H M~ :

financial statements, is set out below.

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—-HLFE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—EZZE il B —E-_ZTHF —Z-NE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SR TR TER  TERx  TEx

Results E

Revenue WA 124,255 301,318 528,350 206,973 166,607

(Loss)/profit for the year — FE (E#E)

attributable to: FEEBR
Equity holders of the NN
Company BEA (19,104) 4,038 (43,857) (16,883) (34,078)
Non-controlling interests ~ FE¥E A #E 25 (1,616) (555) (1,229) (1,647) (1,570)
(20,720) 3,483 (45,086) (18,530) (35,648)
As at 31 December
R+=HA=+—-H
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—EZE el B —E-_THE —ZT-NE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAET FAT FATT TAT
Assets, liabilities and EE-8ER
non-controlling interests ~ 3F % ik fE 25
Total assets EEMERE 116,131 153,750 195,750 219,932 203,663
Total liabilities BEBE (27,355) (44,412) (89,891) (68,816) (33,306)
Non-controlling interests ~ JE4E R #E 25 3,519 1,903 1,451 245 (1,410)
92,295 111,241 107,310 151,361 168,947
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